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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis
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Review of Results

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately HK$669.9 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020 (the “Year”), compared to
a revenue of approximately HK$947.7 million for the year ended
31 December 2019. It was mainly attributable to the commission
income generated from the provision of Debt Capital Market
(“DCM”) services of approximately HK$469.2 million. The net
profit before tax for the Year was approximately HK$35.4 million as
compared to the net profit before tax of approximately HK$248.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2019. The significant
decrease in revenue and net profit before tax for the year was
mainly attributable to the outbreak of the coronavirus disease
(“COVID-19") in 2020 and the resulting anti-epidemic measures
and lockdowns have slowed down the progress of various projects
of the Group in China.

The net profit after tax for the Year was approximately HK$27.8
million as compared to the profit after tax of approximately
HK$208.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2019. Basic
earnings per share attributable to owners of the Company for
the Year was approximately HK0.18 cent (31 December 2019:
approximately HK1.42 cents).

Economy Review

In 2020, COVID-19 outbreak began and rapidly evolved into a
pandemic. To curb the spread of the disease, the governments
of China, North America and most parts of the world have taken
the stringent anti-epidemic measures including travel bans, social
distancing, city and regional lockdowns in order to keep people
apart and suppress the virus. The global economy was seriously
disrupted and contracted sharply in the Year, much worse than that
in the global financial crisis in 2008.

For 2020 as a whole, Hong Kong's real GDP fell by 6.1% and
the unemployment rate increased to approximately 6.6%. On a
year-on-year basis, total exports of goods recorded accelerated
growth in the fourth quarter due to the further revival of import
demand in many major markets, especially China. However,
exports of services plunged further as inbound tourism remained
at standstill. Exports and imports trade were adversely affected
by the weaker performance of the global economy and various
external factors. Under the threat of COVID —19 and austere labour
market conditions, domestic demand also decreased and private
consumption expenditure stayed subdued, reflecting pessimistic
local economic and consumer sentiment.
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

In line with real economy, the local stock market dropped
significant as investor sentiment getting worse. In the first half year,
the Hang Seng Index plunged by more than 6,000 points to the
depth of 21,696 points and it recouped some losses and closed at
24,427 points at the end the first half. In the second half year, Hang
Seng Index continued to rise by 2,804 points to 27,231 points at
the end of 2020.The rising unemployment rate in city is putting
pressure on local housing price. Hong Kong’s property market
remains resilient, but uncertainty persists.

The China’s US dollar bonds market was volatile, with the market
sentiment hardly hit by the threat of COVID 19 pandemic. During
the Year, the issuance volume dropped sharply due to deteriorating
investors’ confidence and the increasing liquidity and credit
risks. The market showed a significant rebound in June when the
governments around the world stepped up a series of fiscal stimulus
packages to restore the economy and inject liquidity in the financial
markets. According to Bloomberg, the total issuance volume of US
dollar bonds, in the primary market for the Year was approximately
US$211.5 billion, representing a decrease of approximately 4.66%
compared to that of last year.

Business Review

Brokerage and Placing Commission

Brokerage & margin financing

The business are carried on through Instant Achieve Limited (“IAL"),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, which in turn owned
100% equity interest in Central Wealth Securities Investment
Limited (“CWSI”) and Central Wealth Futures Limited (“CWEF”).
CWSI and CWF are incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability
and are carrying on business in type 1 (dealing in securities), type
2 (dealing in futures contracts), type 4 (advising on securities) and
type 5 (advising on futures contracts) regulated activities under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance.

During the Year, the commission income from securities and futures
dealing was approximately HK$9.2 million (31 December 2019:
HK$9.7 million) and the interest income from the securities margin
financing was approximately HK$44.3 million (31 December
2019: HK$41.5 million). The Group will maintain its prudent credit
policy and risk management approach with a view to achieve a
sustainable business environment.
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Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis
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Debt capital market business

The business are carried on through IAL, which in turn owned
100% equity interest in CWSI. CWSI is incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability and is carrying on business in type 1 (dealing
in securities) and type 4 (advising on securities) regulated activities
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

In recognition of the robust potential in the China’s US dollar
bonds market, the Group have established a foothold and teamed
up to participate as a major player in this growing market in 2017.
The market is principally classified into, by industry four business
segments, namely industrial, property development, financial and
urban construction investment (“Chengtou”).

During the Year, the Group has so far participated in 58 debt
issues with roles of joint global coordinator, joint book-runner,
joint lead manager or placing agent with an aggregate issue size of
approximately US$9.7 billion as at 31 December 2020. The debts
are issued through either private or public offerings with coupon
rates ranging from 2.3% to 13.75% per annum. According to the
information published on Bloomberg 2020, CWSI ranked as the
37th manager in the issuance of offshore China bonds for the Year
based on the issuance volume credited to each involved party.
During the Year, the provision of DCM services has recorded a
commission income of approximately HK$469.2 million. The Group
will continue to strengthen our services in the coming period and
broaden our service range with an aim to provide one stop service
to our customers.

Asset management

The business are carried on through IAL, which in turn owned
100% equity interest in Central Wealth Asset Management
Limited (“CWAM”). CWAM is incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability and is carrying on business in type 4 (advising on
securities) and type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under
the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

During the Year, the Group engages in the provision of investment
management services on diversified and comprehensive investment
products including private funds and discretionary accounts to
individual, corporate and institutional clients. Currently, our
investment fund, namely the Central Wealth Investment Fund SPC
(“CWIF”), mainly focus on the China’s bond market as it is the
second largest bond market in the world and offers attractive yield
opportunities. It is expected that the market will continue to grow
and transform with the global economy. The Group believes it will
become more capital market oriented and open to foreign investors.
Besides, CWAM also served as an investment advisor for clients
providing advice on equity fund, fixed income funds and other
investment products.
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

About Central Wealth Investment Fund SPC

CWIF is a segregated portfolio company incorporated in Cayman
Islands with limited liabilities in June 2018. CWIF has twelve
segregated portfolios as at 31 December 2020. The investment
objectives of CWIF are to achieve a high rate of return through
capital appreciation and seek fixed income returns with a high
degree of security.

Investment strategies

The investment manager seeks to achieve the investment objectives
by investing in fixed income financial tools, fixed income
instruments traded in the bond market, bond funds, money market
funds, bond initial offerings, structured products and derivatives.
The portfolios now mainly invest in offshore US dollar denominated
bonds issued by Chinese institutions. The investment manager will
seek to diversify the investment portfolios when opportunities arise.

Fund growth

As at 31 December 2020, the assets under management have
reached approximately US$714.1million (31 December 2019:
US$310.2 million). The management and advisory fee income is
approximately HK$32.1 million during the Year.

Property Investments

The Group principally focuses on the luxury property investment
in Hong Kong market and did not hold any property as at
31 December 2020. The Group completed the disposal of
one luxury property located at No. 2 Lincoln Road, Kowloon
Tong, Hong Kong in July 2020. For details, please refer to the
announcements published by the Company dated 4 February 2020,
28 February 2020, 19 March 2020, 23 March 2020, 3 June 2020,
2 July 2020 and the circular of the Company dated 24 April 2020.

Financial Investments and Services

Financial investments and trading

During the Year, the Hang Seng Index starts at 28,249 points and
closed at 27,231 points. Despite the local stock market rebounded,
the Group recorded unrealized gain on equity and fund investments
at fair value through profit or loss of approximately HK$42.5
million and realized losses on disposal of equity investments at fair
value through profit or loss of approximately HK$19.3 million.

During the Year, the Group has a unrealized fair value loss of debts
investment at fair value through profit or loss of approximately
HK$7.8 million and gain on disposal of debt investments at fair
value through profit or loss of approximately HK$29.6 million, the
interest income from debt investments amounted to approximately
HK$17.0 million.

Er#&d:&EEEH—JLNHH& Tﬁ

#8172 Central Wealth Investment Fund SPC

CWIF &— ﬁ%:zfﬂiﬁﬂﬁﬁiﬁéﬁﬁ
Y2 B EREBR AT - CWIFRZE =
%¢+_ﬂf+ E%ﬁ+_MW¢&§on
cwwz&ﬁahﬁ%ﬂ§$?ﬁaﬁ%@ﬁ$
SRAREREMNETWESE R -

B R
REKEBRNERREATREEMIA W&
HFminEE 2 EE WS Iﬁ BEHFEES BE¥M
HES BEHFEREE EBUERERTAELAR
BERKREEE - REACBIZRENPEIKE
BB EETHAEERF SREERK KA
KIS EEZ TR E RS -

2

R-E-TF+_A=+—H8 SEBEEDE
#49714,100,000% T (ZE—hAhE+ - A=+—
H:310,200,000E70) - RAFE  EEKEH
B U A %) 7532,100,0007 7T °

MERE
AEBTEFINBEEMBCREMHERE B
R-E-ZTF+-_A=+—BUEBFHIMAYE-
AEBER-ZE_ZTEFLAXTKEEMLUREE

BEEMBE2ZFN —EREYE -BEFIE &
2B AR R T -_ZTF_AMAE - ;z_gi
—AZ+N\B-ZE=EF=ZA+NAB-
fﬁ_ﬂfJF_E —E-EFXNA=-CHAEZE

ﬁtﬂ*ﬁﬂ%m”iﬁmﬂﬂaﬁﬁ:
7_$¢@ﬂ T+ EBRE

= _

MBRERRY

ABEREREE

RAFE BEEBFAE A28,249% WL A
27,2318 - BEA MR EM IS R E - BARK EH
BEBREREATFTAEINEZBRARESREZ
ﬂimiﬁuﬁz %5 #742,500,00078 7T M (H & B B8 iR
N EF R A E 2 & IR E18 419,300,000
G

RAFE AEBHEEERERERAFTEYE
2 EERE 2 AR N FEE 8 47,800,000
TEREEFBEZKRAFEIIEEEREZK
%5 #929,600,000/8 T - EIERE N A B WA ZELD
17,000,00078 7T ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F # 7



Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis
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Money lending business

During the Year, the interest income from the money lending
business was approximately HK$36.7 million. The net balance of
loan book recorded an increase of approximately HK$70.6 million
to approximately HK$517.1 million as compared to approximately
HK$446.5 million as at 31 December 2019. The money lending
business charged annual interest rates at a range from 5% to 12%
(31 December 2019: range from 5% to 12%). The Group will
continue to maintain its prudent credit policy and risk management
approach with a view to achieve a sound financial management
and sustainable business environment.

Prospects

The outbreak of COVID-19 recently has seriously damaged the
global economy. The number of confirmed cases of the COVID-19
has overtaken the 2003 SARS outbreak in global, as the virus was
confirmed to have spread across the world.

COVID-19 vaccination campaigns are now under way across the
world, it takes some time before a significant portion of the world’s
population gets vaccinated to at least slow down the transmission.
Many developed and underdeveloped parts of the world simply
lack the infrastructure to store and distribute the vaccine across
millions of people. The economic impact will be significant if the
spreading if virus cannot be controlled.

The United State Federal Reserve announced a list of measure to
boost the global economy including setting near-Zero interest rates,
Quantitative Easing measure, launching the Money Market Mutual
Fund Liquidity Facility and supporting loans to corporation. It is
expected that these kinds of measure can support global economy
and limit economic damages from pandemic.

China has continuously improved various policies and system and
actively promoted the integration of the bond market environment
with international standards. At present, many overseas institutions
have begun to set up research teams specializing in tracking China’s
bonds, and actively explore investment opportunities in China bond
market. We believe that in the future, with gradual improvement
of investment environment in the Mainland China bond market,
foreign capital will further accelerate into it.

Besides, we shall not overlook the downside risks due to the
expectation of US interest hike and the threat of geopolitical tension
which continue to cloud the global economic recovery. Also the
Group will evaluate the economic impact of a weaker yuan as
China may use it as the countermeasure to US tariffs.

In light of these macroeconomic challenges, the Group will
continue to stay alert, but positive, to pursue its prudent investment
strategy in developing its existing and new businesses.
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Chairman’s Statement and

Management Discussion and Analysis

Financial Review

The Group for the Year recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$669.9 million as compared to the revenue of approximately
HK$947.7 million last year. The Group’s revenue principally
comprised the interest income from money lending business of
approximately HK$36.7 million, commission income from provision
of DCM services of approximately HK$469.2 million, commission
income from securities and futures dealing of approximately
HK$9.2 million, interest income from securities margin financing of
approximately HK$44.3 million and management fee income from
asset management business of approximately HK$72.1 million.

The Group recorded other comprehensive loss of approximately
HK$46.3 million for the Year (31 December 2019: HK$907.8
million). It was mainly attributable to a fair value loss of
approximately HK$46.3 million on equity investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income (31 December 2019:
HK$901.1 million). As at 31 December 2020, the Group's net asset
value was approximately HK$1,277.3 million (31 December 2019:
HK$1,215.3 million).

Major Customers

During the Year, the Group’s largest customer and five largest
customers accounted for approximately 14.0% and 49%
respectively of the Group’s total revenue. As far as the Directors
are aware, none of Directors, their associates or any shareholders
who owned more than 5% of the Company’s share capital had any
interest in the five largest customers of the Group.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the Year, the Group generally financed its operation
with internally generated cash flow, overdrafts, bank and other
borrowings and other fund raising activities. The Group’s cash
and bank balances as at 31 December 2020 were approximately
HK$140.4 million (31 December 2019: HK$99.2 million).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had bank overdrafts of
approximately HK$86.4 million (31 December 2019 HK$117.1
million), interest-bearing bank borrowings of approximately
HK$102.7 million (31 December 2019: HK$261.3 million), interest-
bearing other borrowings of approximately HK$365.0 million
(31 December 2019: HK$429.9 million) and non-current notes
payable of approximately HK$86.6 million (31 December 2019:
HK$86.6 million).
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Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis
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As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s current ratio was
approximately 1.51 times (31 December 2019: 1.41 times)
based on current assets of approximately HK$1,788.7 million
(31 December 2019: HK$1,367.9 million) and current liabilities of
approximately HK$1,187.2 million (31 December 2019: HK$966.9
million). Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2020
not provided for in the Group’s financial statements contracted for
HK$3,590,000 which is solely related to office system development
(31 December 2019: Nil). The Group also had no other contingent
liabilities (31 December 2019: Nil).

Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s gearing ratio was
approximately 50.2% (31 December 2019: 73.6%). Gearing ratio
equals total borrowings divided by net asset value as at the end
of the reporting period. The total borrowings of approximately
HK$640.7 million includes bank and other borrowings, bank
overdraft and notes payable.

The Group’s bank balance, borrowings and interest payment are
mainly denominated in Hong Kong and US dollars. Most of the
Group's revenue are made in Hong Kong dollars and US dollars.
Therefore, the exchange risks that the Group is exposed to are
insignificant.

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy
liquidity position throughout the Year. The Group strives to reduce
exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing credit assessments
and evaluations of the financial status of its customers. To manage
liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors the Group’s liquidity
position to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group's assets,
liabilities and other commitments can meet its funding requirements
from time to time.

Significant Investments

As at 31 December 2020, the Group maintained a portfolio of
investments including equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income, equity and fund investments at fair value
through profit or loss and debt investments at fair value through
profit or loss with total carrying amount of approximately HK$960.1
million. The Directors consider that equity investments, debt
investments and fund investments with a market value that account
for more than 5% of the Group’s net assets at the reporting date as
significant investments. The details of the equity investments, debt
investments and fund investments which accounted for more than
5% of the Group’s net assets as at 31 December 2020 is set out
below:
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Significant Investments EXRE
Percentage of Percentage
shareholding of the Fair value Realised
in investments  investments to Fair value  Carrying value gains/(losses) of ~ gain/(losses)
held by the  total assets of ~ of investments  of investments investments as for the year
Group as at the Group as at as at as at at ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
Stock Code  Name of the investees 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020 2020
R-B-2RE RIZFCEF Bz
+=A +=A R-B-%F ZRCoRE
=t+-A =t-Rz R-B-BE ROBCOERE T=A +=A
FEEFRE REL +=A +=A =+-A =+-H
REZRE  AREEE S =+-B REZAVE LEEZER
RiosE REHSEH ARl #EZESL REXATE REZREE WE/(BR) W&/ (58
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TET THT TET

Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
BRAMEZARERATEIRZREARE
412 China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial
Group Limited 2.34% 8.62% 220,054 208,889 11,165 =

412 FELRRREHEEERAA
1141 CMBC Capital Holdings Limited 1.91% 4.79% 122,155 270,333 (148,178) (611,358)
1141 RIEBAERERAF

Others N/A 0.09% 2,350 4,926 (2,576) (100,336)

Hitp @R

Total 344,559 484,148 (139,589) (711,694)
@t
Equity and fund investments at fair value through profit or loss
ERRBRATEIIGCRARERRE
708 China Evergrande New Energy Vehicle
Group Limited 0.04% 3.68% 93,817 75,564 18,253 1,871
708 FREAHMERIESEERAF
1141 CMBC Capital Holdings Limited 1.19% 2.98% 76,128 74,242 1,886 542
1141 REEAZBERAF
Others* N/A 7.98% 203,704 181,360 22,344 2,352
Hife TEH

Total 373,649 331,166 42,483 4,765
@t
Debt investments at fair value through profit or loss*

ERRHREAVEN Rz ERRE

Total N/A 9.48% 241,919 249,675 (7,756) -
st TER
g None of the equity and fund investments account for more than 5%  * RBEAHEERARBE S REM A EEHZ E
of the Group’s net assets at the reporting date. FEFE5% K | o
* None of the debt investments account for more than 5% of the  * RIE A ECEEREL A EE 2 EEFE
Group’s net assets at the reporting date. 5% WA _f e

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F # 11



Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis

TEmENERE N wm MO

Performance and prospects of the investees

1.

12

China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial Group Limited (“China
Shandong Hi-Speed”)

China Shandong Hi-Speed together with its subsidiaries (the
“China Shandong Hi-Speed Group”) are principally engaged in
the trading business of financial leasing, leasing assets as well
as other related leasing properties, and provision of spot trading
platform and marketing and consulting services related to the
above businesses.

As mentioned in its interim report for the six months
ended 30 June 2020, the China Shandong Hi-Speed Group
recorded a total revenue and other income of approximately
HK$647.3 million for the six months ended 30 June 2020.
The China Shandong Hi-Speed Group has reported a net loss
of approximately HK$65.6 million attributable to owners of
China Shandong Hi-Speed. The basic and diluted loss per share
were both HK$0.27 cents. As at 30 June 2020, the unaudited
consolidated net asset of the China Shandong Hi-Speed Group
was approximately HK$9,717.3 million. China Shandong Hi-
Speed Group has not declared an interim dividend for the six
months ended 30 June 2020.

China Shandong Hi-Speed Group actively developed in line
with the China’s industrial policies, explored different high-
quality investment opportunities in the countries along the
“Belt and Road” Initiative and the Guangdong-Hong Kong-
Macao Greater Bay Area. As disclosed in its interim report, it
has reached a strategic cooperation agreement with Shandong
Hi-Speed Hubei Development Co., Ltd. The two parties also
made use of their respective advantages and resources to
achieve mutual benefit and common development, carried out
cooperation based on market-oriented operation methods.

The Company has confidence that China Shandong Hi-Speed
Group can further improve its asset-liability structure and
the stability of profitability. The management of the Group
considers the investment in China Shandong Hi-Speed is for
long term purpose. However, the Group would not rule out the
possibility of realizing the investments from time to time where
to do so is to be in the best interests of the Group or where the
terms on which such realization to be particularly favorable to
the Group.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group held 564,242,000 shares
of China Shandong Hi-Speed. China Shandong Hi-Speed
closed at HK$0.39 as at 31 December 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CMBC Capital Holdings Limited (“CMBC")

CMBC together with its subsidiaries (the “CMBC Group”) are
principally engaged in (i) securities business, (ii) investment
and financing and (iii) asset management and advisory
business. As mentioned in its interim report for the six
months ended 30 June 2020, the CMBC Group recorded a
total revenue and other income of approximately HK$509.1
million for the six months ended 30 June 2020. The CMBC
Group has reported a net profit of approximately HK$165.5
million attributable to owners of CMBC. The basic and diluted
earnings per share were both HKO0.35 cent. As at 30 June
2020, the unaudited consolidated net asset value of the CMBC
Group was approximately HK$2,109.9 million. CMBC Group
has not declared an interim dividend for the six months ended
30 June 2020.

In May 2017, China Minsheng Banking Corp. Ltd. became the
ultimate controlling shareholder of CMBC and since then the
CMBC Group started its rapid development. Subsequently in
August 2017 and October 2017, the CMBC Group acquired
the entire issued share capital of CMBC Capital Finance
Limited and CMBC International Capital Limited, respectively
and as a result, the CMBC Group is licensed to engage in type
1 (dealing in securities), type 2 (dealing in futures contracts),
type 4 (advising on securities), type 6 (advising on corporate
finance) and type 9 (asset management) regulated activities,
as well as the licensed money lending business and has all
material licenses required for services expected to be required
by most of its potential clients at current stage.

Leveraging on the strong reputation, expertise and capability
of the China Minsheng Bank, and the licenses it possesses,
the CMBC Group has achieved rapid growth in its financial
performance. The Company has strong confidence in the
experienced and competent management team of CMBC that
they can lead CMBC to perform much better in the future
and improve the earnings. The management of the Group
considers the investment in CMBC is for long term purpose.
However, the Group would not rule out the possibility of
realizing the investments from time to time where to do so
is to be in the best interests of the Group or where the terms
on which such realization to be particularly favorable to the
Group.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group held 1,479,725,829
shares of CMBC. CMBC closed at HK$0.134 as at
31 December 2020 as compared to HK$0.143 as at
31 December 2019.
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China Evergrande New Energy Vehicle Group Limited
(“CENEV”)

CENEV together with its subsidiaries (the “CENEV Group”) are
principally engaged in technology research and development
and production of, and sales services of new energy
vehicles in China and in other countries, as well as health
management businesses including “Internet+” community
health management, international hospitals, elderly care and
rehabilitation in China. As mentioned in its interim report
for the six months ended 30 June 2020, the CENEV Group
recorded a total revenue and other income of approximately
RMB4,499 million for the six months ended 30 June 2020.
The CENEV Group has reported a net loss of approximately
RMB2,273.9 million attributable to owners of CENEV Group.
The basic and diluted loss per share were both RMB26.319
cents. As at 30 June 2020, the unaudited consolidated net
liabilities of the CENEV Group was approximately RMB5,697.5
million. CENEV Group has not declared an interim dividend for
the six months ended 30 June 2020.

CENEV Group’s entry into the new energy vehicle industry
marks an important milestone to actively implement the
strategy of building up a strong technological nation, as well
as to protect the environment and benefit the mass public.
CENEV adheres to its development direction of “achieving
world-leading core technology and world-class product quality
while sustaining significant cost reduction”, and possesses top-
tier technology research & development teams and innovation
capabilities.

CENEV Group also proactively implements the national
strategy of “Healthy China”. Adhering to its corporate vision
of “enhancing the healthy living standards for the general
public”, and centering on the healthcare needs of the general
public, CENEV Group has created a membership mechanism
for all-round healthy life for all-age population, and established
a multi-level hierarchical medical, high-precision health
management, all-age health care and diversified elderly care
system, thereby enhancing the healthy living standards for the
general public.

The Company has confidence in the experienced and
competent management team of CENEV Group that they can
lead CENEV to perform much better in the future and improve
the earnings. The Group would not rule out the possibility of
realizing the investments from time to time where to do so
is to be in the best interests of the Group or where the terms
on which such realization to be particularly favorable to the
Group.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group held 3,106,500 shares of
CENEV. CENEV closed at HK$30.2 as at 31 December 2020.
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Fortune China Bond SP Il

Fortune China Bond SP Il now mainly invests in the US dollar
denominated bonds including the Chengtou Bonds issued by
Chinese institutions. The coupon rate of the bonds range from
4.875% to 8.75% per annum with maturity period range from
three years to perpetual.

The investment objectives of Fortune China Bond SP Il are to
achieve a high rate of return through capital appreciation and
seek fixed income returns with a high degree of security. The
investment manager seek to achieve the investment objectives
by investing in fixed income financial tools, fixed income
instruments traded in the bond market, bond funds, money
market funds, bond initial offerings, structured products and
derivatives.

In recent years, the Chinese government has done a series of
fruitful work in simplifying the overseas debt issuance approval
process and procedures. It has further implemented measures
in the area of bond connection, capital use, and financing
leverage. The Chinese government maintains a relatively loose
regulatory policy for China’s bond market and encourages
Chinese companies to raise funds overseas. This helps to
accelerate the internationalization of Reminbi and Chinese
enterprises.

Since China’s bond vyield is lower than that of last year, the
return for investors is not attractive. Although the Chengtou
Bonds is limited by its lower credit rating, it has local
government’s credit and pays a higher yield. It is expected that
the demand and issuance of the Chengtou Bonds will rise in
the future.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group held 6,999.265 shares
of Fortune China Bond SP Il representing 40.64% of shares of
Fortune China Bond SP 1.
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Details of Charges on Assets

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had pledged certain listed
equity and debt investments of approximately HK$174.2 million
(31 December 2019: HK$505.6 million) to secure the other
borrowings. As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not pledged its
investment property to secure the bank borrowings (31 December
2019: HK$390.0 million).

Employment, Training and Development

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a total of 106 employees.
The Group is committed to staff training and development and
structured training programs for all employees. Remuneration
packages are maintained at a competitive level and reviewed on a
periodic basis. Bonuses and share options are awarded to certain
employees according to individual performance and industry
practice.
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The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries during the year consisted of
securities and futures dealing business, trading of debts and equity
investments and money lending business.

Business Review

A review of the Group’s business during the year, which includes
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the
Group, particulars of important events affecting the Group that
have occurred since the end of the year ended 31 December
2020, an indication of likely future developments in the Group’s
business, an analysis of the Group’s performance using financial
key performance indicators and discussion on the Company’s
environmental policies and performances and the relationships with
its key stakeholders, are included in the “Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis”, “Corporate Governance
Report” and “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this
annual report. The review forms part of this directors’ report.

Results and Dividends

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2020 and
the financial position of the Group at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 71 to 212.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the year.

Summary Financial Information

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for
the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited
financial statements, is set out below. This summary does not form
part of the audited financial statements.

Report of the Dlrectors
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Report of the Directors

ERgWmE

Results

Revenue WA

Profit/(loss) before tax BEaEH/ (B8B)

Tax WA

Profit/(loss) for the year/period ARABEEANRGEREER/
attributable to owners of WEEH/ (BB)
the Company

Assets and liabilities

Total assets BEAE

Total liabilities BREAE

Net assets BEFE

¥E

For the period

from
1Aprilto  Year ended
Year ended 31 December 31 December 31 March

R—-H%
+=Ah Bz
=t-8 =ZA=t-A
BET-A=1+-HLEE ]| ILEE
2020 2019 2018 2017 2017
= e e —Z-ff C"Z-N\§ CZZ-t§ CZZ-tfF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TR TER TR
669,850 947,744 174,454 228,055 (52,128)
35,385 248,519 (58,875) 373,375 (156,397)
(7,627) (40,132) (8,186) (4,520) -
208,387 (67,061) 368,855 (156,397)

EHARK

As at
As at 31 December 31 March
)iy
Rt=A=1+-H =ZA=+-H
2020 2019 2018 2017 2017
== “E-f\fE ZE-N\E ZZ-tf CZZ-tE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx TR TR THER TR
2,552,480 2,427,162 2,890,899 4,228,648 1,424,451
1,275,206 1,211,815 1,042,077 1,504,744 108,872
1,277,274 1,215,347 1,848,822 2,723,904 1,315,579
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Share Capital
Details of movements in the Company’s share capital are set out in
note 34 to the financial statements.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to
existing shareholders.

Purchase, Redemption or Sale of Listed

Securities of the Company

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year.

Distributable Reserves

At 31 December 2020, the Company had no reserves available
for cash distribution and distribution in specie. In addition, the
Company’s share premium account and capital reserve, with an
aggregate balance of approximately HK$4,764,680,000 may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

Major Customers and Suppliers

The aggregate revenue during the year attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers was 49.00% of the Group’s total revenue, of
which 13.99% was made to the largest customer.

There was no single supplier that contributed to 10% or more of the
Group's total purchase during the year.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their close
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the
directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
had any beneficial interest in the above customer or supplier.
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Directors
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report are as follows:

Executive directors:
Mr. Chen Xiaodong
Mr. Xu Ke

Mr. Yu Qingrui

Ms. Lam Hay Yin

Independent non-executive directors:
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong

Mr. Wu Ming

Mr. Liu Hongwei

Pursuant to the provisions of the Company’s bye-laws, Mr. Chen
Xiaodong, Mr. Yu Qingrui and Mr. Wu Ming shall retire at the 2021
annual general meeting (the “2021 AGM”) and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the said meeting.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from each of the independent non-executive directors of the
Company and the Company still considers them to be independent
as at the date of this report pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”).

Directors’ Biographies
Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set out on
pages 60 to 62 of the annual report.

Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of Mr. Chen Xiaodong, Mr. Xu Ke, Mr. Yu Qingrui and Ms. Lam
Hay Yin has a service contract with the Company without any fixed
term.

Each of Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong, Mr. Wu Ming and Mr. Liu Hongwei
has been appointed for a fixed term of one year.

All directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at
the annual general meeting in accordance with the bye-laws of the
Company.

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment, other than statutory compensation.
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Indemnity of Directors

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of the directors of the
Company is currently in force and was in force throughout the year.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

Directors’ Remuneration

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s
board of directors with reference to directors” duties, responsibilities
and performance and the results of the Group.

Directors’ Interests in Transactions,

Arrangements or Contracts

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions”,
no director nor a connected entity of a director had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transactions,
arrangements or contract of significance to the business of the
Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the year.

Connected Transactions

Continuing Connected Transactions: Brokerage Services and
Margin Financing Agreement

On 17 August 2018, CWSI, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, entered into the brokerage services and margin
financing agreement (the “Agreement”) with Mr. Xu Ke, an
executive director and the chief executive officer of the Company,
in relation to the provision of the brokerage services and the margin
financing by CWSI to Mr. Xu on a non-exclusive basis commencing
from 17 August 2018 to 31 December 2020. Pursuant to the
Agreement, Mr. Xu would pay brokerage fees and interests on the
margin financing to CWSI in respect of the provision of brokerage
services and the margin financing by CWSI. Details were set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 17 August 2018.
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The annual caps for the brokerage fees, the maximum outstanding H#ZBHEBEBEABE_T—N\F+=ZA=+—
amount of the margin financing; and the maximum interest amount HBIERBE T -_TF+_A=+—HILMEA
of the margin financing for each of the period commencing from FEXEHSME KLE KREEREFEMESZS
the date of the Agreement to 31 December 2018 and the two years SHELKRBTEMEZSMEZFELRAT
ending 31 December 2020 are as follows:
From
17 August For the year For the year
2018 to ending ending
31 December 31 December 31 December
2018 2019 2020
L B
NA+tRE EBE-T-NF HE-Z-EF
“2-N\§¥ +ZA=t—-H +ZA=t-H
TZA=+—H HEE IEFE
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Brokerage Fees R = 500,000 1,000,000 1,000,000
Maximum outstanding amount of AEERECRMERS TR
the Margin Financing 40,000,000 40,000,000 40,000,000
Maximum interest amount of RECHMEZRBNE
the Margin Financing 2,000,000 4,000,000 4,000,000

Total brokerage fees, maximum outstanding amount of margin
financing and maximum interest amount of the margin financing for
the year ended 31 December 2020 were Nil, HK$13,461,064 and
HK$1,309,085 respectively.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed the continuing connected transactions for the year ended
31 December 2020 and confirmed that the continuing connected
transaction related to the Agreement has been entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreement governing such
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company and the shareholders as a whole.
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The auditor of the Company was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor of the Company has issued his unqualified
letter containing his findings and conclusions in respect of the
aforesaid continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Listing Rule 14A.56.

A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.

Equity-linked Agreements

Other than the share option schemes of the Company as disclosed
under the paragraph headed “Share Option Schemes” in this
directors’ report and note 37 to the financial statements, no equity-
linked agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing
shares or that require the Company to enter into any agreements
that will or may result in the Company issuing shares were entered
into by the Company during the year or subsisted at the end of the
year.

Share Option Schemes

The Company currently operates share option schemes for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
(including but not limited to the directors and employees of the
Group) who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Details of the Company’s share option schemes are set out in note
37 to the financial statements.

After the expiry of the old share option scheme on 27 August 2013,
the Company adopted a new share option scheme on 27 September
2013 in order to provide incentives and rewards to the eligible
participants.

At the 2020 annual general meeting of the Company, the scheme
mandate limit was refreshed and approved by the then shareholders
such that the total number of shares which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of all share options to be granted under the share
option scheme and any other share option scheme(s) as may
from time to time be adopted by the Company must not exceed
1,596,965,046 shares. As at the date of this report, the total number
of shares available for issue under the share option scheme of the
Company was 1,596,965,046 shares, representing approximately
10% of the issued share capital of the Company. The Company may
refresh the scheme mandate limit with its shareholders’ approval
provided that each such refreshment may not exceed 10% of the
shares in issue as at the date of the shareholders” approval.
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A summary of the movements of the share option schemes of the

Company during the year is set out as follows:

AR - AR T 2 SRR B2

Ftan T

Number of Number of
share options Number of Number of share options Exercise
outstanding share options share options outstanding Date of Exercise price of
at 1 January lapsed during exercised during at 31 December grant of period of share options
Name or category of participant 2020 the Year the Year 2020 share options share options” (HK$ per share)
RZ2-2F
R=-B-2F t=A=+-H
—B-AHK  REAFEXMN  RAFEETEY WARTEZ BREGRE
SRENZIRA TRz BREHE BREHRE BRE&A BREZE RTEREED BRETEARO (BRER)
Director
£
Chen Xiaodong 127,120,000 (127,120,000) = = 18/04/2018 18/04/2018 - 10/04/2020 0.1174
REER —Z-)\E “Z-\EMATNEE
mATAR “Z-ZENATA
126,840,000 - - 126,840,000 03/05/2019 03/05/2019 - 02/05/2021 0.0586
—T-NF —E-NFRAZRE
nA=H “E--%1A-H
253,960,000 (127,120,000) - 126,840,000
Xu Ke 127,120,000 (127,120,000) = = 18/04/2018 18/04/2018 - 10/04/2020 0.1174
il —Z-)\F ZZ-N\EMATNEE
MmATN\A “E-RENATA
Yu Qingrui 127,120,000 (127,120,000) = - 18/04/2018 18/04/2018 - 10/04/2020 0.1174
RES It SIS “Z-\FBATNRE
MA+NH ZEIZENATH
126,840,000 = = 126,840,000 03/05/2019 03/05/2019 - 02/05/2021 0.0586
“E-hE “Z-NERAZRE
LA=H “2--%1ACH
253,960,000 (127,120,000) = 126,840,000
Lam Hay Yin 127,120,000 (127,120,000) = - 18/04/2018 18/04/2018 - 10/04/2020 0.1174
gt It It “Z-\FBATNRE
mA+/H “EIRENATH
146,800,000 = = 146,800,000 04/06/2019 04/06/2019 - 03/06/2021 0.046
“E-hE “E-NERRARAE
~AEA “2--%7AzR
273,920,000 (127,120,000) = 146,800,000
Wu Ming 87,000,000 = = 87,000,000 03/05/2019 03/05/2019 - 02/05/2021 0.0586
R “E-hE “Z-NERRZRE
LA=H —Z--%1A-H
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Number of Number of
share options Number of Number of share options Exercise
outstanding share options share options outstanding Date of Exercise price of
at 1 January lapsed during exercised during at 31 December grant of period of share options
Name or category of participant 2020 the Year the Year 2020 share options share options” (HKS$ per share)
R-B-RE
R-B=2% T-A=t-A
-A-BHR  REEEXRN  RAEETRN HATEZ BRETRE
SRERLAER fEzBRERA BREZA BREHE BREZE RTBRREAS BRETEBREY (BRER)
Other employee
AftES
In aggregate 328,398,000 (328,398,000) - - 18/04/2018 18/04/2018 - 10/04/2020 0.1174
ait —TNF “Z-\FBATNRE
mATAR “ZCZENATA
146,800,000 - (146,800,000) - 04/06/2019 04/06/2019 - 03/06/2021 0.046
—2-n% “E-NERAMRE
~AmA “F--%7A=H
441,462,000 - - 441,462,000 20/06/2019 20/06/2019 - 19/06/2021 0.062
“T-NE ZE-NERAZTHE
~AZTH ZE--FRATNA
916,660,000 (328,398,000) (146,800,000) 441,462,000
Management personnel of
service providers
BEMEE 2 EEEAR
In aggregate 127,120,000 (127,120,000 - - 18/04/2018 18/04/2018 - 10/04/2020 0.1174
ay —2-\F  ZZ-/\fmNATNAE
mA+/NE “Z-TERATH
634,200,000 - (220,276,000) 413,924,000 03/05/2019 03/05/2019 - 02/05/2021 0.0586
“T-NE “T-AELAZHE
EA=R “Z--%1ACA
1,030,078,000 - (882,924,000) 147,154,000 20/06/2019 20/06/2019 - 19/06/2021 0.062
BN ZB-NFRA-TARE
~AZTH “2--FXATNA
1,791,398,000 (127,120,000) (1,103,200,000) 561,078,000
Total 43 3,704,018,000 (963,998,000 (1,250,000,000) 1,490,020,000
Notes: Bt

(1) The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant (1) BEREZEERAREAMEERTEAMB AL
until the commencement of the exercise period.

(2) No share options have been granted/cancelled during the year 2) LA o
ended 31 December 2020. i
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Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying

Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2020, the interests of the directors of the
Company in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”)), as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) were as follows:

(1) Long position in ordinary shares of the Company

§$%$Qﬂﬁﬁ&ﬁ@ﬁ62%

RZE-_FEF+_A=1+—H ARAREEFRAK
NAEEGE RBERD (EERESRBEIED
([BHEMBEERGDEXVE) R EEAEEZR
AABRBEESRPEGEOEIHEETUET
2EREMzED SR ELTETAESETE
(XSS ([{ZESFA ) ERNE AR T
NP 2 BRSO

1 RELXFEBRZHR

Percentage* of

Number of the Company’s
ordinary shares issued share
Name of director Capacity interested capital
BEEEZEN (EARATERT
EEnA 8% EBERHE RAE D+
Chen Xiaodong Beneficial owner 108,886,246 0.68%
PREE R BEBEAA
Xu Ke Beneficial owner 1,125,701,571 7.05%
=1 EHBEBA
Interests held by a controlled 2,000,000,000 12.52%
Corporation (Note)
BEBXEBAREAE 2 Eas ()
3,125,701,571 19.57%
Yu Qingrui Beneficial owner 5,610 0.00%
REH BamBEAA
Wu Ming Beneficial owner 3,990,000 0.02%
R ERBEBA

Note: These shares were held by Dragon Regal Holdings Limited
(“Dragon Regal”) which controlled by Xu Ke as to 100%.

* The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares
interested divided by the number of the Company’s issued

shares as at 31 December 2020.
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(2) Long position in underlying shares of the Company -
physically settled unlisted equity derivatives

%mﬂdmemmmm
EEEWE

2 RAELXFEBEROZHFRE —BUEEHXL
TRATETAR

Percentage* of
the underlying
shares over
the Company’s
issued share

Number of
underlying shares
in respect of the
share options

Name of director Capacity granted capital
iRt ERE B IR 404
Fir% 1 AE BE RATE BT

BEEnA 5% R E BRAET DL *

Chen Xiaodong Beneficial owner 126,840,000 0.79%

PREEER EnBEAA

Yu Qingrui Beneficial owner 126,840,000 0.79%

RE& EmlEA A

Lam Hay Yin Beneficial owner 146,800,000 0.92%

B E=EA A

Wu Ming Beneficial owner 87,000,000 0.54%

R4 EmlEA A

Details of the share options granted by the Company are set
out under the section “Share Option Schemes” in this report.

& The percentage represents the number of underlying shares
interested divided by the number of the Company’s issued
shares as at 31 December 2020.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
he/she was deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the
SFO) or which were required to be entered into the register kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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Directors” Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures
Save as disclosed under the headings “Directors’ Interests in
Shares and Underlying Shares of the Company” and “Share Option
Schemes” above and in the share option scheme disclosures in
note 38 to the financial statements, at no time during the year were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company granted to any of the directors or
their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.

Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2020 the following parties had interests of
5% or more in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO, or as the Company is aware:

EERERODIES ZER

B Lt [ESERNARA D RARBRD < #x]
K (BB IR AT &1 TB T A M B 7% ¥R R MY SE38 A BY
BREERBEERBEEEN RAFEAM
BAEMEETIREZTAIEBIARFFL
gl B R NN S A e PN
ZRER - T AR IR AT AR (] S R LS
AR A S E AP B A AW AT LA 2 B - B
FEFANTMEMEABEEAZSERN-

TERRASA ARG RABBR G
ZHER

RIE-_TF+-_A=+—H BEBELARQRARE
E NS GO EBEBEFE ZECMATEH
FIE AR R HE THEFRARE 2R 8
AR P HEB 5% A F 7 e

Long position in ordinary shares of the Company RAEQXREBERZER
Percentage* of
Number of the Company’s
Name of substantial ordinary shares issued share
shareholder Capacity Note interested capital
BEERZ (LAQFEBRT
TERRE®E &1 B E EBERHE RAEE D~
Dragon Regal Beneficial owner (1) 2,000,000,000 12.52%
2 EHZBEBA
Chen Xiangru Beneficial owner 1,489,172,548 9.33%
BoR A 20 EnEAA
Future World Financial Holdings Interest held by a controlled (2) 870,001,316 5.45%
Limited corporation
AR RS RIZERBRERF BEBXEGARHAE 2R
Golden Horse Hong Kong Beneficial owner 870,001,316 5.45%
Investment Limited BEREAA
THEBREBRAT
Notes: Bt EE
(1) These shares were held by Dragon Regal which was controlled by (1) ZERMHBERTE  MERBBRWAEFE Bt

Xu Ke. Accordingly, Xu Ke was deemed to be interested in these
2,000,000,000 shares held by Dragon Regal under Part XV of the
SFO. The interest of Dragon Regal is also disclosed as the interest of
Xu Ke in the above section headed “Directors’ interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares of the Company”.

(2)  These shares were held by Golden Horse Hong Kong Investment
Limited which was controlled by Future World Financial Holdings
Limited.

. The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares interested

divided by the number of the Company’s issued shares as at
31 December 2020.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, no person, other
than the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in
the section headed “Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying
Shares of the Company” above, had an interest or a short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336
of the SFO.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, as at the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of this report, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float.

Directors’ Interests in a Competing Business

During the year and up to the date of this report, no director is
considered to have interests in a business which competes or is
likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses
of the Group, as defined in the Listing Rules.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations

As far as the directors are aware, during the year and up to the date
of this report, the Group has complied in material respects with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on its
business and operations.

Corporate Governance

Details of the corporate governance practices of the Company are
set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” in
this annual report.
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Auditors

Ernst & Young has resigned as the auditor of the Company with
effect from 15 November 2019 as Ernst & Young and the Company
could not reach a consensus on the audit service fee regarding the
annual audit for the financial year ended 31 December 2019. The
Board, with the recommendation from the Audit Committee, has
resolved to appoint Moore Stephens CPA Limited (“Moore”) as the
new auditor of the Company with effect from 15 November 2019 to
fill the casual vacancy following the resignation of Ernst & Young.

Moore will hold office until the conclusion of the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting. Moore will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for reappointment. A resolution for the reappointment
of Moore as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other change of the
Company’s auditors in any of the preceding three years.

On behalf of the Board
Chen Xiaodong
Chairman

Hong Kong
26 March 2021
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Corporate Governance Re

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board recognizes the importance of good corporate governance
to the Company’s healthy growth and has devoted considerable
efforts to formulating and implementing corporate governance
practices appropriate to the Company’s needs.

Throughout the year under review, the Company has complied
with the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the “CG Code”) in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. Key
corporate governance principles and practices of the Company are
summarized below.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the
Board

Direction and control of Company business are vested in the
Board. The Board establishes policies, strategies and plans for the
development of Company business, and provides leadership in the
creation of value for shareholders. All directors have carried out
their duties in good faith, in compliance with applicable laws and
regulations, taking decisions objectively and acting in the interests
of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

The Board takes responsibility for all major matters of the Company,
including approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, risk management and internal control
systems, material transactions (particularly those involving conflict
of interests), financial information, appointment of directors and
other significant financial and operational matters.

All directors have timely access to all relevant information as well
as the advice and services of the Company Secretary and senior
management of the Company, with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures and all applicable laws and regulations are followed.
Any director may request independent professional advice in
appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expenses, upon
reasonable request made to the Board.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of
the Company are led by the Executive Committee and senior
management of the Company. The Board has delegated a schedule
of responsibilities to these officers for implementing Board
decisions. The Board reviews the delegated functions and work
tasks regularly. The aforesaid officers have to obtain Board approval
prior to entering any significant transactions.
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Board Composition
The composition of the Board and the Board Committees as at the
date of this annual report is as follows:

Board of Directors

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Xiaodong (Chairman of the Board)
Mr. Xu Ke (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Yu Qingrui

Ms. Lam Hay Yin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong

Mr. Wu Ming

Mr. Liu Hongwei

Executive Committee

Mr. Chen Xiaodong (Chairman)
Mr. Xu Ke

Mr. Yu Qingrui

Ms. Lam Hay Yin

Audit Committee

Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong (Chairman)
Mr. Wu Ming

Mr. Liu Hongwei

Remuneration Committee

Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong (Chairman)
Ms. Lam Hay Yin

Mr. Liu Hongwei

Nomination Committee

Mr. Chen Xiaodong (Chairman)
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong

Mr. Liu Hongwei

The biographical details of the directors and the relationships
among the members of the Board are disclosed in the section
headed “Biographical Details of Directors” in this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board at all times
met the requirement of the Listing Rules of having a minimum of
three independent non-executive directors (representing at least
one-third of the Board) with one of them possessing appropriate
professional qualifications and accounting and related financial
management expertise.
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The composition of the Board reflects the necessary balance of
skills and experience appropriate for the business requirement
and objectives of the Group and for the exercise of independent
judgement.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all independent non-executive directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules.

Chairman and Chief Executive

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. To achieve clear division of
responsibilities between the management of the Board and day-to-
day management of the business and hence to ensure balance of
power and authority, there is separation of duties for the Chairman
and Chief Executive of the Company.

Currently, the positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
are held by Mr. Chen Xiaodong and Mr. Xu Ke respectively. The
Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning and leadership of the Board, whereas the Chief
Executive Officer focuses on the Company’s business development
and daily management and operations generally. The respective
responsibilities between the Chairman of the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer have been clearly established and set out in
writing. The separation of roles would ensure a balance of power
and authority, and strengthen the governance function and business
development of the Group.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The executive directors of the Company, namely, Mr. Chen
Xiaodong, Mr. Xu Ke, Mr. Yu Qingrui and Ms. Lam Hay Yin, have
not been appointed for a specific term but they are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at the Company’s annual
general meeting in accordance with the Company’s bye-laws. The
Company has also issued a letter of appointment to each of the
independent non-executive directors of the Company for a term of
1 year.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Company’s bye-laws, Mr. Chen
Xiaodong, Mr. Yu Qingrui and Mr. Wu Ming shall retire at the 2021
AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
2021 AGM. The Board recommended the re-election of the above
retiring directors at the 2021 AGM.
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Training and Continuing Development of Directors

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Company.

All directors of the Company receive a comprehensive induction
on his/her appointment to ensure appropriate understanding of
the business and operations of the Group and full awareness of
director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and relevant statutory requirements. Such induction is normally
supplemented with visits to the Group’s key plant sites and/or
meetings with the senior management of the Company.

The existing directors are continually updated with legal and
regulatory developments, business and market changes to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
Continuing briefings and professional development for directors are
arranged whenever necessary. In addition, reading materials on new
or changes to salient laws and regulations applicable to the Group
are provided to the directors from time to time for their studying
and reference. All directors are encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company’s expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company (i) has
organized briefings conducted by the Company Secretary for all its
directors on corporate governance and updates on the Listing Rules
amendments and (ii) has provided reading materials on regulatory
updates to all the directors for their reference and studying.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct regarding
directors’ dealings in the Company’s securities (the “Own Code”)
on terms no less exacting than the Model Code. Specific enquiry
has been made of all the Company’s directors and all have
confirmed that they have complied with the required standards set
out in the Model Code and the Own Code throughout the period
from 1 January 2020 to the date of this report.

The Company has also established written guidelines on terms
no less exacting than the Model Code (the “Employees Written
Guidelines”) for securities transactions by relevant employees of the
Group who are considered to be likely to possess inside information
in relation to the Company or its securities. No incident of non-
compliance with the Employees Written Guidelines was noted by
the Company.

In case the Company is aware of any restricted period for dealings
in the Company’s securities, the Company will notify its directors
and relevant employees in advance.

34  Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited FiZ &£ BEZERER L =

EEYEIRBHRE
EETH TRIEARDNEENME  HRA
ARMEESR R EDRRE -

ARAERBEENHEZEROBEBFZEN
ABIEF - ARERTE D T RASRE 2 E R 2E -
ARTE2BREEMARAREREERE T ZE
EREMEH -FHEAREIATERESEAR
SEZEIERESWE RERRBESRERA
EgmE-

REESETTHEEZZMEERTE EHET
SRR ER BRNMEMNEFOME LK
BEUNRRNEHETS CERBE RIS R/
RAGREFERRESHES R[N RIR
HEXZR- MMV BARAKRENERLER
ERHIBRERNEEE NS IREHEES
AHRERER 2 -ARAZBEREST2M
HEAEIIRE  BERBEANRAEE-

REBEE-_ZT-_ZF+-_A=+—HLEFE KR
A EEBEATWERCEE AR LEMARAE
FEENRFTERARRARIZBESEENREN
gRHEMEBESRERHEUEESRTERY
BEER UHES2HERES-

HEXZNERESTA
ARAERMEAGERESETARAE
ZXHWITRTA([ARF TR  EARFKTER
BREFR -ARFEME2BESFLARSH
HeRBESOERRENR_FT_FTF—HA—H
EAREANBMEA-—BEETREETYRAG T
AIFF SR E IR L -

ARBANERBARAREEERAARARE
EHZABBENAEEEBEENEEBRK
FETEFRXNERES (BEEE@EES)
HAFRR A BERIREST Al R AR BB T ET
ERE®EESIMER-



Directors’ Attendance Records

The attendance records of each director at the regular Board
meetings, Board Committee meetings and the general meetings of
the Company held during the year ended 31 December 2020 is set
out below:
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Attendance/Number of Meetings

HEREEERY

Audit  Remuneration Nomination Special

Committee Committee Committee Annual General General

Board Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting

ERZEEE FHEES REZEE S BRE

Name of Director B Ezges = E=f =E BERE KERE

Mr. Chen Xiaodong BERLE 4/4 - - 11 171 11

Mr. Xu Ke 2 pbit 4/4 - - - 0/1 0/

Mr. Yu Qingrui REHELE 4/4 - - - 01 0/1

Ms. Lam Hay Yin M2+ 4/4 = 11 = 11 11

Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong BERLE 4/4 2/2 11 171 171 11

Mr. Wu Ming RELE 4/4 2/2 - - 01 0/1

Mr. Liu Hongwei ARERE 4/4 2 1l ”n 01 0/1
In addition, Mr. Chen Xiaodong, the chairman of the Board, held a  }t; 4} %@Eﬁi@W%%AIfﬁﬂﬁﬁ%iﬁiﬁ

meeting with the independent non-executive directors without the
presence of executive directors during the year under review.

BOARD COMMITTEES AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board has established four Board committees, namely, the
Executive Committee, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees have been established with defined written terms
of reference, which are available on the Stock Exchange’s
website (www.hkexnews.hk) and on the Company’s website
(www.cwghl.com) (except for the written terms of reference of
the Executive Committee which is available to shareholders upon
request). All the Board committees should report to the Board on
their decisions or recommendations made.

Executive Committee

Currently, the Executive Committee comprises all the four executive
directors of the Company, namely, Mr. Chen Xiaodong, Mr. Xu Ke,
Mr. Yu Qingrui and Ms. Lam Hay Yin. The Chairman of the Board,
Mr. Chen Xiaodong, also acts as the Chairman of this committee.
The Executive Committee operates as a general management
committee under the direct authority of the Board to increase the
efficiency for business decision making. It monitors the execution of
the Company’s strategic plans and operations of all business units
of the Group and discusses and makes decisions on matters relating
to the management and day-to-day operations of the Group.

TIRTEERIT - RUBRTERTHEZEH -

EEZEEREXEAR

BEEQERUYNEEEZE S RITEES

ERLEES FHNZESRIREELET UEE
ARARIBFEFAZER FTEEELZEHER
EMATEZBESENR - EMATE 2 B ESE
A] B A BT A Ih (www.hkexnews.hk) K 4 A &) 49
U (www.cwghl.com) & (ITZ E g EHB#E
HEKRIN ETERRERREHR) MBEEEE
BEBAREER AR EEEZRNEEDER-

BITEES

Bl BITRBERARRE2MOBHNITESTH
B BIBREBEIRSE A IR LA RE B AL RAM
Bzt BEFETFEMRBRRALETEEIZEZER
EXFE-ATLRBEER EGEETTERRE
T2 REEZBEET BARBEKREKZ
xﬁlfoﬁtﬁé,\amﬁ AR B REEFT B Z BT A
RAEBE2HEBEM 2 EE IRAEEER
&AWL ERBEEETH R RELRE

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F # 35



Corporate Governance Report
AN A SR A
TXRERME

Audit Committee

Currently, the Audit Committee comprises of three members,
namely, Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong (Chairman), Mr. Wu Ming and Mr. Liu
Hongwei, all of whom are independent non-executive directors.
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong possesses the appropriate accounting and
financial management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of
the Listing Rules. None of the members of the Audit Committee is a
former partner of the Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are to (i) review the
financial statements and reports and consider any significant or
unusual items raised by the financial officers of the Group or
external auditors before submission to the Board; (ii) review and
monitor the relationship with the external auditors by referencing
to the work performed by the auditors, their fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditors; and
(iii) review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee
performed the following works:

- Reviewed and discussed the Company’s financial statements,
results announcements and reports for the year ended
31 December 2019 and for the six months ended 30
June 2020, the financial reporting, the related accounting
principles, practices and compliance procedures of the
Company;

- Discussed and recommended the re-appointment of external
auditors; and

- Reviewed the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group.

The external auditors were invited to attend the Audit Committee
meetings without the presence of executive directors to discuss with
the Audit Committee issues arising from the audit and financial
reporting matters. The Company’s annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2020 have also been reviewed by the Audit
Committee. There is no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee regarding the re-appointment of external auditors.
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Remuneration Committee

Currently, the Remuneration Committee comprises both executive
directors and independent non-executive directors of the Company,
namely, Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong (Chairman), Ms. Lam Hay Yin and
Mr. Liu Hongwei.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee are to (i) make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s remuneration
policy and structure and the remuneration packages of directors and
senior management (i.e. the model described in the code provision
B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code is adopted); (ii) review and approve
performance-based remuneration by referencing to corporate
goals and objectives; and (iii) establish a formal and transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and structure
to ensure that no director or any of his/her associates will
participate in deciding his’/her own remuneration, the remuneration
of which will be determined with reference to the performance
of the individual and the Group as well as market practice and
conditions.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Remuneration
Committee has performed the following works:

- Reviewed and discussed the remuneration policy and
structure and the remuneration packages of the directors and
senior management of the Group.

The senior management of the Company are the directors of the
Company. Details of the remuneration of each director of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note
8 to the financial statements contained in this annual report.

Nomination Committee

Currently, the Nomination Committee comprises both executive
directors and independent non-executive directors of the Company,
namely, Mr. Chen Xiaodong (Chairman), Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong and
Mr. Liu Hongwei.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee are to (i) review the
structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the Board on a regular basis and recommend
any changes to the Board; (ii) identify qualified and suitable
individuals to become Board members and select and make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals
nominated for directorships; (iii) assess the independence of
independent non-executive directors of the Company, having
regard to the requirements under the Listing Rules; and (iv) make
recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to
the appointment or re-appointment of directors and succession
planning for directors in particular, the Chairman and the Chief
Executive of the Company.
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The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board and sees increasing diversity at Board level as
an essential element in maintaining the Company’s competitive
advantage. Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy has been adopted
by the Company, the Nomination Committee is responsible for
reviewing annually the structure, size and composition of the Board
and where appropriate, make recommendations on changes to
the Board to complement the Company’s corporate strategy and
to ensure that the Board maintains a balanced diverse profile. In
relation to reviewing and assessing the Board composition, the
Nomination Committee is committed to diversity at all levels and
will consider a number of aspects, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and regional and industry
experience.

The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives that are relevant to the Company’s business growth
and is also committed to ensuring that recruitment and selection
practices at all levels (from the Board downwards) are appropriately
structured so that a diverse range of candidates are considered. The
Board will consider setting measurable objectives to implement the
Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to time
to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made
towards achieving those objectives.

The Company has also adopted the Director Nomination Policy
which sets out the criteria and process and the Board succession
planning considerations in relation to nomination and appointment
of directors of the Company, and aims to ensure that the Board
has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the Company and the continuity of the Board and
appropriate leadership at Board level.

The Director Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the
suitability and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed
candidate, including but not limited to the following: character and
integrity; qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy; diversity in all aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age (18 years or above), cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service; requirements of independent non-
executive directors on the Board and independence of the proposed
independent non-executive directors in accordance with the Listing
Rules; and commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interest to discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board
committee(s) of the Company.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Nomination
Committee performed the following works:

- Reviewed the Board Diversity Policy, the structure, size and
composition of the Board to ensure that it has a balance
of expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the
requirements for the business of the Group;

- Considered and recommended the re-election of the retiring
directors standing for re-election at the 2020 annual general
meeting of the Company; and

—  Assessed the independence of independent non-executive
directors of the Company.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board has reviewed
the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices,
training and continuous professional development of directors
and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance
of the Model Code and Employees Written Guidelines, and the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2020.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other disclosures required under
the Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory requirements.
The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company’s financial statements, which
are put to the Board for approval.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness on
an ongoing basis. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Board is fully responsible for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take to achieve
the Company’s strategic objectives, and for establishing and
maintaining appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems to safeguard shareholders’ investments and the
Group's assets.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in overseeing the design
and implementation of the risk management and internal control
systems. The Company has developed and adopted different risk
management procedures and guidelines. Self-evaluation would be
conducted each year to confirm that the Company has properly
complied with the risk management and internal control policy.
All divisions would conduct internal control assessment to identify
risks factors with potential impact on the Group’s business. The
management would assess the likelihood of risk occurrence,
monitor the progress of risk management and report to the Board
and the Audit Committee on the findings and effectiveness of the
systems.

The Group has developed its disclosure policy to provide a general
guide to the Company’s directors, officers, senior management and
relevant employees in handling confidential information, monitoring
information disclosure and responding to enquiries.

The Company’s internal audit staff has performed independent
review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems. Key issues such as accounting
practices and all material controls were examined. The relevant
findings and recommendations are provided to the Board and the
Audit Committee.
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The Board, as assisted by the Audit Committee and the
management, has reviewed the report from the management and
the internal audit findings, and reviewed the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group, including the
financial, operational and compliance controls for the year ended
31 December 2020. The annual review also covered areas on
financial reporting, internal audit function, staff qualification,
experiences and relevant resources. The Board considered that such
systems are adequate and effective and ongoing review of the same
nature would be conducted in subsequent years.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities for the Company’s financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out in the section headed
“Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report. During the
year ended 31 December 2020 the remuneration paid/payable to
the external auditor of the Company, Moore Stephens CPA Limited,
is set out below:
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Remuneration

Nature of Services (HK$)
PR 14 & ¥ (BT
Audit services EET RS 1,826,000
Non-audit services (Note) FEFE A RS (BFE) 320,000
TOTAL: M5t 2,146,000
Note: The non-audit services provided mainly included other assurance  [fisE: BRHZIEFARBEZRREEMEZRS &
services and tax compliance services. HIAE RARTS -
COMPANY SECRETARY NEAMWE
During the year ended 31 December 2020, Mr. Szeto Pui Tong, REBEZT_TF+= ﬂ T—RIEFE:
Patrick, the Company Secretary, has taken no less than 15 hours of ~ #/2& & fE)H i &£ £ B #2158 J\Eﬂé{ﬂiﬁ
relevant professional trainings to update his skills and knowledge. AR RS AT R R RE R A8 -
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTORS

The Company believes that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
investors’ understanding of the Group’s business performance
and strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance of
transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information, which
will enable shareholders and investors to make the best investment
decisions.

The Company maintains a website at “www.cwghl.com” as a
communication platform with shareholders and investors, where
information and updates on the Group’s business operations,
developments and financial information are available for public
access. Shareholders and investors may send written enquiries or
requests to the Company using the below contact details:

Address: Unit 6706B—-08A, Level 67, International Commerce
Centre, 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Department of Investor
Relations)

Fax: (852) 2865 4654

Email: info@cwghl.com

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the Board and the shareholders. The
Chairman of the Board as well as chairmen of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee and, in their
absence, other members of the respective committees, will normally
attend the annual general meeting and other shareholders” meetings
to answer questions.

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintains regular dialogue with institutional investors and analysts
to keep them posted of the Company’s developments.

POLICIES RELATING TO SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has in place a Shareholders” Communication Policy
to ensure that shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately
addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure its
effectiveness.

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of
dividends. Depending on the financial conditions of the Company
and the Group and the conditions and factors as set out in the
Dividend Policy, dividends may be proposed and/or declared by the
Board during a financial year and any final dividend for a financial
year will be subject to the shareholders” approval.
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at shareholder
meetings, including the election of individual directors. The
Company’s shareholders may convene a special general meeting or
put forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings as follows:

(M

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-
up capital of the Company at the date of deposit of the
requisition may request the Board to convene a special
general meeting pursuant to Clause 71 of the Company’s
bye-laws by sending a written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary at the Company’s head office in Hong
Kong. The objects of the meeting must be stated in the written
requisition.

Shareholder(s) representing not less than one-twentieth of
the total voting rights at the date of the requisition or not
less than 100 shareholders may put forward a proposal at a
shareholders” meeting, pursuant to the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda by sending a written requisition to the Board or
the Company Secretary at the Company’s head office in Hong
Kong. The proposal should be stated in the written requisition
and such written requisition should be submitted as early
as practicable to enable the Company to make necessary
arrangement (in case of a requisition requiring notice of a
resolution, not less than six weeks before the meeting; and in
case of any other requisition, not less than one week before
the meeting).

If a shareholder wishes to propose a person other than a
retiring director for election as a director of the Company at
a general meeting, the shareholder (other than the person
to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the
general meeting shall send a written notice, duly signed by
the shareholder, of his/her intention to propose such person
for election and also a notice signed by the person to be
proposed of his/her willingness to be elected. These notices
should be lodged at the Company’s head office in Hong Kong,
or the office of the Company’s branch share registrar. The
period for lodgement of such notices shall commence on the
day after the dispatch of the notice of such general meeting
and end 7 days prior to the date of such general meeting.
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For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by
law.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its bye-laws. An up-to-date version of the Company’s
bye-laws is also available on the websites of the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.cwghl.com).

All resolutions put forward at shareholder meetings will be voted
by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange after each
shareholders’” meeting.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Refo

Scope and Reporting Period

This is the fourth Environmental, Social, and Governance (“ESG”)
report of Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”,
and collectively with its subsidiaries referred as the “Group”),
highlighting ESG performance, with disclosure reference made to
the ESG Reporting Guide as described in Appendix 27 of the Listing
Rules and Guidance set out by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

The principal activities of the Group are engagement in financial
investments, trading and money lending business. This ESG report
covers the Group’s overall environmental and social performances
of its major business operations in its offices in Hong Kong and
Shanghai of the People’s Republic of China (with a total floor
area of 1,439 m?), from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020,
unless otherwise stated. As compared to 2019, the reporting
scope is the same. As the office in Sheung Shui, Hong Kong, had
ceased operation in October 2019, the report no longer includes
information on the Sheung Shui Office.

The Group’s Future Development and Commitments
With rising emphases on developing sustainably, there comes with
opportunities and risks associated with the environmental and
social discourse. In face of such uncertainty, the Group will actively
adjust its development plans according to the market trends. It
hopes to better manage ESG-related risks in relation to future
business development and operate with high ethical standards.
With a long-term goal of expanding its operations, the Group will
make use of opportunities and avoid risky investments to achieve
an effective while stable business growth.

Stakeholder Engagement and Materiality

In order to identify the most significant aspects for the Group to
report on for this ESG report, the Group regularly collects views
and discusses ESG matters with stakeholders through a variety of
channels, such as engagement sessions including routine meetings
and annual general meetings. When issues have been identified,
they are discussed as an issue of the corporate culture. The Group
also emphasises on the importance of paying attention to issues and
giving appropriate response to the arising problems. Solutions to
relevant topics are regularly explored on such that relevant issues
can be addressed and resolved.
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During the Reporting Period, the Group has specifically engaged
board members, senior management, frontline employees, and
business partners to gain further insights on ESG aspects they find
material and relevant challenges that they may induce. A materiality
assessment has then been produced according to the engagement
as follows.

RBEMA RAEBCEFIEEFENE SR
EEABR RIRBREREBBHETER UE
ERFEERSBEENRE HERERTHMNE
—HRBANRZENEA S S EMRBEE
WREBBIERERIATHOEZ TG -

Materiality of Different Topics from Stakeholder Engagement
N EEESRNEESENE RN

P

»
»
HIGHER

(17

© 00 .
Q10

m
®

N2

External Interests
B

AN
LEE
©

LOWER 1&

@

LOWER &

HIGHER 5

v

Internal Assessment on Importance to Business

HEBER A RRRHE

46  Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited FZE£BZREMRA A



Environmental

Environmental, Social and Governance Rejport

Labour Practices

RIE e RERRE

Operational Practices

B5 BIER HEER
1 Energy 8 Employment 19  Risk Management
1T BER 8 (Ef® 19 RRBREE
2 Water 9 Occupational Health and Safety 20 Protection of Client’s rights
2 KER 9 BERREZE 20 REEPER
3 Air Emission 10 Development and Training 21 Prevention of Malpractice
3 REEHEMX 10 BERERE 21 AR
4 Waste and Effluent 11 Labour Standards
4 J5IKEEY) 11 TR
5 Other Raw Materials Consumption 12 Supply Chain Management
5  HMRMEDERE 12 HERER
6 Environmental Protection Measures 13 Intellectual Property
6 IRREIE 13 AEERE
7 Climate Change 14  Data Protection
7 RIERE( 14 ERRE
15 Customer Service
15 BEPFR%
16 Product/Service Quality
16 Ef/RBEEE
17 Anti-corruption
17 RES
18  Community Investment
18 HEKRE

According to the assessment, the five most material topics to the RIEFEH AHEAEESZEEZNRAEAEAEAE

Group are therefore,

1. Occupational Health and Safety
2. Employment Policies

3. Development and Training

4. Data Protection

5. Product/Service Quality

The Group aims to keep close communication with its stakeholders
for the identified aspects and continue to improve its ESG
performance. The Group also hopes to have better management
on ESG-related risks for future business development. In alignment
with the Group's vision on sustainability, the business will continue
to operate with high ethical standards and provide sustainable

returns to stakeholders.

Stakeholders’ Feedback

The Company welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on its
environmental, social and governance approach and performance.
Please give your suggestions or share your views with the Group via

email at info@cwghl.com.
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48

Environmental
A1. Emissions

Due to the nature of the business, the Group’s

operations are office based and their related

environmental impact was very minimal. The Group did

not note any cases of material non-compliance relating

to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharge into

water and land, and the generation of hazardous and

non-hazardous waste as required by the applicable laws

and regulations.

Al.1 Air Emissions
During the Reporting Period, there was 1 group-
owned passenger car. It contributed to 0.08 kg
of SOx, 42.86 kg of NOx, and 1.27 kg of PM
emission.

A1.2 Greenhouse Gas Emissions
During the Reporting Period, 79.33 tonnes of
carbon dioxide equivalent (tCO,e) greenhouse
gases (“GHG”, mainly carbon dioxide, methane
and nitrous oxide) were emitted from the Group’s
operations. This is a 13% decrease from last year.
The intensity was 0.04 tCO,e per m* of total office
area. See Table 1 for the detail breakdown of GHG
contribution.
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Table 1 Sources of GHG RURERERIR
Emission Total Emission
Scope of GHG Emission Sources (in tCO,e) (in %)
P E
BEREHEREE BEHUR (M-S BREER BTN E (%)
Scope 1
gE
Direct Emissions Combustion of petrol in 13.91 17.5
group-owned vehicles
=R:371 37 SE B RERTHRE
Scope 2
gE2
Energy Indirect Emission Purchased electricity 62.94 79.3
BE IR R BE L BEE
Scope 3
EE3
Other Indirect Emissions Paper waste disposal 0.13 3.2
H B PR BREE
Electricity used for processing 0.06

fresh water and sewage
by third party handler

F=RIEBRIERKR

EIKFTRE N
Business air travels 2.29
BT IRTT
Total 79.33 100
et
Note: Emission factors were made reference to MizE: BREBHAIN HHEFTD
Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules and their referred DEEBBMERIMERRA
documentation as set out by The Stock Exchange Al ETRAIME R
of Hong Kong Limited, unless stated otherwise. H Pt s -
A1.3. Hazardous Waste Al3. BEEZEY
During the Reporting Period, 18.14 kg of hardware RBERAN PRRAEABELEE
waste from printers and electronic equipment were H18 14T RATENR R EFRE
generated from daily office operation. 1 REY) ©
A1.4. Non-hazardous Waste Al 4 EEZREEY
The Group’s operations generated approximately RNEBEBEBEL Q77 EE R
77 tonnes of non-hazardous waste, which mainly ZEY TEZ2RERVEENRE
included food waste and packaging, newspaper K -BRERPAEL-
and office wastepaper.
Al1.5. Measures to Mitigate Emissions A5 JH L BB 15 5
The Group’s operations resulted in insignificant REBELZEELNPRLTE
emissions. The main source of emission was RBERHEERBRRPAER
electricity used for daily office operations, details FHEERE FUABHERE
of which will be presented in section A2. In terms A21G2% B8 E - NEEE
of vehicles, the Group prioritises electric cars HERELEEREH AR HRE
when it has to rent one, followed by fuel efficient B FY) /R B - AN 52 B 5 BB AR It U
ones. The Group hopes that this can contribute to DEFHPERE -

minimising the amount of emission produced.
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Al.6.

Waste Reduction and Initiatives

The Group generated very minimal hazardous
waste from its office operations. They were
generated only when replacement was needed.
Waste lamps were collected by the Management
Office, and waste printing cartridges and other
hardware wastes were sent back to suppliers.
Non-hazardous waste from the Group is collected
and handled by the Management Office. Paper is
used for daily office operations such as documents
printing and deliverables packaging. Paper saving
initiatives are encouraged among employees, such
as adopting double-sided printing and printing
with single-sided used paper. The Group tries to
recycle paper used whenever possible in attempt
to reduce waste disposed of at landfills.

With the principles of “reduce, reuse and
recycle”, the Group centralised stationary supply
to utilise stationaries and avoid wastage. It
returns used cartridges to suppliers and purchases
remanufactured toner cartridges for its multi-
functional devices. Reusable dishes and tableware
instead of disposable ones are used in office.
Other wastes including unneeded computers
and furniture are donated to Caritas Hong Kong
whenever possible.

A2. Use of Resources
The Group has not established policies on the efficient
use of resources. Nevertheless, employees are reminded
of resource conservation practices in offices.

A2.1.

A2.2.
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Energy Consumption

A total of 159,374 kWh of energy was consumed
by the Group for its operations during the
Reporting Period. Electricity was the major source
of energy for the Group, generating 112,342 kWh
for its offices’” lighting, office equipment, and other
miscellaneous items necessary for maintaining the
offices” daily operations. The rest of the Group’s
energy source was petrol used for fuelling its
passenger car. 5,160 litres of petrol were used,
generating approximately 47,032 kWh of energy.

Water Consumption

The Shanghai office consumed 107.55 m® of water
during the Reporting Period, the water intensity for
it was 0.12 m*/m? of office area.
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A2.3.

A2.4.

A2.5.

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

Energy Use Efficiency Initiatives

To reduce electricity consumption, employees
are reminded to turn off office lights, computers,
printers, and air conditioners when leaving office.
Energy efficient office equipment are also used
when possible, and older electronic equipment
are to be gradually replaced by more efficient
ones. Air conditioners are defaulted to follow
temperatures as required by relevant regulations
by authorities to reduce energy use.

Water Use Efficiency Initiatives

Water was supplied and managed by the building
management of all offices and there was no
issue in sourcing water that is fit for purpose.
At the Group’s office in Shanghai, there is a 5%
water reduction target within the next ten years.
To achieve the target, flow controllers had been
installed in the office buildings’ restrooms. The
office will also promote water conservation more
actively to achieve further results.

Packaging Materials

The Group’s operations did not involve any
regular use of packaging materials. When there is
such usage once in a while, card boxes made by
recycled materials are used.

The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group is committed to conducting its business
responsibly, ensuring that its business does not
contribute to significant adverse impact on the
environment and society while bringing sustainable
growth and profit.

A3.1. Significant Impacts of Activities on the Environment

Although the Group’s business does not generate
significant adverse environmental impact as
compared with businesses in other sectors, the
Group is committed to reducing GHG emissions
and preserving natural resources. With electricity
consumption as its main source of GHG emission,
and printing practices as another source of
emission and waste, the Group frequently reminds
employees to practise energy and resources-saving
habits in offices.
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Social
Employment and Labour Practices

1.

B1.

Employment

The Group continues to invest in capacity building
among local human resource, following local and
national laws, and adopting best practices. The
Group did not note any cases of material non-
compliance in relation to employment during the
Reporting Period.

As of 31 December 2020, the Group had a total
of 106 employees in its ICC and Shanghai offices.
The number of employees increased by 16% as
compared to the previous year. See Figure 1 for
the total workforce with yearly comparison, and
Table 2 for the detail breakdown of the workforce.

Figure 1 Total Workforce by Year
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Table 2 Total Workforce Breakdown

Total Workforce as of 31 December
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Environmental, Social and Governance Refort
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By Employee Category
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AIAR M EL A (B B
By Age Group
RERMAR 82
18-25
18ZE255%
26-35
26%355%
36-45
36E455%
46-55
46555
56 or above

56558k A E

A total of 22 employees left the Group during the Reporting
Period, which gave a turnover rate of 20.8%. The Group
regularly reviews salary remuneration and benefits to retain
talents and stay attractive and competitive in the market.
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B1.2

Competitive Compensation and Benefits

The Group abides by all applicable
employment and labour related laws of
Hong Kong and Mainland China. Employees
are provided with attractive salary with
year-end double pay. Salary is reviewed
on a periodic basis with considerations
given to employees’ performance during
the year, market rate of the industry, profit
result, and the projected earning ability of
the Group. Individual salary adjustment in
respect of promotion, confirmation, transfer,
re-classification etc. are recommended by
the Department Head in consultation with
the Administration Department. For certain
job positions, the Group pays commission
and incentives in line with trade practices
and management policies. Various types
of leave, including annual leaves, sick
leaves, maternity leaves, paternity leaves
and jury services leave, are also provided.
Apart from the Mandatory Provident Fund
(“MPF”) scheme, employees are entitled to
medical benefits scheme and employees’
compensation insurance. The standard
working hours are 8.5 hours per day and 5
days per week.

There were no major changes in policies
relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunities, diversity
and anti-discrimination during the Reporting
Period.

Promotion, Transfer and Dismissal

The Group aims to provide channels of
promotion and promote employees based
on their performance, qualification, integrity
and ability. Promotion will be offered with
considerations of the Group’s operation,
competence, potential and interpersonal
skills of the employee and recommendations
given by the employee’s Department
Manager. The Group reserves the right to
transfer any employee to other locations
or opportunities to perform jobs of similar
nature if necessary.
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B1.3

B1.4

Environmental, Social and Governance Rejport

Employees who completed the probation
period and wish to resign must notify
in writing to the Department Manager
with at least one month’s notice. Specific
notification periods for different positions
are stipulated in the appointment letters. For
employees who fall under circumstances
including redundancy, termination with or
without prejudice, they shall be provided
with one month’s notice or one month’s
salary in lieu of notice if their employment is
to be terminated.

Equal Opportunity

The Group provides equal opportunities for
employees in respect of recruitment, training
and development, job advancement, and
compensation and benefits. Employees are
not discriminated against or deprived of
such opportunities based on gender, ethnic,
background, religion, colour, age, marital
status, family status, retirement, disability,
pregnancy or any other discrimination
prohibited by applicable laws of Hong Kong
and Mainland China.

Employee Communication

To enhance employees’ sense of belonging,
the Group regularly organises gatherings,
such as annual dinners and Christmas parties
for its employees. During the Reporting
Period, the Group arranged activities such
as dragon boat rowing and curling for
employees to help create a bond and team
spirit outside of workplace and raise their
sense of belonging.

Employee Health and Safety
The Group complies with the Occupational Safety

and Health Ordinance, Chapter 509 of the Laws of
Hong Kong and Law of the PRC on the Prevention
and Control of Occupational Diseases, and no
material non-compliance with related laws and
regulations was noted.
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As employees spend most of the time on working
with the computers, the Group has installed eye
protectors on monitors to reduce the chance of
eye damage that may be caused by computer
screens. Employees are also reminded to maintain
good posture and appropriate viewing distance
between eyes and computer screens, and conduct
stretching exercises during rest breaks. The Group
also arranges professionals to sterilise the working
environment, and place greenings in the office.
By these, the Group hopes that employees’ health
can be safeguarded in workplace. With regards
to precautious measures against fire hazards,
the Group has arranged fire drills for employees
to familiarise them with the office buildings’
escape routes and location of fire extinguishing
equipment.

There were no major changes in management
practice in relation to occupational health and
safety during the Reporting Period.

COVID-19 Measures

When the coronavirus disease broke out, the
Group was highly cautious of the most up-to-date
situations as employees’ health and safety is the
Group's priority. A response team was established
to monitor the number of infection cases, follow
government guidelines, and take lead in setting
up preventive measures and arrangements for
employees, some practices include:

e Adopting work rotation, home officing, and
other distancing measures as appropriate

J Requesting for health condition and potential
virus-exposure information, and 14 days
contact history from employees and visitors

o Strengthening health surveillance measures,
such as, measuring body temperatures

o Sourcing and providing anti-virus supplies,
such as surgical masks, sanitisers

The Group remained vigilant and released
information promptly whenever any cases worthy
of concern was identified.
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Development and Training

The Group continuously monitors employees’ job
performance in order to identify training needs.
Employees are encouraged to participate in work-
related and personal development trainings
through on-the-job trainings and external trainings
to understand market trends and increase their
competence. During the Reporting Period, 58
employees received training as arranged by the
Group, and the average training hours that each
employee received (inclusive of those who did
not received training) was 5.47 hours. Training
provided was mostly duty-related courses or
seminars delivered by external service providers.
The trainings covered topics such as accounting
standards, laws and regulations.

Labour Standards

Pursuant to the Employment Ordinance, Chapter
57 of the Laws of Hong Kong and Labour Law
of the PRC, there was no child nor forced labour
in the Group’s operation. All resumes, original
identification cards and relevant certificates of job
candidates are first checked by the Group during
interviews. Candidates’ preceded employers may
be contacted for provision of references.

Operating Practices
B5. Supply Chain Management

Only suppliers related to technology and financial
tools were engaged during the Reporting Period.
Despite the relatively low environmental and
social risks involved in the Group’s supply
chain, the Group encourages best practices in
supply chain management. The Group prioritises
cooperation with suppliers it has worked with
before to ensure the quality of supplies. All
suppliers are expected to comply with all relevant
environmental and social laws, such as the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance in
their own operations.
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B6.  Product Responsibility

B6.1.

B6.2

Quality Assurance

It is the Group’s aim to provide products
and services that are satisfactory and provide
customer services that are professional. To
ensure that all employees are competent
with advising customers, employees are
required to prepare presentations regarding
the operations’ products regularly as a mean
for management to assess and determine
employees’ performance.

Confidential Information

As stated in the employment contract,
employees shall not at any time, during the
course of their employment, and after the
termination of the employment:

. use any confidential information for
his’/her own purpose or for any purpose
other than that of the Group;

e divulge or communicate to any person
any confidential information except
to those of the employees or officials
of the Group whose province it is to
know the same; or

J cause any unauthorized disclosure of
confidential information (including
without limitation), relating to the
dealings, organization, business,
finance, transactions or any other
affairs to the Group or its clients or
customers, through failure of exercising
due care and diligence
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All notes, memoranda, records and writings made
by the employees in relation to the business or
concerning any of its dealings or affairs or the
dealings or affairs of any clients or customers of
the Group shall be handed over by him/her to the
Group from time to time on demand and in any
event upon his leaving the service of the Group
and the employees shall not retain any copy
thereof. A breach of the above provisions can be
subject to dismissal without notice and legal claim
for damages.

The Group complies with all applicable laws
regarding confidential information and data
protection of the laws of Hong Kong and Mainland
China. No substantiated complaints concerning
breaches of client privacy, identified leaks, thefts,
or losses of customer information was received
during the Reporting Period.

Anti-corruption

The Group abides by the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance, Chapter 201 of the Laws of Hong Kong
and applicable laws in Mainland China in relation
to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
All other guidelines outlined by the Independent
Commission Against Corruption (ICAC) and
Securities and Futures Commission (SFC) are also
followed by the Group. The Group has a whistle-
blowing policy available for anyone to raise any
concern worthy of the Group’s awareness. To
ensure that directors and its employees familiar
with relevant topics, the Hong Kong office
regularly invites ICAC to deliver training regarding
anti-corruption. There was no concluded legal
case regarding corrupt practices brought against
the Group or its employees during the Reporting
Period.

Community Investment

The Group understands that engaging the
community in which it operates is an essential
corporate responsibility. It has contributed to
activities and organisations that are beneficial to
the community. During the Reporting Period, the
Group has donated to causes relevant to culture,
health, and sports activities. More specifically,
the Group has distributed face masks during the
COVID-19 pandemic to support people in need.
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Biographical Details of Directors

EEERE

Executive Directors

Chen Xiaodong

Chen Xiaodong, aged 39, is an executive director, the chairman of
the Board of the Company, and the chairman of both the Executive
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company since
2 December 2016. He holds a bachelor degree of management
from Royal Holloway, University of London. He also holds a master
of science degree in process technology and business management
from University of Warwick. He has more than 10 years of
experience in bank and securities marketing and is familiar with
the local market and has strong capabilities in market exploration,
customer appraisal and risk management. He also has extensive
experience of regulations and rules of financial market in Hong
Kong and Mainland China, as well as certain corporate financial
analysis skill. Mr. Chen has resigned as an executive director and
chief executive officer of Future World Financial Holdings Limited
(a company listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, stock code: 572) with effect from 24 December
2018.

Xu Ke

Xu Ke, aged 42, has been appointed as an executive director, the
chief executive officer and a member of the Executive Committee
of the Company on 27 February 2018. He is a director and a
shareholder of Dragon Regal, a substantial shareholder of the
Company. Mr. Xu previously worked in several well-known financial
institutions. He has over 15 years of experience in investment
banking, asset management and equity investment. In the field
of investment banking, he has led projects totaling over RMB300
billion and has in-depth research and rich experience in Chinese
and overseas capital markets. In the field of asset management, Mr.
Xu serves as the president of Central Wealth Asset Management
Limited, covering several industries including real estate, utilities,
finance and energy. In the field of equity investment, he has
experience in new energy, TMT, logistics and other industries and
has led several domestic and oversea equity investment projects.
Mr. Xu holds a Bachelor’s and Master’s degree in economics, and
has attained a Doctorate in business administration (DBA).
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Yu Qingrui

Yu Qingrui, aged 49, is an executive director and a member of
the Executive Committee of the Company since 22 June 2016.
Mr. Yu specializes in property investment and trading business in
the People’s Republic of China. After graduating from high-school
in 1989, Mr. Yu joined the shipping and trading business in the
PRC. He was the general manager of a shipping company before
he became a private investor in 2003. In 2011, Mr. Yu joined a
marketing and management firm in Shanghai and served as their
property investment manager. On 21 July 2014, Mr. Yu was engaged
to provide advisory and consultancy services relating to property
investments and trading to Future World Financial Holdings Limited
(a company listed on the main board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, stock code: 572). Currently, Mr. Yu is an
executive director of Future World Financial Holdings Limited.

Lam Hay Yin

Lam Hay Yin, aged 40, is an executive director and a member of
both the Executive Committee and Remuneration Committee of the
Company since 20 July 2016. Ms. Lam holds a bachelor degree
in accountancy from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She
also holds a master degree of business administration from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She has extensive experience
in property investment, brokerage and trading fields. Ms. Lam is an
associate of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Kwok Chi Kwong

Kwok Chi Kwong, aged 57, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company since January 2014, and the chairman
of both the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee,
and a member of the Nomination Committee of the Company.
Mr. Kwok holds a master degree in business administration from
the University of Leicester. He is a Certified Public Accountant
(Practicing) registered with the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), an associate member of the
HKICPA and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants. Mr. Kwok has been a director of KTC Partners
CPA Limited. He has gained more than 21 years of experience in
auditing, accounting and finance area.

Wu Ming

Wu Ming, aged 48, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director and a member of the Audit Committee of the
Company since 2 October 2018. He holds a bachelor of science
with honours in business with marketing from The City University
London. Mr. Wu specializes in trading business in the People’s
Republic of China and Hong Kong and has extensive experience in
trading and management.

Biographical Details of Directors

EXERE

REH

RES 495 RZ_ZE—R"FANAZ+-ZHEZ
EAARRNITESRNTZEGNE RELE
RAEAREMBEFINEYHERERB D ES -
REER—NNNFSPEERE KIFREHM
BREBESEG BN S =FXALAKRES
ZRIAE—EMBERARNAKLE R ——F >
REEMALE—HEHELEEQR EEWE
KEKEBE-R-_E—NWFLtA=-+—H8 4%
EZELORAREREBITRER AR (REBB
ERXRGFERARERLEMHAG] BRI :
S7T)REEEMERERE SN E A MERMR
BoBRRAEARRIERESAIERERAFH
HITEE-

R B

MM 4058 R-_F—R"NFLA-THEZE
RARBRTEST PITREGREBUARFIE
BEEgRE -MULIHETERTIARBRELE
f-RMFEERETIARTIHERBE L2
BRYERE BEAEETHHEEELR-
MEZLTRBARHAMEREE L

BYKHITES

;B/:F:’\\’

BEX 57 R_E—NE-—RABZERAR
AIBEVENITESR EREZEGXF FMEER
EFRUNRREEZEEGKE LA RFAHNE
ARETHERETELG -RATSGFMAY
(IBEGAMA®])NEGTR - FEGTRIRQ
EEERETARGIMAGERGE L4
REMETMEBABERARES - WNEF
SR BREER - T —F&K58%-

R 8

R# 485 CR_FE-\FTA-_HEZER
ARBBIFATEEREZZBEGNE - WHF
ERBUTAEHHEREHLEEETBM-R
FERPEARKNBEREEZEMREEZEY
REZFREETHHRBEELR-

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F # 61



Biographical Details of Directors

EXERE

Liu Hongwei

Liu Hongwei, aged 51, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director, and a member of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company since 1 October 2019. He holds a master degree in
business administration and a bachelor degree in economics from
Renmin University of China. Mr. Liu has more than 20 years of
experience in finance and securities trading in China. Mr. Liu has
served as the chairman of the board of Beijing Guoxin Rongji
Holdings Co., Ltd. (3t REBIE @ E AR AR 2 F]) since September
2018. He also served as the managing partner of Glory Capital
Management (Beijing) Co., Ltd. from March 2016 to September
2018. From January 1995 to March 2016, Mr. Liu served as
the director of financial office and director of credit office at
Department of Fiscal and Financial Affairs of National Development
and Reform Commission. Mr. Liu has not held other directorships in
the last three years in any other public companies the securities of
which are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

K| MOORE

To the Shareholders of Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 71 to 212, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or
loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2B RE S

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our
audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results
of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion
on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

BEETER

=S EH
RRETFAEREBERMANERHE RRYX
HGEAVBRRCBEARAEEZFH -ELE
AREHEEVBBEREBETETALAE
R2BEZTNETREN RATHELEFHEREHR
EBFER -RMAY AT -—FHERTTH20OM
BEIE Z IR TNAM BB =

BPMCBITAREEHUMAFS 5 EH K

AREZEF—BTRERZEE BERGEL

EEMABZEE Rt RANESA THEREHR
TEERYGEA VBRI THERERRMR
BAEMREZEF RANEFETFTERERE
RIE TN EEANIT R RBEMGRA MR
RBERBIERIEHER-

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEMWEFOMEEFARETSEE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables from securities and futures dealing business

EFRHEEERBELZENE SR B EFIE

The Group has adopted a forward-looking “expected-loss”
impairment model to recognise the expected credit losses
(the “ECLs”) of trade receivables from securities and futures
dealing business in accordance with the requirements of
HKFRS 9.
BEEBEREE S M7 MRS ERIF 5 MR E KA1 [T
ERIBEEURBSRMEESEXEHREL CREE R
FEREREEBR ([BHREEER]) -

As at 31 December 2020, gross trade receivables from
securities and futures dealing business, and the related
ECLs amounted to approximately HK$489,682,000 and
HK$182,897,000, respectively.
RIBE_ZF+_A=+—H BFLHPEEEEKE
EZRKRESEFEBELERBREEBRINOR
489,682,00078 7T 52 182,897,000/ JT °

For the assessment of the classification at each stage,
we have checked the outstanding margin receivable
balances to the corresponding values of collateral assets
(defined as loan-to-value);

A E S ER RN RN S RIS ZE REEBKER

ETHEREEREENHEREENLX (EE/ENE
BELX):

For trade receivables from securities and futures dealing
business classified at stage 1, we evaluated the Group's
estimation methodology of ECLs, and checked the
parameters to external data sources where available,
including the price volatility of selected underlying
collateral;
HRDBRBIBBENESRPREEXHELE 2 RK
BHEFRMACHE ESENRHAEEBRMGET
% XA 2 BET SN RBERIRETRE B
FRIE AR BRI m RO B AR R IR -
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Key audit matter

BEETER

Independent Auditor’s Report
BUZBENRE S

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANSETNMEERERETSEE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables from securities and futures dealing business (continued)

ESRPEEEREELZ ENEZRAZAET G (E)

The assessment of ECLs of trade receivables from
securities and futures dealing business involves significant
management judgements and estimates, including estimation
of probability of defaults, valuation of collateral, expected
future cash flows and future economic conditions.
EHERHBEEERBEL CRREZIRAZAREERE
R R ERBELERAG RGN BRYEOH X K
HmfhE BHRARRESRE L ARREBER AR -

The Group assesses whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk for exposures since initial recognition
by comparing the risk of default occurring over the expected
life between the reporting date and the date of initial
recognition.

BEEEEBLBRE A MENGER A RN HNEF;FH

PR VB - P fE B ) TR R DA S5 B R A R
210 -

Related disclosures about trade receivables from securities
and futures dealing business, and its related ECLs are
included in Notes 3 and 21 to the consolidated financial
statements.
BARBMEEBEEBREEZEKRE SRR L EB@AERE
EEBEBERBHNGE M B RERME K21 -

For trade receivables from securities and futures dealing
business classified as stages 2 and 3, we checked
the price volatility and liquidity of the collateral, and
developed a reasonable range of expected cash shortfall
for comparison with the Group’s assessment; and
HBROBERF2IEBENEFMAEREXRBELL
eI 5 BR300 RIFIE R E IR m e BRI IE ORI -
YEHERRSRENSIERE JAE SEENFMGE
EITHE: &

We also evaluated the related disclosures regarding the
accounting policy, the judgement and estimates involved
and the details of the ECLs included in Notes 2, 3 and
21 to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

AR E G FTS KB AT BUR - HIBf R ARt IA KRG B
BmAM 2 321 AEBEMEEERFBEEMNE-
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2B RE S

Key audit matter

BEETEER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RANENMEEERETSEE

Impairment assessment of loan and interest receivables from money lending business

HMERBELZ EWREZLRFEZREFE

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had gross loan and
interest receivables from money lending business amounting
to approximately HK$541,649,000 and HK$36,978,000,
respectively. The Group had recognised ECLs on loan
and interest receivables amounting to approximately
HK$24,560,000 and HK$1,492,000, respectively.
R-ZZE_TF+_A=+—HB EBEEBEEHREEB
EEZRBWEREANEBE D B #4541,649,000/8 T &
36,978,000/ 7L > EEED 5B K E KK SR IED
=B BB 5 54924,560,0007% 7T K2 1,492,000 7T °

The models and assumptions adopted by the management
in estimating ECLs are related to the future macroeconomic
conditions and borrowers’ creditworthiness (e.g. the
likelihood of default by customers). The management
believes that they have considered reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available
without undue cost and effort for this purpose. Such
assessment has taken the quantitative and qualitative
historical information and also, the forward-looking analysis.
EREERAFEMEEERRRANEL RERERERKE
BREMRARBRANGEE (MEFEOWAIREL) B -
EEERS NECERMEBANESZAERASZER:
BEFRHEETVERARE N -ZEFHCRATEE
NEM 2 B BRI AR AT S AT o

Related disclosures from loan and interest receivables
from money lending business, and their related ECLs are
included in Notes 3, 20 and 23 to the consolidated financial
statements.
WMEXGEEZERREREMNEUKEAERREEEE
ZHEBRBEHN GV BRRWME3 20%23 -

Other information included in the annual report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated

financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of

assurance conclusion thereon.

We reviewed and assessed the adequacy of the Group's
classification of stages based on the past due dates of the
loan and interest receivables.

BAEMEFE ERERBEKERRFSBEDH
RETHEEDENTRDE-

We assessed the effectiveness and marketability of
certain collaterals, including considering fair values of
collaterals and the liquidity of the collaterals.
BFFEE TERRZBEREREHL  B1EE BB
an HY A R K K R a I

We assessed the reasonableness and relevancy of the
external information used by the Group as the default
rates and forward looking information including
economic data and forecasts published by government
bodies and monetary authorities, such as GDP growth
rates, unemployment rates, etc.

BARHE ESREREROR AR EER 25N EEER
MR RARIE  BRBTEE &Y BEBFI# ML
EEE LA PIINBENEEBERRE KEXE-

We checked the accuracy of the calculation of ECLs
based on the methodology adopted by the Group, as
well as disclosures in relation to credit risk exposed by
the Group in the Notes 20 and 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.

HfcRERE BEREMRMEAERREEESE
ZEEERFAMBHRRME20R23ME EKE@
2 EE R R KE -

FHRABHMER
BARERAUEMANAE - B ENBEF
BEFRAR T BERAMBRERBMOK
BET R -

BAHGEAMBREAFLEZERE TRERM
BER BT TR EMEREREATAZE

DK 4k A
B o
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Other information included in the annual report
(continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors and those charged
with governance for the consolidated financial
statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors of the Company
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the audit committee
of the Company in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.

Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2B RE S

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the

consolidated financial statements (continued)

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.

J Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors” use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

J Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the audit committee of the Company
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Independent Auditor’s Report
BUZBENRE S
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B 2B RE S

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (continued)

We also provide the audit committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence of the Company, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the audit committee of
the Company, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Moore Stephens CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Li Wing Yin

Practising Certificate Number: P05035

Hong Kong, 26 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

;e

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ —FE_FF+_H=+—HIIFZ

2020 2019
—¥-%F —E-NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
s FTERT FET
Revenue L'ON
Financial investments and services 81 %1% & & iR 74,697 26,146
Brokerage and commission income &£ 42 & & UL A 522,691 841,798
Property investment %%Tﬁ%{ - 1,350
Advisory fee income BRERA 72,462 78,450
5 669,850 947,744
Brokerage and commission expenses 42 & A kA& F X (311,013) (405,065)
Gross profit EM 358,837 542,679
Other income and gains/(losses), net E AU A ks, (E518)
FE 5 17,018 (7,179)
Administrative expenses THRAX (208,293) (213,559)
Other operating expenses HipZiBER> (6,196) (5,962)
Finance costs MBER 6 (48,215) (60,561)
Unrealised fair value gains/(losses)  #EiREmE A FEIIEKZ
on equity and fund investments BRARESREZREH
at fair value through profit or RNTEWRE (BER)FHE
loss, net (4,805)
Unrealised fair value (losses)/gains B iB1BmIEAFEF|ERZ
on debt investments at fair value BBREZREHRFE
through profit or loss, net (B18) 58 (7,756) 19,753
Provision for credit loss allowances HEM&@MEEZFE
on other financial assets E BB TR (103,838) (89,651)
Loss on revaluation of REMEZ BhEE
investment property (10,000) (45,000)
Gain on deemed disposal of BIERE—HBERFZ
an associate W %5 105,739
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEM B AR 2 W 13 =
Share of profit of an associate DG — B E R R 2 % A 7,065
Profit before income tax B it 18 B4 31 & 7 7 35,385 248,519
Income tax expense FREHiR X 10 (7,627) (40,132)
Profit for the year attributable to ~ ZAQFHEE AR
owners of the Company AEEEA 27,758 208,387
Earnings per share attributable to ZAQFREBAELEBREF
owners of the Company
Basic AR 12 GIONERVIIRY S HK1.42 cents &l
Diluted e 12 HKO0.18 cents &1l HK1.41 cents &1l
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Consolldated Statement of Comprehensive Income

meazmEkaER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ —FE_FF+ _H=+—HIFFZ

Profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company

REEXATER ABERER

Other comprehensive income/(loss)

Other comprehensive income/(loss) that
may be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods:

Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations

Hip2HEBA (BE)

ERBEERIBMET ES
TE s Hth2m|
WA/ (E8)
BMEBINEBZELER

Other comprehensive loss that will not
be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods:

Equity investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income:

Changes in fair value, net of tax

Share of other comprehensive loss of

an associate

BreRERBEAERIEE
BamzHEMEmEER:

EREMEEKEEATE
ﬂ ZBEARE

RN EES (RBE)
DME—RBERRZ
H fth 2 TH &7 18

Net other comprehensive loss that will
not be reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods

BTenNBEREBERVEE
Baz Hit 2B RFRE

Total comprehensive loss for the year
attributable to owners of the Company

ARAEEABEREE
E2HERAE
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2020
—BOFF
HK$'000

FTEx

27,758

(46,342)

(46,342)

(12,476)

2019
—T-hNF
HK$'000
THET

208,387

(1,075)

(901,061)

(6,711)

(907,772)

(700,460)




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

BN R

n‘l-_r\
As at 31 December 2020 R=-F-FiF+-H=14—H
2020 2019
—E-EF —hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
{5 FTERT FAET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BB RFRE 14 6,682 15,466
Investment property REMHE 15 - 390,000
Right-of-use assets EREEE 16 36,828 21,632
Intangible assets BIEE 17 500 500
Equity investments at fair FRHMEERSERAFE
value through other PRz AR E
comprehensive income 19 344,559 506,650
Deferred tax assets BEIEFIEE E 18 283 4,391
Loan receivables from money WEREBEE 2 BIRER
lending business 20 363,154 89,805
Deposits and prepayment Re RIENKIE 23 11,775 30,847
Total non-current assets IERBEELE 763,781 1,059,291
Current assets REBEE
Loan receivables from money WE ¥ E+ 2 BIRE R
lending business 20 153,935 356,657
Trade receivables from securities FHRIAEEBEXEBEE 2
and futures dealing business FEWE 5 R 21 306,785 412,344
Trade receivables from placing and B0 E R EE B R XK E £ 2
asset management business FEUE SR 22 43,505 52,265
Prepayments, deposits and BNRIE -Re Rk
other receivables E 4th e k08 23 91,995 91,999
Equity and fund investments at ~ BEBERIE QA FEIEKZ
fair value through profit or loss ~ BRARELERE 24 373,649 115,505
Debt investments at fair value FRBHEATEIERSZ
through profit or loss BBRE 25 241,919 168,530
Cash and bank balances Re RIBTTHET 26 140,440 99,219
Bank balances held on KERBEPHARITHE
behalf of clients 27 436,471 71,352
Total current assets mBEERE 1,788,699 1,367,871
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

iR e BRI LR

As at 31 December 2020 H—FE_-FFf—H=+—H

Notes
B 5

Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables e E 5 R 28
Lease liabilities HEaE 31
Third party interests in RIFERERESZFE =TS

consolidated investment fund 29
Other payables and accruals Hit eI RN EFER 30
Other borrowings Hibg& 32
Bank borrowings RITEE 32
Bank overdrafts RITBEX 32
Tax payable &S T8
Total current liabilities VEIN=REE
Net current assets REBEEFE
Total assets less current liabilities EEZAERRBAEES
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Notes payable ENEE 33
Bank borrowings RITEE 32
Lease liabilities HEAR 31
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBEAE 18
Total non-current liabilities ERBBEERE
Net assets FEE
Equity R
Equity attributable to owners of ZNATHEHE AE(EER

the Company
Share capital [N 34
Reserves & 35
Total equity EmAE

Chen Xiaodong
PREBER

Director

BF
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2020
—EC-EE

—=<—=

HK$'000
FEx

2019
—F-NF
HK$'000
THET

440,015
29,295

86,358
67,558
364,972
102,716
86,408
9,854

74,108
20,010

109,599
63,497
429,854
113,057
117,103
39,715

1,187,176

966,943

601,523

400,928

1,365,304

1,460,219

86,574

1,371
85

86,574
148,283
5,142
4,873

88,030

244,872

1,277,274

1,215,347

159,697
1,117,577

147,197
1,068,150

1,277,274

1,215,347

Lam Hay Yin
MR
Director

EE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

,.‘/TAIEQ/JILE%E

For the year ended 31 December 2020 EZ —FE_FF+_H=+—HIIFZ

2020 2019
—ECEF —E-NE
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 TEx TET
Cash flows from operating activities EEFHZ2HERE
Profit before income tax B BT A5 T2 A& A 35,385 248,519
Adjustments for: FLNSIIR B (EFE
Bank interest income RITHBUA 5 (444) (352)
Finance costs MBER 6 48,215 60,561
Depreciation on property, Mm% BERREBITE
plant and equipment 7 11,669 3,710
Depreciation on right-of-use assets ~ EFHEEENE 7 30,071 20,303
Provision for credit loss allowances EfMEmMEEZEE
on other financial assets Er R AT R 103,838 89,651
Write-off of property, WEE Y - BB MR
plant and equipment 7 9
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE—FREAR ZHE 130 =
Equity-settled share option RIS BIRERHE
arrangements, net R 37 66,809
Gain on deemed disposal of BAELE — R E QA
equity interests in an associate IR HE 2 W 2 (105,739)
Share of profit of an associate Dl — B SRR Z & (7,065)
Loss on revaluation of KREMEZENEBE
investment property 15 10,000 45,000
Dividend income from investment TR AFZESFKRE 2
in listed equity securities % 2 U A 5 (10,693) (7,523)
Interest income from debt BRI E 2 FBEWA
investments 5 (17,002) (7,084)
Unrealised fair value (gains)/ FRBRBRATFENRZ
losses on equity and HxﬂUSi%%&ﬁZﬂim
fund investments at fair value WATE (W)
through profit or loss, net E5 18 %58 (42,483) 4,805
Unrealised fair value losses/ FERBEREAFEYERZ
(gains) on debt investments BEBREZREH
at fair value through profit or RNEEBR (W)
loss, net R (19,753)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= A AN =
%nﬁﬁ%iﬁﬁﬂ%

For the year endled 31 December 2020 #{2 —F _—FF+ _H=—1—HILFZ

Operating profit before working
capital changes
Increase in loan receivables from
money lending business
Increase in equity and fund
investments at fair value
through profit or loss
Increase in debt investments
at fair value through profit or loss
Decrease/(increase) in trade
receivables from securities and
futures dealing business
Decrease/(increase) in trade
receivables from placing and
asset management business
Increase in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables
(Increase)/decrease in bank balances
held on behalf of clients
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables

(Decrease)/increase in other
payables and accruals

(Decrease)/increase in third
party interests in consolidated
investment fund

LEESEBAHLLETN
WEEBEE 2 RIER

=il
FRBRRAFEIEZ
PR R H R EIE AN

b4

1818 25 1 A T EFIRE 2
1 &
EHRUEEEL
B2 IR 5 R
Wb,/ ()
EEREETELS
B2 IR B
b,/ ()
B ROR - 56 R
KO
REBFPHERITEH
(1) /D
#Et 8 B EHE
(R
HA A 3OR BB B
(R)
RABHREES 2 E=F
it ORD) /Hm

Cash used in operations REXBMARE
Dividend received B E

Interest received BHAE

Interest paid 2 HE

Tax paid ERHIA

Net cash used in operating activities 4% & &N FTA 2R & F 58

78  Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited FiZE@ZERER A 7

2020
—g-%%F

HK$’000
FEx

177,657

(75,129)

(213,739)

(81,145)

8,589

9,354

(5,461)

(365,119)

365,908

(2,369)

(23,241)

(204,695)
2,043
17,002

(19,023)

(39,058)

(243,731)

2019
—T-hF
HK$’000
THT

391,851

(165,249)

(120,289)

(148,777)

(96,424)

(45,559)

(81,026)

19,614

(25,378)

21,888

109,599

(139,750)
522
7,084
(31,072)
(2,060)

(165,276)




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

"‘ﬂ/\

/\\/ \

i//wi%%

For the year endled 31 December 2020 #2 7272fﬁ+ —A=1—HILFE

2020 2019
et St 1 —E-NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
5 FTERT FAET

Cash flows from investing activities REZTBHELSRE
Purchases of items of property, BEMX BERZEEE

plant and equipment (1,973) (15,103)
Acquisition of equity investments Yo % 8 H A 2 T s 1R

at fair value through other NFEIRZ BREAKE

comprehensive income (243,001) (6,304)
Proceeds from disposals of equity s %5@ﬁ1&%@4&5§ﬁ

investments at fair value through $T§§|J FReBRAKREZ

other comprehensive income PR 358,750 226,034
Proceed from disposal of HE—FAE WE NAZ

a subsidiary P15 3R I8 13(a) 380,000 =
Dividend received B S 8,650 7,001
Interest received 2 A A 444 352
Net cash generated from REEHEE 2R CFR

investing activities 502,870 211,980
Cash flows from financing activities BMEZFBHERESRE
Net proceeds from issuance of BATHRR D PR1S SRIRF 58

new shares 74,403 176
Proceeds from other borrowings HiEESHRIE 164,073 189,776
Proceeds from bank borrowings IRITIEEFSIA 214,241 105,000
Repayment of other borrowings BEEMEE (228,955) (232,100)
Repayment of bank borrowings BRRITEE (372,865) (142,320)
Repayment of the principal BEREERERSEY

portion of lease liabilities (16,082) (17,519)
Payment for interest portion of SN EMEETN B D

other borrowings (17,030) (12,512)
Payment for interest portion of XRITEEFN S HBD

bank borrowings (5,879) (8,726)
Payment for interest portion of XNHEHEEENEE S

lease liabilities (1,383) (1,130)
Net cash used in financing activities B& /ZBIFTA 2R & /FHE (189,477) (119,355)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= A AN =
%nﬁﬁ%iﬁﬁﬂ%

For the year endled 31 December 2020 #{2 —F _—FF+ _H=—1—HILFZ

2020
i

Notes HK$'000
B 5 FET

Net increase/(decrease) in cashand RERBELEEHER 2

cash equivalents

Cash and bank balances at
beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rates
changes, net

@, L) B8
FHZzRE MRITHEF

SNEEFE R BB 2 BT

69,662

(17,884)

2,254

Cash and cash equivalents FARAZERERREZEER

at end of year 54,032
Analysis of balances of cash and RERREEERBEFZ

cash equivalents 2
Cash and bank balances Re RRITET 140,440
Bank overdrafts RITEX 32 (86,408)

54,032

80  Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited FES£ BB HR A

2019
—T-hF
HK$’000
THT

(72,651)

55,815

(1,048)

(17,884)

99,219
(117,103)

(17,884)




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B HRR M

H{F

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z_—F_-FF 1+ _-H=1+—HIFE

Corporate and group information

Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is
a limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
principal place of business of the Company is located at
Unit 6706B-08A, Level 67, International Commerce Centre,
1 Austin Road West, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Company and its subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in
securities and futures dealing business, trading of debts and
equity investments and money lending business.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at
31 December 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

ArEIREBER
REEEERAERAT ([ARQF])ARAE
REFMKILZBR AR -ARBEEE
%im%uﬁ%f,%hﬁéﬂiﬁ B3R IRILE
5 E567126706B-08A =

ARBEBXRHR/AREEZER AR FRE
MIEBAR (TXAREIAEE]) TZREE
ZRHEEEXT EHEEMRARKRE
AR REE -

MEARZEHR
R-B-_BER_F-AF+_A=+—
B ARRETEMBARZFHBET:

Percentage of equity
attributable
to the Company
RAREEREZBD L
Place of Issued ordinary/
incorporation registered
Name and husiness share capital Directly Indirectly ~ Principal activities
AR LR BRITEER/
NEER ERSLnY ERRAE E# AE IRERED
Hoshing Limited* British Virgin Islands US$1 100 - Investment holding
(2019: 100)
Hoshing Limited* ERERHS 1% 100 - REBR
(=2-h:
100)
139 Enterprises Limited Hong Kong Us$2 - 100 Provision of administrative
(2019: 100) services
13IEXERAT B 2XT - 100 fREE/TEUR
(=2-nf:
100)
Chaifa Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Investment holding
(2019: 100)
BEMHARLT A VAT - 100 REER
(=2-n:
100)
Central Wealth Infrastructure British Virgin Islands/ US$1 - 100 Investment in and
Investment Limited Hong Kong (2019: 100) trading of securities
PRAEREARRA AERARE/ER 1% - 100 REREEZF
(ZF-n§:
100)
Desert Gold Limited British Virgin Islands/ US$1 - 100 Investment in and
Hong Kong (2019: 100) trading of securities
Desert Gold Limited EBRNBR/BE 1%7T - 100 REREEZES
(ZF-n§:
100)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #2 —F —FF+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

1. Corporate and group information (continued) 1. XAREEER (&)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) MEABZER (&)
Percentage of equity
attributahle
to the Company
RAAEERECADL
Place of Issued ordinary/
incorporation registered
Name and business share capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
MR BRALER/
RAER Engeny ERRE HE B TEXBED
Celestial Lodge Limited*@ British Virgin Islands USst - - Investment holding
(2019: 100)
Celestial Lodge Limited*@ RERAHE (Ee - - RERR
(Z2-NE&:
100)
Top Billion Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$2 - 100 Money lending
(2019: 100)
By BAERAR A 2B - 100 HE
(ZB-N%F:
100)
Winsey Enterprises Limited* British Virgin Islands Uss1 - 100 Investment holding
(2019: 100)
Winsey Enterprises Limited* RERAHE [EH - 100 ®EZR
(ZF-N%F:
100)
Central Wealth Securities Hong Kong HK$325,000,000 = 100 Brokerage and
Investment Limited (2019: 100) related services
PREFREARAA R 325,000,000% 7T - 100 SERABES
(ZF-N%F:
100)
Central Wealth Futures Limited Hong Kong HK$23,500,100 = 100 Brokerage and
(2019: 100) related services
PERERRAA R 23,500,100 7T - 100 SRRABRE
(ZZ-NE:
100)
Central Wealth Asset Hong Kong HK$10,000,000 = 100 Asset Management
Management Limited (2019: 100)
PEEEREARAA &R 10,000,000/ 7T - 100 EEEE
(ZF-N%:
100)
Sky Eagle Global Limited*@ British Virgin Islands US$1 - - Investment holding
(2019: 100)
Sky Eagle Global Limited*@ ERERHE (EH - - REBR
(ZB-nE:
100)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #2 —F —FF+ - H=+—HI-FZ

Corporate and group information (continued) 1. RAREEER &)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) MEARZER (&)
Percentage of equity
attributable
to the Company
AAAEEREZEL
Place of Issued ordinary/
incorporation registered
Name and business share capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
LR BRTLER/
INGE:S ERLEHY ERRA HE ME IEEXEDH
Metro Victor Limited@ Hong Kong HK$10,000 - - Property Investment
(2019: 100)
ERERAF e i 10,0007 7T - - WERE
(Z2-NE&:
100)
Instant Achieve Limited* British Virgin Islands US$46,500 100 - Investment holding
(2019: 100)
MEBRAA: ABRAEE 46,500 100 - REER
(=25
100)
Fortune China Bond SP Il Cayman Islands US$17,336,344 = 40.64  Investment in and trading
(2019: (2019: 29.26) of debt instruments
US$17,296,936)
Fortune China Bond SP II HEHS 17,336,344 1 - 4064 BEBIEREREE
(=2-hf: (=2-nf:
17,296,936 7T) 29.26)
Greater China Income Fund Cayman Islands US$5,817,500° = 100 Investment in and trading
(2019: N/A) of debt instruments
Greater China Income Fund REMRE 5,817,500% 1T¢ = 100 EEIEREREER
(ZB-N&:
TER)
Central Wealth Cornerstone., The People’s RMB80,047,924 = 100 Advisory service in debt
(Shanghai) Consulting Co Ltd.* Republic of China (2019: (2019: 100) capital market and investment
(the “PRC") RMB35,000,000) in the fund
REER (LG CEFHAERAF hEARLRNE AR80,047,9247C - 100 GEEEATEEERERESR
([HE]) (Z2-h&: (Z2-NE: )
AR¥35,000,0007) 100)

* Not audited by Moore Stephens CPA Limited or another

member firm of the Moore Global Network Limited

# The shares represented participating shares

@ Disposal during the year ended 31 December 2020

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affected the results for the year or formed a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the

Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

* AEREFHESTMERMERIAL
REFE2HBHEMKE RREZ

: B fn f5 2 B

“ RBE_Z_ZTHF+_A=+—HIFE
HE

ERINEARRBPEERSE AR FEAREE
XEATEBREIBRAKEEEFET
ERBNZARBIMBEBRA - ARAEEFR
SEEMHBEARCERMIILESRIIER
RILE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #2 —F —FF+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

84

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
These consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“Listing Rules”).

They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for the equity, fund and debt investments and
investment property which have been measured at fair values.
These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"”), which is the functional currency of the
Company, and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

(@ Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs

In the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group has applied, for the first time, the following
amendments issued by the HKICPA.

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

Amendments to HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

Definition of a business
Definition of material

The application of amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z2 —F —FF+_-H=+—HI-F/E

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(b)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 December 2020. A subsidiary
is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the
Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until
the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group
are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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86

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(b)

(o)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control described above. A change in the ownership
interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill)
and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity;
and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’s share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Business combination and goodwill

Effective from 1 January 2020, the Group can elect to
apply an optional concentration test, on a transaction-
by-transaction basis, that permits a simplified assessment
of whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not
a business. The concentration test is met if substantially
all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired is
concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group
of similar identifiable assets. The gross assets under
assessment exclude cash and cash equivalents, deferred
tax assets, and goodwill resulting from the effects of
deferred tax liabilities. If the concentration test is met,
the set of activities and assets is determined not to be a
business and no further assessment is needed.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z2 —F —FF+_-H=+—HI-F/E

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(0

Business combination and goodwill (continued)
Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measures
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liquidation either at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset
or liability is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for
within equity.
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88

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(0

Business combination and goodwill (continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates.
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of
in these circumstance is measured based on the relative
value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #2 —F —FF+ - H=+—HI-FZ

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(d)

Investment in an associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence. Significant influence is
the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investment in associate is stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group's share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
other comprehensive income of associates is included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate,
the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associate is
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investment in
the associate, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associate is
included as part of the Group’s investment in associate.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or
loss being the difference between the fair value of any
retained interest and any proceeds from disposing of a
part interest in the associate and the carrying amount
of the investment at the date the equity method was
discontinued, recognised in the consolidated profit or
loss. Any interest retained in that former investee at the
date when significant influence or joint control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset.
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90

Basis of preparation of financial statements

and principal accounting policies (continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working

condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment
are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific

useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write off the cost of each item of property, plant
and equipment to its residual value over the following
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for

this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements
terms or 3 years,
whichever is shorter

Motor vehicles, furniture, 3 to 5 years

fixtures and equipment

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Residual values,
useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial

year end.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #2 —F —FF+ - H=+—HI-FZ

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(e)

M

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Investment property

Investment property is interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating
lease for a property which would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property) held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment property is stated at fair
value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the
reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values
of investment property is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the year in which they
arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the year of the retirement
or disposal.
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2.

92

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(®

(h)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in business combination is the fair value at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets
are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible
assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over
the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year
end.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than financial assets deferred tax assets and
investment property), the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of the value in use of the asset or cash-
generating unit to which it belongs and its fair value less
costs to sell, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises
in those expense categories consistent with the function
of the impaired asset.
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Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(h)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than
the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of any depreciation), had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such
impairment loss is credited to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it, unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in
accordance with the relevant accounting policy for that
revalued asset.

Initial recognition and measurement

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient are measured
at the transaction price determined under HKFRS 15
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets (other
than financial assets at fair value through profit or loss)
are added to the fair value of the financial assets, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(h)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(“SPP1”) on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business model
determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Interest/dividend income which are derived from the
Group’s ordinary course of business are presented as
revenue.

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets are classified as measured at amortised
cost, fair value through other comprehensive income,
and fair value through profit or loss. The subsequent
measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:
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2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Basis of preparation of financial statements

and principal accounting policies (continued)

(h) Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #2 —F —FF+ - H=+—HI-FZ
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BUR (#)
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A)
The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if fieh o R2 LA TS R ML 6% 4 - A 5% [ S i
both of the following conditions are met: HNANFTESREE
e The financial asset is held within a business model e RNREEBATREENKIRA
with the objective to hold financial assets in order WEERENEBEATIESR
to collect contractual cash flows. NEeMEE-
e The contractual terms of the financial asset give s TREEMASNEANEEHR

rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal

amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is

derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other

comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are
not held for trading. The classification is determined on

an instrument-by-instrument basis.
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2.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

and principal accounting policies (continued)

96

(h) Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
(continued)

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Dividends are recognised as revenue in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss when the right of payment
has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably, except when the Group benefits from such
proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial
asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in other
comprehensive income. Equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income are

not subject to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading, financial
assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value
through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily
required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for
the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives,
are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not solely payments of
principal and interest are classified and measured at fair
value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business
model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments
to be classified at amortised cost or at fair value through
other comprehensive income, as described above, debt
instruments may be designated at fair value through
profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates,

or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited FEEBZERER A A

2.

MRBREREERFTES
BUER (@)

(h)

FEMEERE (&)

15 E # BB E M 2 W 5 12 2 F1E S
ReeBEE (EFTA) (8)
ZETREEMN KD MEBB TSR
BT ABRER -EMT I &
BB HEBENEENRRAERARE
B BERENSEENA ESFER
RERGEABEERTRBBUEA H
EAEERNERKOEREE—HD
P 7 B P 45 SR IR R 2 2a B R BR S 10
BEBRT - % F Wm0 E 2 W
SAR-EEABEMEEKRSEEA
FEFIRORA T ABRETRER
fle

AR mE N FEIES T BEE
BRBREATEIENEREER
EREFEEMNSREE RYKRER
RiEEEEBRRBEAFEIIRNEE
BE NEHEREAFEFENE
BB EE - i AT B B S A Uk
BEMEE MZTEREEIER
FIEEE -TETA(BEBIRA
ATETR) O BARKIEEE
ZEMETAREERERE P TA
AR -ReEREY FERINARE
EHNENEMEE TwEXEBKERX
el A BRI AT EIES
BRAE-BENEXAABEHBIA
QRS 3N R e ke
NEEIIERDE BRY)AERE
i BE 50K BR Sk B R > & 5T #5 AC - B
BHTAMEEREBBREEATE
5Bk



2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Basis of preparation of financial statements

and principal accounting policies (continued)

(h) Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are carried in the consolidated statement of financial
position at fair value with net changes in fair value

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #2 —F —FF+ - H=+—HI-FZ

2. BB REREERTESH
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(h) FELBMEERME (HE)
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recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss.

This category includes derivative instruments
and equity investments which the Group had not
irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through
other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity
investments classified as financial assets at fair value
profit or loss are also recognised as revenue in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss when the right
of payment has been established, it is probable that the
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economic benefits associated with the dividend will
flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can

be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a
financial liability or non-financial host, is separated
from the host and accounted for as a separate derivative
if the economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to the host; a separate instrument with the same
terms as the embedded derivative would meet the
definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not
measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either
a change in the terms of the contract that significantly

modifies the cash flows that would otherwise
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required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of

the fair value through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract

containing a financial asset host is not accounted

separately. The financial asset host together with the
embedded derivative is required to be classified in its
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entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit or

loss.
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98

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(h)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the
Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group
has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent,
it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of
the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues
to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the
Group's continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #2 —F —FF+ - H=+—HI-FZ

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

@

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all
debt instruments not held at fair value through profit
or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at an approximation of the
original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows
will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held
or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided
for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month
ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making
the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition
and considers reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.
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2.

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

@

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

For financial assets, except for receivables from margin
clients and receivables from cash clients, the Group
considers that there has been a significant increase in
credit risk when contractual payments are more than
30 days past due. The Group considers these financial
assets are in default when contractual payments are 90
days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default
when internal or external information indicates that the
Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full taking into account any credit
enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.

For receivables from margin client and cash clients, the
Group considers there has been a significant increase
in credit risk when clients cannot meet the margin
call requirement and uses the loan-to-collateral value
(“LTV”) to make its assessment. However, in certain
cases, the Group may also consider a margin client
receivable to be in default when there is a margin
shortfall which indicates the Group is unlikely to receive
the outstanding contractual amounts in full taking into
account the pledged securities held by the Group. A
margin client receivable is written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z2 —F —FF+_-H=+—HI-F/E

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

@

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to
impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement
of ECLs except for trade receivables and contract assets
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition and for which
the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs.

Stage 1 -

Financial instruments for which credit
risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Stage 2 =

Financial assets that are credit-
impaired at the reporting date (but
that are not purchased or originated
credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs.

Stage 3 -

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not
contain a significant financing component or when the
Group applies the practical expedient of not adjusting
the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does
not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a
loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date. The Group has applied loss rates which are
reference to the default rates from international credit
rating agencies, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic environment.
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2.

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

()

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge,
as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and
other payables, lease liabilities, third party interests
in consolidated investment fund, bank overdrafts and
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #2 —F —FF+ - H=+—HI-FZ

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

0)

(k)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each lease component on the basis of the relative stand—
alone price of the lease component and the aggregate
stand-alone price of the non-lease components,
including contract for acquisition of ownership interests
of a property which includes both leasehold land and
non-lease building components, unless such allocation
cannot be made reliably.
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2. Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)
(k) Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
(continued)

As a practical expedient, leases with similar
characteristics are accounted on a portfolio basis when
the Group reasonably expects that the effects on the
consolidated financial statements would not differ
materially from individual leases within the portfolio.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of premises that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option. It also applies the
recognition exemption for lease of low-value assets.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line
basis or another systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

J any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

J any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

J an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #2 —F —FF+ - H=+—HI-FZ

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(k)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Right-of-use assets (continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

J variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date;

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise the option;
and

J payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising an
option to terminate the lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #2 —F —FF+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(k)

Leases (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease liabilities (continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group as a lessor
Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified
as finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the
lessee, the contract is classified as a finance lease. All
other leases are classified as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset, and such costs are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term except for investment properties measured
under fair value model. Variable lease payments for
operating leases that depend on an index or a rate are
estimated and included in the total lease payments to be
recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate are recognised as income when they arise.

Sublease

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, it accounts
for the head lease and the sublease as two separate
contracts. The sublease is classified as a finance or
operating lease by reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the head lease, not with reference to the
underlying asset.
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2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #2 —F —FF+ - H=+—HI-FZ

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

)

(m)

(n)

Cash and bank balances

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and bank balances comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and bank balances comprise
cash on hand and cash at banks, which are not
restricted as to use.

Bank balances held on behalf of clients

The Group has classified the clients’” monies as bank
balances held on behalf of customers under the current
assets section of the consolidated financial position
and recognised a corresponding trade payable to
respective clients on grounds that is liable for any loss
or misappropriation of clients” monies.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a
past event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #2 —F —FF+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

2.

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(o)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
tax authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

J when the deferred tax liability arises from the
initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

J in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #2 —F —FF+ - H=+—HI-FZ

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(o)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #2 —F —FF+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

2.

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(o)

(p)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

J the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;
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2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z2 —F —FF+_-H=+—HI-F/E

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(p)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

o the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct good
or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not
yet unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a
contract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Commission income from securities and futures dealing
The performance obligation is satisfied at a point in
time when the customer has received the service from
the Group, generally when the trades are executed.
Commission and handling income on securities and
futures dealing and broking is generally due within two
days after trade date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #2 —F —FF+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

2.

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(p)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Commission income from placing

The performance obligation is satisfied at point in time
when the customer has received the service from the
Group. The customer receives and consume the benefits
provided by the Group when the relevant services are
rendered.

Management fee income

The Group provides asset management and investment
advisory services on diversified and comprehensive
investment products to customers. Management fee
income is charged at a fixed percentage per month on
the net asset value of the fund managed by Group. The
management fee income is recognised when it is highly
probable that a significant reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
net asset value of the fund is confirmed at each month
end.

Performance fee income

The Group is entitled to performance fee income from
its fund management business when the net asset value
of the fund exceeds certain benchmark at the end of the
relevant performance period. Similar to the management
fee income of the fund, the performance fee income is
recognised when it is highly probable that a significant
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the net asset value of the fund is
confirmed at each relevant performance period.

Revenue from other sources
Property rental income is recognised on a time
proportion basis over the lease terms.

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #2 —F —FF+ - H=+—HI-FZ

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(p)

(q)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from other sources (continued)

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services
as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using the binomial model, further details of which
are set out in Note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised
in employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are
fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate
of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit
or loss for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and
end of that period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #2 —F —FF+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

2.

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(q)

Share-based payments (continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are
not taken into account when determining the grant
date fair value of awards, but the likelihood of the
conditions being met is assessed as part of the Group's
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions
are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without an
associated service requirement, are considered to be
non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are
reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an
immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-
market performance and/or service conditions have
not been met, no expense is recognised. Where
awards include a market or non-vesting condition,
the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied,
provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as if
the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of
the award are met. In addition, an expense is recognised
for any modification that increases the total fair value of
the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z2 —F —FF+_-H=+—HI-F/E

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(q)

(r)

Share-based payments (continued)

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options
are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not
exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
retained profits.

Other employee benefits

Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all of its employees. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into
the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer
voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the
Group when the employee leaves employment prior to
the contributions vesting fully, in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the subsidiaries within the Group
which operate in the PRC are required to participate
in the central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These PRC subsidiaries are
required to contribute a percentage of their payroll costs
to the central pension scheme as specified by the local
municipal government. The contributions are charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #2 —F —FF+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(s)

®

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in
the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements
of each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement
or translation of monetary items are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #2 —F —FF+ - H=+—HI-FZ

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(®

Foreign currencies (continued)

Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss with the exception of monetary items that
are designated as part of the hedge of the Group’s net
investment of a foreign operation. These are recognised
in other comprehensive income until the net investment
is disposed of, at which time the cumulative amount is
reclassified to the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. Tax charges and credits attributable to exchange
differences on those monetary items are also recorded
in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of
the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or
profit or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition
of the related asset, expense or income on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability relating to an advance consideration, the
date of initial transaction is the date on which the
Group initially recognises the non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts
in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #2 —F —FF+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

2.

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(®

(u)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at
the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities
of these entities are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity, fund and debt
investments at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in
the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #2 —F —FF+ - H=+—HI-FZ

Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(u)

Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the
use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques

for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either

directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques
for which the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the
consolidated financial statements on a recurring
basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at
the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #2 —F —FF+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)

(v)

(w)

Governments grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate.

Government grants relate to income that are receivable
as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support
to the Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable. Such grants are presented under “other
income and gains/(losses), net”.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(I)  the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the

Group;

or
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

n.

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z2 —F —FF+_-H=+—HI-F/E

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements
and principal accounting policies (continued)
(w) Related parties (continued)

(1

the party is an entity where any of the following

conditions applies:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures
of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (I);

a person identified in (I)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #2 —F —FF+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

3. Significant judgements and estimates

The preparation of the financial statements requires the
directors of the Company to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

The directors of the Company have considered the
development, selection and disclosure of the Group’s critical
accounting judgements and estimates.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
the directors of the Company have made the following
judgements which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

Determination of consolidation scope of interest in an
investment funds

The Group invested in investment funds as described in Note
29 to the consolidated financial statements which the Group
concluded that it has control over the relevant activities of the
funds despite the fact that the Group does not hold more than
half of the participating shares of the funds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #2 —F —FF+ - H=+—HI-FZ

Significant judgements and estimates (continued)
Judgements (continued)

All facts and circumstances have been taken into
consideration by the directors of the Company in the
assessment of whether the Group, as an investor, controls the
investment funds. The principle includes the following three
elements of control: (a) power over the investment funds; (b)
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from involvement with
the investment funds; and (c) the ability to use power over the
investment funds to affect the amount of the investor’s returns.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has effectively held
40.64% to 100% (2019: 29.26%) interest in the funds
established in the Cayman Islands. In marking the judgement
as to whether the Group has control over the funds, the
directors of the Company considered the fact that the
Group is the only general partner of the funds and is acting
as the fund manager of the fund in accordance with the
management agreement. The Group has the rights to all
decision making about the operation of the funds and is
able to direct the relevant activities such as acquisition and
disposal of underlying assets of the funds at its sole discretion.
In addition, the fund manager could not be removed by other
participating shareholders, who are only entitled to the shared
returns on the funds based on its net asset value but did not
have any voting rights to the funds.

After assessment, the directors of the Company concluded
that the Group has control over the funds and is accounted
for as subsidiaries of the Company in accordance with
the requirements of HKFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial
Statements”.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are described below:
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #2 —F —FF+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

Significant judgements and estimates (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Credit loss allowances of trade receivables from margin clients
and cash clients

The Group calculates the ECLs of trade receivables from
margin clients and cash clients by estimating the probability
of decline in expected future collateral prices and liquidity of
collactural, with adjustment to reflect the current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions, as appropriate.

Credit loss allowances of loan receivables from money
lending business and other receivables

The Group calculates the ECLs of loan and interest receivables
from individual clients based on the loss rates which are
reference to the default rates from international credit rating
agencies, with adjustment to reflect the current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions, as appropriate.

The Group calculates the ECLs of loan and interest receivables
from corporate clients based on these loss rates which are
reference to the default rates from international credit rating
agencies, adjusted for forward-looking futures specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

Credit loss allowances of trade receivables from the placing
and asset management business

The Group applies the simplified approach in calculating
ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the Group does not
track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has applied loss rates which are reference to the
default rates from international credit rating agencies, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

As part of a qualitative assessment of whether a counterparty
is in default, the Group also considers a variety of instances
that may indicate unlikeliness to pay. When certain events
occur, the Group carefully considers whether the events
should result in determining the counterparties as defaulted.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #(2 —F _FF+ _H=—+—HILFZ

Significant judgements and estimates (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Credit loss allowances of trade receivables from the placing
and asset management business (continued)

Other than the above, no credit loss allowance has been
provided for other financial assets as the related credit loss
allowance were immaterial.

As at the end of the reporting date, the credit loss allowance
for each type of financial assets is as follows:
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Loan receivables from money
lending business
Trade receivables from securities

MEXEBHESEZBRER

EFLMEEERBELL

and futures dealing business FEW E 5 R

Trade receivables from placing and BLEREEEBRXEBEE
asset management business FEWE 5 BRI

Other receivables H A & Y R IE

2020 2019
—g-%F —E-hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT
24,560 20,058
182,897 85,927
1,508 239
2,683 1,586
211,648 107,810

Further details are set out in Notes 20, 21, 22 and 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets are tested
for impairment annually and at other times when such an
indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of
its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based
on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s
length transaction of similar assets or observable market
prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset or
cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
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212223 ¢

L MEERE

REREMR AEEFEAEFEHE
ERBEEARENR ERFHNOET
BESF RN EIRBET R H A8
ARME - HEMFEMEERBPRBRE
T {E 7 B X Uk B BRI SR (E - B E IR
TELEMNEREEBOH DRSS (A
REFERLEXRRREREEME RS
F)R AIFHERE-FEQXFERDENX
RE-RARFEERBEUEELTAEAR
MRNNHEERHUBEE HATBED
BEROEEENCEMEEEERASL -
EHEREER EEELRMGEKA
EESRSELABUNAHARKRRERE
WEESEBNRRE UFEZERER
EMRE-
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #2 —F —FF+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

3. Significant judgements and estimates (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Income tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
carried forward to the extent that it is probable (i.e., more
likely than not) that future taxable profits will be available
against which the unused tax losses can be utilised, based
on all available evidence. Recognition primarily involves
judgement regarding the future performance of the particular
legal entity or tax group in which the deferred tax asset has
been recognised. A variety of other factors are also evaluated
in considering whether there is convincing evidence that it
is probable that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets
will ultimately be realised, such as the existence of taxable
temporary differences, tax planning strategies and the periods
in which estimated tax losses can be utilised. The carrying
amount of deferred tax assets and related financial models
and budgets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and to the extent that there is insufficient convincing evidence
that sufficient taxable profits will be available within the
utilisation periods to allow utilisation of the tax losses carried
forward, and the asset balance will be reduced and charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #2 —F —FF+ - H=+—HI-FZ

Operating segment information

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed
separately according to the nature of their operations and
the products and services they provide. Each of the Group’s
operating segments represents a strategic business unit that
offers products and services which are subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of the other business
segments. Summary of details of the operating segments are
as follows:

(@ the financial investments and services segment
comprises financial investments and trading, debt, fund
and equity investments and money lending business;

(b) the brokerage and commission segment comprises
provision of trading in securities and futures contracts
services;

(c) the property investment segment comprises leasing of an
investment property; and

(d) the corporate and others segment comprises corporate
income and expense items.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resources allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on reportable segment profit,
which is measured consistently with the Group’s profit before
income tax except that bank interest income, gain on disposal
of subsidiaries, share of profit of an associate, gain on deemed
disposal of an associate, finance cost, head office and
corporate expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude cash and bank balances, deferred tax
assets and other unallocated head office and corporate assets
as these assets are managed on a group basis.

4.

ResBEHR
AREBREXEBDHRBEAEBHEERE
R ZEmNMIRTE D BT AR EE -
AEEE-—KENBHRR —KBERKE
- BB IRME MR RBAAEZE
EAEEREEMEFZDETR KL
DEZBMEFBWOT

@ MBREERRHIE BERMBERE
REE B E2REAKRENR
ME T

by REbBesB BERHEEERS
KB A RS

© PERESER BREEEMEMEE:
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d) EREMIE SREXERARR
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ERERERD A ZRRE KRBT E D
EREASEREDRZEE - DBRRAT
BRI HRE D Bn METHE -RRFEH
FRBITMBWA  HEMB AR Z M
DE—BBERR ZEHN RALE—H
BERmRzls WHER BBRAFE
FA 4N B] 5 0 2R0a A ) 5T B B A K B BR
Frs A s Mest 805 30— 2
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For the year endled 31 December 2020 #{2 —F _—FF+ _H=—1—HILFZ

4. Operating segment information (continued) 4. RETEER )
Segment liabilities exclude notes payable, bank overdrafts, PRABTEBERNRE RITEX R
bank borrowings, other borrowings, tax payable, deferred tax R HMER BNHE REHREERE
liabilities and other unallocated head office and corporate MEMASRETRABEE BRAZE
liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group basis. BEDRBAERERE-
Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference DEMHEENEEDN2EERBETHEH
to the selling prices used for sales made to third parties at the ETE=T2EEBET .

then prevailing market prices.

For the year ended 31 December 2020 BE_Z_SF+-A=+-BHLEE
Financial
investments Brokerage
and and Property Corporate
services commission investment and others  Consolidated
E\jﬁ?ﬁﬁ s Az by Az
R BERfES NERE rERHEM &e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEx THET THEx TR THET
Segment revenue: ARUA:
External MR 75,162 562,627 32,061 669,850
Intersegment sales AERHEE 634 858 = 1,492
75,796 563,485 32,061 (YARY Y]
Elimination B (634) (858) - (1,492)
Total @t 75,162 562,627 = 32,061 669,850
Segment results TEEE (2,791) 95,634 (10,259) (197) 82,387
Reconciliation: HE:
Bank interest income RITFEBA 444
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & — 2 A 7z Wz 1,345
Unallocated expenses AAERX (576)
Finance costs HBEA (48,215)
Profit before income tax bR TS A5 A 35,385
Income tax expense FERRAX (7,627)
Profit for the year TEEEH 27,758
Assets and liabilities BEREE
Segment assets PEEE 1,503,702 872,393 2,411,590
Reconciliation: HE:
Unallocated assets AOREE 140,890
Total assets BERE 2,552,480
Segment liabilities PEEE 81,942 492,994 617,559
Reconciliation: Hik:
Unallocated liabilities KOERE 657,647
Total liabilities BEEE 1,275,206
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #(2 —F _FF+ _H=—+—HILFZ

Operating segment information (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

4. REIWERE (#)
BE-_T-—hE+-_A=+—ALEE

Financial Brokerage
investments and and Property Corporate
services commission investment and others  Consolidated
HHRE o
kR®  BERES NERE  EREM e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAEL TEL AL AL TET
Segment revenue: kL O
External IAR 25,468 903,166 1,350 17,760 947,744
Intersegment sales NEREE = 2,646 = 1,522 4168
25,468 905,812 1,350 19,282 951,912
Elimination s - (2,646) - (1,522) (4,168)
Total @5 25,468 903,166 1,350 17,760 947,744
Segment results PEEE 23,887 302,220 (43,989) (84,734) 197,384
Reconciliation: K
Bank interest income BITHERA 352
Gain on deemed disposal of ~ BALE—HHEQF
an associate W& 105,739
Unallocated expenses AAERX (1,460)
Finance costs HKER (60,561)
Share of profit of an associate & — A& A 72 & F 7,065
Profit before income tax BR TS A0 5 A 248,519
Income tax expense FrEmix (40,132)
Profit for the year KEERH 208,387
Assets and liabilities BEREE
Segment assets PEEE 1,282,646 628,757 390,049 22,028 2,323,480
Reconciliation: k-
Unallocated assets AOEEE 103,682
Total assets EEBE 2,427,162
Segment liabilities NERE 110,915 122,337 87 33,977 267,316
Reconciliation: #E:
Unallocated liabilities AOEAE 944,499
Total liabilities BREE 1,211,815
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For the year endled 31 December 2020 #{2 —F _—FF+ _H=—1—HILFZ

4. Operating segment information (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Financial
investments
and services

BBRE

R R

HK$'000

THEx

Depreciation on property,
plant and equipment

Depreciation on
right-of-use assets

Provision for credit loss
allowances on loan
receivables from money
lending business, net

Provision for credit loss
allowances on trade
receivables from securities and
futures dealing business, net

Provision for credit loss
allowances on trade
receivables from placing
and asset management
business, net

Provision for credit loss

nE WERREFE

EREEERE

HEXBELL
BRERZEE
BREE R

EEZRBBSEHRZ
FEBREGEIR

RERBERERH
EEZRYUBSEHRLZ
EEBRBREHRFE

BRRR - BE REAM

allowances on financial EURFEBZ SR
assets included in BEZREFRER
prepayments, deposits and SRR
other receivables, net
Loss on revaluation of EffREVEZER
investment property
Capital expenditure* ERRX
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and

equipment.
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4., RESFER (@)
BE-_S-SE+-A=t+—-ALEE

Brokerage
and
commission

BERRAE
HK$'000
TR

10,899

16,181

*

Property
investment

ESS
HK$'000
TR

Corporate
and others

TER A
HK$'000
TRR

770

Consolidated

)
HK$'000
TER

11,669

30,071

BERRXBREAEME BEIR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #2 —F —FF+ - H=+—HI-FZ

Operating segment information (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2019

4. REIWERE (#)
BE-—T—NE+-A=+—HIEE

Financial Brokerage
investments and Property Corporate
and services commission investment and others  Consolidated
HBEE \
RR% BrEkfEe NERE rEREM e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAL TEL THT FEL THT
Depreciation on property, plant ~ ¥1%  Fi5 k& T E
and equipment = 2,146 8 1,556 3,710
Depreciation on right-of-use RREEENE
assets - 6,139 - 14,164 20,303
Provision for credit loss RERBELBRRER
allowances on loan LEEBBRENRT
receivables from money #
lending business, net 18,284 = = = 18,284
Provision for credit loss BHRBEEEEBES
allowances on trade KB FEREE
receivables from securities and 5 IBE T IR B
futures dealing business, net - 79,374 - - 79,374
(Reversal of)fprovision for credit  EE& R BEEEXHES
loss allowances on trade KB SRR EE
receivables from placingand ~ E5EREE (&E) /
asset management business, SHEFR
net - (605) - 193 (412)
Reversal of credit loss allowances TEf1ZUE & R E A [E
on financial assets included W%’AE@?Z%@%E
in prepayments, deposits and 2 5 S B REBHEF
other receivables, net ® (7,595) = = = (7,595)
Share of profit of an associate G % & A A& F = = = (7,065) (7,065)
Gain on deemed disposal of RALE-—RRERAL
an associate W& - - - (105,739) (105,739)
Loss on revaluation of investment Ef5RENE 2 18
property - - 45,000 - 45,000
Write off of property, WENE BERERE
plant and equipment - - - 9 9
Capital expenditure* BERRX - 14,283 = 820 15,103
B Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and 3 BERRAXBEAREDE BER&E-

equipment.
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For the year endled 31 December 2020 #{2 —F _—FF+ _H=—1—HILFZ

4. Operating segment information (continued)
Geographical information
The following tables present derived revenue from external
customers for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
and certain non-current assets information as at 31 December
2020 and 2019, by geographical region.

Hong Kong
£

2020
S
HK$'000
T

Revenue from external REINAEBERZ
customers Wz
Non-current assets EmBEE
Non-current assets* EMBNE E*
* Excluded equity investments at fair value through other

comprehensive income, deferred tax assets, loan receivables
from money lending business and deposits and prepayment.

Information about major customers and suppliers

The aggregate revenue during the year attributable to the
Group's five largest customers was 49.00% (2019: 68.04%) of
the Group's total revenue, of which 13.99% (2019: 37.07%)
was made to the largest customer.

There was no single supplier or aggregate any five suppliers
that contributed to 10% or more of the Group's total purchase
during the year (2019: Nil).

None of the directors of the Company or any of their
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the directors of the Company, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial interests
in the Group’s customer or supplier during the year.

132  Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited 3 & E12 i 5 R 2 7

4.

2019

HK$'000
TRT

629,072 885,533 40,778 62,211 669,850

756,633 [ERNUTWIE!
YAVCE 412,773

RESFER (|
& & B

TRENBE-_F-TER-T-NE
A=t -BUrEEREELS 2 KA
IREP Y RAERR —E-_RER_-F

—hWEFE+ZA=t+—RAEES s cET
EMBEEE R
The PRC Total
H @t
2020 2019 2020 2019
—nE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TERT FAT THER FAT
947,744
1,059,291

427,598

7,148 15,078 763,781
6,832 14,825 44,010

e TEEEREMEHKERAFEIIRZ
BARE RERBEE REEBEE
ZRRER RS RIANFIE-

FRTERZFRMHEBNER

FR- $Elaﬁ£x§ﬁmuﬁzﬁééﬁfa
AEBERWKZEL49.00% —NLF:

68.04%) EEPE—K%IE{EB.%%(_?
—NLF :37.07%) °
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Revenue, other income and gains/(losses), net

An analysis of revenue and other income and gains/(losses),

net is as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AN
,\\/ N[

SRR MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z =F = FF+—A=—+—HIFFEZ

Revenue
Revenue from contracts with
customers within the
scope of HKFRS 15
recognised at a point in time
Commission income from
securities and futures dealing
Commission income
from placing
Performance fee income
Management fee income

Revenue from other sources
outside the scope of
HKFRS 15

Losses on disposal of equity
investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Gains on disposal of debt
investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Dividend income from
investment in listed
equity securities

Interest income from money
lending business

Interest income from
securities margin

Interest income from
debt investments

Property rental income

WA

BB R ERFE 155
#[F A R R85 BT
R EF & A
BEMHEBREY
Bl

[ =P N

RRBWA
BEEERA

BIBR R R E 150
BESZ B K IREUA

hEEBBERAYE
SIBR 2 IRAR B 2 B8

HEBBBERATE
SR 2 B E 2 Wat

EHBRARBHFREZ
BB A

BEFERHZHMERA
EHRET M BEA
BEBE 2 F B WA
IEZIEE A ON

5. WA -HARWKE " (EE)
FE
EEBRANREMKRARKE (EBIE)F
BT
2020 2019
—g-%f —h4
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 THExT FAT
9,246 9,690
469,175 790,589
407 3,664
72,055 74,786
(19,275) (25,585)
142
7,523
36,982
41,519
7,084
- 1,350
669,850 947,744
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For the year endled 31 December 2020 #Z —F = FF A =—+—HIFZ

5. Revenue, other income and gains/(losses), net

(continued)

5. WA -EMBARKE " (EE)
R (@)

Notes
(iEs3
Other income and gains/ Hpl AR Wz~
(losses), net (1| 28
Bank interest income RITH B U A
Handling fee income ?ﬁaﬁqﬁ]\
Change in third party interests REFEREES 2
in consolidated B=REREH
investment fund (i
Wages subsidies of the R EFTE 2 TEMEL
Employment Support
Scheme (ii)
Rental income HaHBA (iii)
Others Hit
Notes: B &t

() This amount represented the net change in net asset value
of consolidated investment fund attributable to third-party
shareholders. Details of the Group’s interest in consolidated
investment fund are disclosed in Note 29 to the consolidated
financial statements.

(i) Government grants were received by certain subsidiaries in
connection with Employment Support Scheme which was
approved by the Finance Committee of Legislative Counsel
of the HKSAR on 18 April 2020. There were no unfulfilled
conditions or contingencies relating to these grants.

(iii) ~ This amount represented the rental income from subleases

the properties under operating lease arrangements with leases
negotiated for less than one year.
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(ii)

(iii)

2020 2019

—= _ﬁﬂi _j-Lf'E
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FET THETT

352
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(7,179)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z =F = FF+—A=—+—HIFFEZ

Finance costs 6. MKEHR
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: HBEROTWT:
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TE T FAT
Interest on bank borrowings RITEEFE 5,879 8,726
Interest on other borrowings* HEEER S 31,012 42,489
Interest on bank overdrafts RITBXZ A E 5,398 3,258
Interest on notes payable JERH R A B 4,468 4,431
Interest on lease liabilities HEAGHNE 1,383 1,130
Others Efb 75 527
60,561
* Margin loan interest of approximately HK$13,189,000 (2019: g REBES B HF B #13,189,0008 T (= F
HK$25,662,000) and unsecured other borrowings interest of — L 125,662,000/ 7T ) N £ 4K 30 H b (&
approximately HK$17,823,000 (2019: HK$16,827,000) are B 5 4917,823,0008 T (ZE— LF:
included in the interest on other borrowings. 16,827,000/8 7T ) IR EMEEF B ALK
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For the year endled 31 December 2020 #{2 —F _—FF+ _H=—1—HILFZ

7. Profit before income tax

The Group’s profit before income tax is arrived at after

charging/(crediting):

7. BRETGHAEF

THAKRESR:

Depreciation on
Right-of-use assets (Note 16)

Property, plant and equipment
(Note 14)

Employee benefit expense (including
directors” remuneration (Note 8)):
Wages and salaries
Equity-settled share option

arrangements, net

Retirement benefit scheme
contributions

Minimum lease payments under
operating leases* (Note 16)

Auditor’s remuneration

Provision for credit loss allowance
on loan receivables from money
lending business, net

Provision for credit loss allowance
on trade receivables from securities
and futures dealing business, net

Provision for/(reversal of) credit loss
allowance on trade receivables
from placing and asset
management business, net

Provision for/(reversal of) credit loss
allowance on financial assets
included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, net

Write off of property, plant and
equipment (Note 14)

Loss on revaluation of
investment property

Foreign exchange differences, net

AEBRR TS HANE R IR, (A A

2020 2019
—B-%F —F-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
e

FREEE (Wite) 30,071 20,303

W% WEREE (HEE14)

11,669 3,710
41,740 24,013
EEEBANFAY (BEEEHS

(Fftz£8) ) :

TERES 203,922 186,694

IeEEE 2 BRELEE - T8

= 66,809

RIREFIFT 8 3K

1,989 2,224
205,911 255,727
LEMREE TN 2 &EHEEMHK*

(FizE16) 53 1,454
1% 8RR Bl & 1,826 1,774
MEEBELE 2 BKRERZ

FEBERETIRFE

4,502 18,284
EFLMEEEEBELE 2R

EERRZEEBEBREIR

Pk 96,970 79,374
ERBEEREBELEY

BUWE SRR ZEEEIERE

MR/ (BB ) F5

(412)
FENFRIE - e R H bR IE
BEZeMEEZEREER
BERHR (B@)FHE
(7,595)
MEE T BB MR (HaE14)
9
EHTEMEZERE
45,000
fE R Z% FE 2,479

* The amount represented short-term lease payments for the year
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 under HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no forfeited
contributions available to reduce its contributions to the
retirement benefit schemes in future years (2019: Nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #(2 —F _FF+ _H=—+—HILFZ

Directors’ remuneration 8. EEM=

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to BIE LR BB R AHERME3S3(1) @)
the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong b)) RO IEA KR AT (FBEEEFNTER)
Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies ROIE2R B2 FRNEEHMT

(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation, is as follows:

2020 2019
i —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FET
Fees we 941 898
Salaries, allowances and benefits e EMEEYEF
in kind 12,620 16,467
Equity-settled share option ISR 2 BRER Y FRR
arrangements, net 11,159
Retirement benefit scheme RRAE T B R
contributions 112
28,636
During the year ended 31 December 2020, no share option BE T EF+_A=+-HLEFEE"
was granted (2019: 487,480,000 share options were granted), REBERARABREFS ETEZLERR
in respect of their services to the Group, under the share BEHAREENRBMERBRE(ZT
option schemes of the Company, further details of which are — L4 - $X [11487,480,0004% FE A& 1) - 3 —
set out in Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements. SHBANGEHBERRMA7 -ZEH
The fair value of such options, which has been recognised PRAEN IR H B IR HE B BN R S IR R IER
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on the date of EAFEDAREAHETE MRZEF
share options granted, was determined as at the date of grant EEGERERRANERZEBEF A Lt

and the amounts recognised in the consolidated statements EEMEeREEHA-
of profit or loss for the years were included in the above
directors” remuneration disclosures.
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For the year endled 31 December 2020 #{2 —F _—FF+ _H=—1—HILFZ

8. Directors’ remuneration (continued) 8. EEME =)
Equity-
Salaries,  settled share Retirement
allowances option benefit
and benefits arrangements, scheme Total
Fees in kind net contributions  remuneration
hgEE 2
Fe 2¥ BREZE BB
we REWEA ek AR MesE
2020 g 223 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TR TR TR TR TR

Executive directors YTEE
Mr. Chen Xiaodong (Chairman) ~ FREER L4 (£/8)
Mr. Xu Ke (Chief executive officer) 1 % 4 (811740%)

Mr. Yu Qingrui REHEE
Ms. Lam Hay Yin HEH L
Independent non-executive BUFHTES
directors
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong PEREE
Mr. Wu Ming REALE
Mr. Liu Hongwei NEREE
Equity-
Salaries,  settled share Retirement
allowances option benefit
and benefits  arrangements, scheme Total
Fees in kind net  contributions  remuneration
RiEEE
FooRh BRERE SRR
e  REWEMN e 42 BN Mels
2019 “E-0F HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TER TAR TER TER
Executive directors HiTES
Mr. Chen Xiaodong (Chairman) ~ FREER %4 (£/%) = 4,078 3,171 46 7,295
Mr. Xu Ke (Chief executive officer) #5175 4 ($11T48%) - 11,581 - 16 11,597
Mr. Yu Qingrui REHLE = 135 3,171 7 3,313
Ms. Lam Hay Yin HEHLL - 673 2,642 34 3,349
Independent non-executive BIFBTES
directors
Mr. Kwok Chi Kwong BEREE 150 - - - 150
Mr. Wu Ming REKE 18 - 2,175 9 2,302
Mr. Liu Hongwei (appointed on ~ ZIZE %4 (R=F—NF
1 October 2019) TA—-BEZ) 450 - - - 450
Mr. ChenYouchun (resigned on ~ RRE %4 (R-F—NF
1 October 2019) TA—BEfA) 180 - - - 180
896 16,467 11,159 112 28,636
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #(2 —F _FF+ _H=—+—HILFZ

Directors’ remuneration (continued)
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2019: Nil).

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive directors during the year (2019: Nil).

Five highest paid employees

The five highest paid employees during the year included one
director (2019: two directors), details of whose remuneration
are set out in Note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for
the year of the remaining four (2019: three) highest paid
employees who are not a director of the Company are as
follows:

EEME (@)
RENBEEENELRAERE LA
TR (ZE—RE &)

REABEERNTELFRTEFTZH M
¥ e (ZE—NE:8)-

IfuBEHHES
FRANSEFHEECE —REF (=
ToNE MBEE) WEZHEHER
REXMFES - FRB TR (—F— %
SR)FARFAEEZREFHER 2
SEBEMT

e HMREWER

Salaries, allowances and
benefits in kind
Equity-settled share option
arrangements, net
Retirement benefit scheme RRAEFIFTEI R
contributions

Bt E BRERE B8R

2020 2019
. —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER AT
142,434 132,305
3,532

65 52

142,499 135,889
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9. Five highest paid employees (continued)
The number of non-director highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

EFVBRSHEMES &)
MeENTTHBEBE Y FESTSETHE
8 ASMT:

Nil to HK$9,500,000
HK$9,500,001 to HK$10,000,000

HK$10,000,001
HK$11,000,001
HK$11,500,001
HK$18,000,001
HK$18,500,001
HK$60,500,001
HK$61,000,001
HK$65,000,001

HK$65,500,001

HK$100,000,001 to HK$105,000,000

to HK$11,000,000
to HK$11,500,000
to HK$18,000,000
to HK$18,500,000
to HK$60,500,000
to HK$61,000,000
to HK$65,000,000
to HK$65,500,000

to HK$100,000,001

29,500,001 7T
9,500,001, 8 L&

10,000,000/ 7T
10,000,001 T2
11,000,000/ 7T
11,000,001 L&
11,500,000/ 7T
11,500,001 L2
18,000,000/ 7T
18,000,001 L2
18,500,000/ 7T
18,500,001 82
60,500,000/ 7T
60,500,001 87L&
61,000,000/%8 7T
61,000,001/ L2
65,000,000/ 7T
65,000,00178 T2
65,500,000/ 7T
65,500,001 7T &
100,000,001/ 7T
100,000,001 L2
105,000,000/ 7T

2020 2019
—E-2fF —E-NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx TAT

1

1

1

3

During the year, no share options were granted to non-
director highest paid employee (2019: one) in respect of his
service to the Group under the share option schemes of the
Company, further details of which are set out in Note 37 to
the consolidated financial statements. The fair value of such
options, which has been recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on the date of share options
granted, was determined at the date of grant and the amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss for
the years were included in the above non-director highest

paid employees” remuneration disclosures.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #(2 —F _FF+ _H=—+—HILFZ

10. Income tax expense 10. FREHBAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% EENBR —BEERAFERTBELZ
(2019: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in HETERT R MIRI6.5% (ZF—NF:
Hong Kong during the year. Taxes on profits assessable in the 16.5% ) Tt K 5HZ « AN F 2 o B 8 2R B & A
PRC in the current year have been calculated at the rates of ZHBEERBRTEN EEMzRER
tax prevailing in the PRC in which the Group operates, based B RAEBLEMENTE 2 RITH
on existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect RitE-

thereof.

2020 2019
. —E-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FET

Current — Hong Kong BN —&B
Charge for the year FELH 17,603 28,511
Overprovision in prior years BEFEHEEREE 99) =
17,504 28,511

Current — the PRC BN EA—rh
Charge for the year FEXH - 8,405
Overprovision in prior years BEFEHEREE (8,969) =
(8,969) -
Deferred (Note 18) BT (KiFE18) (908) 3,216
Income tax expense Frisim X 7,627 40,132
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10. Income tax expense (continued)
A reconciliation of the income tax expense applicable to
profit before income tax using the statutory rates for the
jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of its
subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax position at the effective
tax rates is as follows:

10. FREHHA X @)

ERARRE REKELD M ERBMAERDE
BB EERERFE 2RI EDANG &
RZABHRAS BRERVHEAE R
BIER 2 BRI

2020 2019

—E-EF —E-NF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET T T

Profit/(loss) before income tax BRETERAIER, (EE) 35,985 248,519
Tax at the statutory tax rates REEBREFAEZHIEA 2,396 44,184

Gains attributable to an associate — BB N B B W = = (1,166)

Income not subject to tax BT U A (2,555) (21,326)
Expenses not deductible for tax NE IR 2 12,449 22,361
Tax losses not recognised AERBIAE R 10,573 8,618

Tax losses utilised EBANIEEE (3,070) (14,230
Temporary difference not recognised KR E K = 58 (2,893) 1,876
Overprovision in prior years BEFEERRE (9,068) =

Tax concession TS B (40) (20)

Tax relief of 8.25% on first HK$2 2,000,000/ 7T & ZR Bt i F

million assessable profit ZH8.25% 2 HIER R (165) (165)
Tax at the effective rate BREBRHERTE 2B 7,627 40,132

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2,000,000 of profits of the qualifying group entity will
be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2,000,000 will be
taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying
for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be
taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

11. Dividends

The directors of the Company do not recommend the payment
of any final dividend for the year (2019: Nil).
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #(2 —F _FF+ _H=—+—HILFZ

12. Earnings per share attributable to owners of  12. ZATEEAELESRAER
the Company

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is BREXBMEBEHRBERARAGESE AR
based on the profit for the year attributable to owners of R E RN R 4927,758,0008 7L (—ZF— AN
the Company of approximately HK$27,758,000 (2019: % : 208,387,000/ 7T ) M B 1T E @A Z AN
HK$208,387,000), and the weighted average number W19 8015,774,978,0000% (ZZF— L5
of ordinary shares in issue of 15,774,978,000 (2019: 14,718,040,000/% ) 51 & °

14,718,040,000).

Adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share ERERERBN 2R BETE
amounts presented for the year ended 31 December 2019 in HHE_T-NF+-_A=+—BLFE
respect of a dilution effect on the basic earnings per share ZERERBI 2T EEELFAE-

amounts presented.

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share BREARBERNTDERTIIENTHE
are based on:

2020 2019
—BRCERHF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
Profit for the year attributable to SAEERERNREERT
owners of the Company, used FTRAARRARIEE A

in the basic and diluted earnings JE 15 5F R4 )

per share calculations 208,387
Number of shares
R EE
2019
ZT-NF
‘000
T
Shares 1 12
Weighted average number of AESRERBNAAFA
ordinary shares in issue during BERITERRIMEFEH
the year used in the basic
earnings per share calculations 15,774,978 14,718,040
Share options issued RRREHITHERE ()
by the Company (Note) 79,992
Weighted average number of AAEERESARNMMAFA
ordinary shares in issue during BEITERRINEFEH
the year used in the diluted
earnings per share calculations 15,774,978 14,798,032
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12. Earnings per share attributable to owners of  12. ZAREEAELEEREF (2
the Company (continued)

Note: B 5T
The computation of diluted earnings per share for the year ended HE-_T_TFT_A=+HILFESRHEE
31 December 2020 did not assume the exercise of the Company’s BMZFAETRBEREITEARRE Z M ARITEE
outstanding share options since the average share price of the PEHE - ThE AR BB T RE RN M ARTT R
Company is lower than the exercise price of the outstanding share B2 ITEE -
options.
13. Disposal of subsidiaries 13. HE—REKREAF
(@) On 2 July 2020, the Group disposed of its entire @ RZZEZEFtLtAZH FEEMRE
interest in Metro Victor Limited (“MVL”"), an indirectly BIEER AR (BLE=77)H E$
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company to Million @ETF'eﬁ 2 EWEA 75&%%%5&
Fortune Well Limited, independent third party, at a (f?ﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬂ@ﬁjl)Z%E‘B%é’ﬁﬁ
cash consideration of HK$380,000,000. Net assets of a 8 A380,000,000/%8 7T ° M & A &) 72
subsidiary at the date of disposal were as follows: HEBRZEEFENT
2020
—E_EF
HK$’000
FTHER
Net assets disposed of: FTH & & EFE -
Investment property REMHE 380,000
Gain on disposal attributed to the Group BERNAEE HE KR -
380,000
Satisfied by: BATHAER:
Total consideration satisfied by cash NHReENORERE 380,000
(b)  On 23 September 2020, the Group disposed of its entire by RZZE-_ZEFHNAZ Jr El KEE
interests in certain directly or indirectly wholly-owned A—EZBYE=FHEEARNETEE
subsidiaries to an independent third party. Net liabilities FHEZ2ENBRARZ 21 BHX*E i}
of subsidiaries at the date of disposal were as follows: BARNEERRAZBEFENAT:
2020
—E_EF
HK$’000
FTHER
Net liabilities disposed of: EHEaEFEE:
Bank balances RITHETF
Trade payables FETE 5 BRI
Other payables and accruals H A e B N B A E A

Gain on disposal attributed to the Group BERASEE s HEWS

Satisfied by: BIAT I ER
Total consideration satisfied by cash B ENORERLRE
* Less than HK$1,000 o DI1,0008 7T
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ire R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z =F = FF+—A=—+—HIFFEZ

14. Y% BERRKRE

Motor vehicles,
furniture, fixtures
improvements and equipment Total
HEME HE R
i KERRE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR

Leasehold

At 1 January 2020

R-B-2%-A-H

18,727 8,799
(7,324) 4,736)

27,526
(12,060)

11,403 4,063 15,466

11,403 4,063 15,466
1,531 442 1,973

(8,903) (2,766) (11,669)
689 223 912

19,048 8,893

27,941

(14,328) (6,931) (21,259)

Cost XA
Accumulated depreciation RiHE
Net carrying amount Rm%E
At 1 January 2020, net of R-ZE-ZEF—HF—H"
accumulated depreciation MG RATER
Additions NE
Depreciation charged FARFEH (H5E7)
for the year (Note 7)
Exchange realignment 0 i
At 31 December 2020, net of RZEZEF
accumulated depreciation +ZA=+—~H
M R ER
At 31 December 2020 RZFZETF
+ZA=+—H
Cost XA
Accumulated depreciation RiE
Net carrying amount fREHE

4,720 1,962 6,682
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14. Property, plant and equipment (continued) 14. Y% BERRE #)

Motor vehicles,
Leasehold  furniture, fixtures

improvements and equipment Total
MEMF A R
e3C KERRE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FTET TET
At 1 January 2019 R=Z-hFE-HA—H
Cost ZEN 6,482 5,980 12,462
Accumulated depreciation R E (4,850) (3,508) (8,358)
Net carrying amount REVFE 1,632 2,472 4,104
At 1 January 2019, net of R-E-AF—A—RH-

accumulated depreciation MR RATER 1,632 2,472 4,104
Additions nNE 12,245 2,858 15,103
Write-off (Note 7) s (MEsE7) - 9) 9)
Depreciation charged for the year FRITE S H (MiFF7)

(Note 7) (2,474) (1,236) (3,710)
Exchange realignment BE 5 R = (22) (22)
At 31 December 2019, net of RZZE—NF+=A

accumulated depreciation =+—RB HBRRF

ER 11,403 4,063 15,466
At 31 December 2019 R-F—NE

+=ZA=+—"H
Cost ZEN 18,727 8,799 27,526
Accumulated depreciation 2 E (7,324) (4,736) (12,060)
Net carrying amount Rm%E 11,403 4,063 15,466
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15. REWE

15. Investment property

Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEKREE

Loss from a fair value adjustment RNFEABZER

Arising from disposal of a subsidiary  {H& — &2 BFT1F
(Note 13(a)) (FEE13())

Carrying amount at 31 December

R+-—A=+—HBZKEE

2020 2019
—EBC-EF —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
390,000 435,000
(10,000) (45,000)
(380,000) -
- 390,000

The Group held one investment property as at 31 December
2019 which is located at No.2 Lincoln Road in Kowloon.
The Group completed the disposal of property investment
on 2 July 2020 through the disposal of a subsidiary, further
summary details of which is disclosed in Note 13(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group’s investment property was revalued on
31 December 2019 based on valuation performed by
Ascent Partners Valuation Service Limited, an independent
professionally qualified valuer. Each year, the Group's
management and the chief financial officer decide, after
approval from the audit committee, to appoint which
external valuer to be responsible for the external valuations
of the Group’s properties. Selection criteria include
market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether
professional standards are maintained. The Group’s financial
controller have discussions with the valuers on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results twice a year when the
valuation is performed for interim and annual financial
reporting.

The investment property was leased to a third party under
operating leases during the year ended 31 December 2019.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s investment property
was pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to
the Group (Note 32(b)).

RZBE-NAFE+_A=+—8B KEEF
BUNRNLEMSE2R —BRREDE-- K
EER T -_TEFLA-_HRABHE—MH
WBAR KL EYERE E—FPFE
MEEENG A EHREWE3@0) -

BREBEBYEXSERMGLEMXIFER
AERDAMETZHE AKER_-F
—NEFE+_RA=+—RE[MHEKEME-
AEBEERENERMBESFRERE
Bt AERETEEANEEWESIN
REEZINAGEER - HEERBETS
MBEB BUMUREXENREELREE
R -RUPHRRFERERRETEHE
B AEBUHERAESFRAERRE
(B 45 R B 5B AR & & FX

HE-_Z-NAFT+-_A=+—RHLFE"
REMERKELEHER T —RE=T-

R-E-NF+_A=1—HB XxEEZ

BREMFECERESAKREER —RIRTT
BE 2 IR (FIEE32(b)) ©
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15. Investment property (continued) 15. REWZE @)
Fair value hierarchy NP EER
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement TRINTAEBREMEZ A FEAE
hierarchy of the Group’s investment property: I
Quoted
prices Significant Significant
in active Observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
JIVET: BAAER BRAA]
miEHRE BARE BRHANE
(E—E#&) (BZEH) (B=E#H) st
2019 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-hF TEL TET TET FTET
Recurring fair value MTINEEZ KT
measurement for: HRFEAE:
Property at No.2 fIRHE B2k 2
Lincoln Road % - - 390,000 390,000

The fair value of the investment property is determined
using direct comparison method for the year ended
31 December 2019 by reference to recent sale price of
comparable properties on a price per square foot basis. Below
is a summary of the significant inputs to the valuation of
investment property:

Significant unobservable inputs Range of unobservable inputs

EXTAEERAYE FUBEEGARBHE

BE-_T-NAGF+-A=1+—BLFE"
REMEZATEDZRAUBLEYEE
HEBRBERLBEREFTRERE
BETE FXBABIREN X ETHEM
REABAZE:

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value

LR -E3. P8 ¢

D ENEER

(Discount)/premium on quality of -7.31% to 13.84%
property (e.g. location, size and
condition of the property)

MEERZ (&) 88

(Blan) 5 e 3 & ~ EAE ik )

~7.31% £13.84%

Selling price per unit of market HK$44,978 to HK$62,206
comparable, taking into account
different such as age and location

MHEAALRARNEGELER

(et kg R EER)

44,9788 E62,206/8 7T
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z =F = FF+—A=—+—HIFFEZ

Investment property (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

There were no changes to the valuation technique during the
year ended 31 December 2019.

The fair value measurement is based on the investment

15. REWE (@)

DFEER (&)
BE_T-NAF+_A=+—RHLEFE"
EETEREES -

RFEAEDENREVEZ &S MRE
g AHAGRZSRANENERA

property’s highest and best use, which does not differ from

their actual use.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, there were no

B EER-

BHE-T—

NFE+_A=+—HLEHFE"

transfers into or out of Level 3 or any other Level. MEAE-ERAEFMEMERNEAK
B -
Right-of-use assets 16. EHEEE
Premises
LES
HK$’000
FTHET
Cost: B
At 1 January 2019 RN_E—-—NF—H—H 19,764
Additions nE 22,171
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 E’\\_ z— 7L¢+ —A=+—8Xk
—E-FTF—H—H 41,935
Additions NE 45,186
Derecognised upon termination of lease AR IE R BRI HER (20,718)
Exchange alignment D 3 S B 460
31 December 2020 T_FTE+-_A=+—H 66,863
Accumulated depreciation: REIE:
At 1 January 2019 RZ_E—-hF—H—H =
Charge for the year (Note 7) FAZH (FMEE7) 20,303
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 R-BE-NF+-_A=1T—8BR
—Z-THF—H—H 20,303
Charge for the year (Note 7) FAH (M&E7) 30,071
Derecognised upon termination of lease PRI E R R IFFERR (20,718)
Exchange alignment D 5 A B 379
At 31 December 2020 RZEZZEF+=-A=+—H 30,035
Net carrying amount: A [ B

At 31 December 2020

R-E-_ZEF+=-A=+—H

36,828

At 31 December 2019

R-ZZE—-N&E+=-HA=+—H

21,632

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 £ 149



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR

For the year endled 31 December 2020 #{2 —F _—FF+ _H=—1—HILFZ

16. Right-of-use assets (continued) 16. ERAEEE @)
The right-of-use assets represent the Group’s rights to use CAEEERAEERERA(NTF—EN
underlying leased premises as offices for its operations under F(ZE-NF:—Z=F) ) ARERZE
operating lease arrangements over the lease terms, which HERHRELECREEEHEMEER
ranged from 1 to 4 years (2019: 1 to 3), which are stated MAOEOEN ERIREANBEFTERR
at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated REBE (WB)VER IHEEAEN
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for any remeasurement EREHASELTE-

of the lease liabilities.

The lease agreements do not impose any covenants other BRRHBEARBHESE HRMEIN
than the security interests in the leased assets that are held fﬁf%’; ZWEEMEMRMRBRG -HEEED
by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for SREERAER -

borrowing purposes.

2020 2019
—E-EE —ZT-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHER FAET
Fixed payments & 5 1~ 3K 17,465 18,649
Expense relating to short-term RHRSEER S (MHE7)
leases (Note 7) 53 1,454
Total cash outflow for leases HERSRE AR 20,103
Leases committed B
For the year ended 31 December 2020, no new lease is BT 2F+_A=+—BLFE"
entered by the Group that is not yet commenced. REB BT HAFIREE -
For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group entered BE_Z-NFT+_A=+—RHLFE"
into a new lease to lease the underlying asset as an office $E.uT_L—IE%)ﬁE S NTEERBEEEE
in Hong Kong that is not yet commenced, with the non- REENMLAE ZHEERARK B-F
cancellable period of 2 years from the commencement date —ZFE_AHEENRRBAPEFTMEAT
of the lease in February 2020. The total future undiscounted IR - XA AR B AR R R RE IR 3R
cash flows over the non-cancellable period amounted to ©ME BT R#%20,996,000/8 7T - H ALY
approximately HK$20,996,000, of which approximately 9,129,000 TEN HE MM A RE —F A
HK$9,129,000 is payable within 1 year from the end of AT R #911,867,00078 T /B 7Y ¥R & HR L 46
the reporting period and approximately HK$11,867,000 is RIEBH—FEINR=ZFAXN -

payable over 1 year but less than 3 years from the end of the
reporting period.
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Intangible assets 17. B EE
The intangible asset is of indefinite useful life as it has no BEEVEIME HNAERIUEAF
expiry date and represents the Futures Exchanges Trading H - UREEXGNEEMBERARZH
Right in Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited. RS-
Deferred tax 18. IEEBI IR

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the BERERBEREENFAZEEHNT

year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

EESBERE

Depreciation
allowance in
excess of related
depreciation

FEREER
BBITE
HK$'000
FET
Gross deferred tax liabilities at 1 January 2019  RZZT—NF—A—H2
EETIRR ERE 85
Deferred tax charged to the consolidated FARGEBERERINGR ZELEH A
statement of profit or loss during the year (Fzx10)
(Note 10) 4,788

Gross deferred tax liabilities
at 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020

—E-NEF+-_A=1+—8BxK
—2-TF—AF—AZ

R IBEEAE 4,873
Deferred tax credited to the consolidated FREFAGEIERR ZELERIE
statement of profit or loss during (Fzx10)
the year (Note 10) (5,016)
Exchange realignment bE 3i B 228
Gross deferred tax liabilities —E_EF+-_A=+—HZ
at 31 December 2020 R IBEERE 85
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18. Deferred tax (continued) 18. IEREFIE (&)
Deferred tax assets EEMREEE
The related
Credit loss depreciation
allowances of in excess of
Share-based  other financial depreciation
compensation assets allowance Total
Nk m HitemEE HAHERTERR
EMomE FEEERE WERE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FHET
Gross deferred RZE-—hF—HA—A
tax assets at ZIEREFHIBEERE
1 January 2019 2,553 266 - 2,819
Deferred tax credited to  FRFFALZEBREKZ
the consolidated EERTE (F97E10)

statement of profit or
loss during the year
(Note 10) 970 211 391 1,572

Gross deferred tax assets —Z— 4
at 31 December 2019 +ZA=+—8kK

and 1 January 2020 —E2-ZTF—H—H
ZEEHRAEERE
Deferred tax charged to  FRREREBH K
the consolidated M 2 BT A
statement of profit or (MtzE10)
loss during the year
(Note 10) (4,108)

Gross deferred tax assets —Z —ZF4F
at 31 December 2020 +-B=+—8B2

BRERIBEEERLE

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of RZE_ZEF+A=+—RH KEEEAE
approximately HK$1,238,581,000 as at 31 December 2020 MNEBESE 2 HIEEHE#1,238,581,000/8
(2019: HK$1,300,680,000) that are available for offsetting 7T (ZZ— % :1,300,680,000/ 7T) - A]
against future taxable profits of the companies in which L IREIR 2 R B 2 KRR ERBUE M
the losses arose. Such unused tax losses are subject to the ZERPAREBREASEEN BRI E
approval of the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Department. BAFEE-BHEBEXNSERAEE-
Tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely. The Group REBRAPBEEFGRSFRIBHORE A
has unused tax losses arose in the PRC, which will be T IE B 18 4926,386,000/8 70 ( — T — L4
expired in 5 years, of approximately HK$26,386,000 (2019: 1,323,000/ 7T ) © B F R 2K s A R 69 T
HK$1,323,000). No deferred tax asset has been recognised AEAN AMERRECMNELHEE
due to unpredictability of future profit streams. Ee
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A M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #(2 —F _FF+ _H=—+—HILFZ

19. Equity investments at fair value through other 19. EBH M2 E K FZ A FESI

comprehensive income RZIRARE
2020 2019
—E-%F —TNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong, & FMIRAZE % R ATE
at fair value 344,559 506,650
The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at PR AR E Ty A R BB 3 5 T A A E
fair value through other comprehensive income as the Group thE2EHBRREAFTEINE RESKEE
considers these investments to be strategic in nature. RRZEREBRBEIEE -
The fair values of the listed equity securities investments were FHRAEFRE 2 A TFE TR BT
determined based on the quoted market closing prices on the Pk W EBERE-

Stock Exchange.

An analysis of investment portfolio is as below: REEEDFTWT:
2019

—E-%F —FNF
Stock code Name of securities HK$’000 e HK$'000 %o *
RHRSE =BHEH FHERT %* THET %o*
572 Future World Holdings Limited (“FWH") 2,350 29,659 6.25
572 AR FIZRABR AR (TARKHFR]) 2,350 29,659 6.25
1004 China Smarter Energy Group Holdings Limited 1,244 0.03
1004 TEEZREREEIZERARADA 1,244 0.03
1141 CMBC Capital Holdings Limited 122,155 475,747 6.97
1141 RIBERERBR AR 122,155 475,747 6.97
412 China Shandong Hi-Speed Financial Group Limited 924115 - -
412 FEILRSEEHMEBREGRAIA 220,054 - -

344,559 506,650
& Percentage of shareholding in the listed securities held by the g REEMF LTRSS ZRERS T
Group
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A SRR T

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #2 —F —FF+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

19. Equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income (continued)
During the year, the Group received the amount of
approximately HK$8,650,000 (2019: HK$7,001,000) dividend
from these investments and recognised in the “Revenue” in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group sold
part of its equity investments due to the forced sales of shares
to repay margin loans as requested by its brokers. These
shares were sold at an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$358,750,000 and resulted in a cumulative loss of
approximately HK$716,286,000 which was transferred from
equity investment fair value reserve to accumulated losses
during the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group sold
part of its equity investments due to the forced sales of shares
to repay margin loans as requested by its brokers and sold
part of equity investments in a lump sum to an independent
third party during the year for strategic purpose. These
shares were sold at an aggregate amount of approximately
HK$226,034,000 and resulted in a cumulative loss of
approximately HK$251,329,000 which was transferred from
equity investment fair value reserve to accumulated losses
during the year.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s equity investments
at fair value through other comprehensive income, with
carrying amount of approximately HK$94,138,000 (2019:
HK$499,621,000), have been pledged to secure the other
borrowings granted to the Group (Note 32 (c)).
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19. EBHEME2AEKRFZRLFETY

RZBRAEKE (8

RAFE AEBEEZSREWRIURELN
8,650,000/ 8 L (Z T — L& : 7,001,000/&
TR EREBERZ WA AR

REBEE-_Z-_ZTF+_A=+—HILFE"
ZIKEIIFE%«%EEI%&Lﬁ%MﬁM gz
RESERMEEDBOBRAKE - ZEE
% {7 42 58 49358,750,000/8 7T BB H IR
—E 2 E1E4716,286,0008 7T (B R
FREBRABZELAFERFEERZERA:E
) o

REBEE-_Z-AE+-_A=+—B1LFE"
AEERELLERFANERG UNER
RECERMBEBoBAKE T HER
BERAENRERR —BBYLE=F R
HEBOBRAKEE - ZEELRNDBELD
226,034,000 0 B HIR —FE 25 E1E
49251,329,0008 L (ERFEAR B R AIEE
NEERBEERERFEE) -

RZEZZTF+HA=1+—HB K&H
8K T B 4994,138,0008 7T (- T — N5
499,621,000 L) B REM 2 EKFIEA
FEYERAEECRBIEASBER
2 EMEE 2R (H:E32c) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z =F = FF+—A=—+—HIFFEZ

20. Loan receivables from money lending business

20. HEREBELE ZBRBER

2020 2019
—2-%F —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERx TAET

Loan receivables K E R
B EEEERE

Less: credit loss allowances

541,649 466,520
(24,560) (20,058)

B FEENERER

Less: non-current portion

517,089 446,462
(363,154) (89,805)

Current portion BUERER 5>

153,935 356,657

As at 31 December 2020, the gross amounts of
loan receivables represented loans of approximately
HK$541,649,000 (2019: HK$466,520,000) granted by the
Group to a number of independent third parties. The loans
bore interest at rates ranging from 5% to 12% (2019: 5%
to 12%) per annum and were repayable within three years
(2019: two years) from the date of drawdown. The grants of
these loans were approved and monitored by the Group's
management. The gross loan balances of approximately
HK$2,032,000 (2019: HK$147,211,000) were past due and
approximately HK$539,617,000 (2019: HK$319,309,000)
were not past due at the ended of the reporting period for
which there was no recent history of default.

The Group holds collateral or other credit enhancement
over its loan receivables balance of approximately
HK$526,230,000 (2019: HK$353,545,000), including charge
of properties located in Hong Kong and the PRC, listed
securities in Hong Kong, equity interest in the unlisted Hong
Kong and PRC entities and note receivable of the borrower.
The carrying amount of the loan receivables approximates
their fair values.

RZEZEF+=-RF= +—El fEUE
RREBEAEBRRTZEBILE=FH 2
,;TA%’3541 649,000 L (ZZF — L&
466, 520 ooo,%rc) BRZFMNE;%E
12% —NF: 5% F12%)iT B KRAE
E/\\Q}IEHXEHﬂi E(_ZC NE:MF)
NEEZE - REZSERBAEBREERE
HERER B R4 6242% 492,032,000
BT (ZZFE—NF 147,211,000/ 7T ) #
B i #9539,617,0008 L (Z T — L 4F:
319,309,000/ 7T ) 72 ¥k 45 HY 7R 30 4 480 A
(ISRt R S OERE >

7R B Bt H B W E A4S $249526,230,000%
T (ZZ— L% 353,545,000/ 7)) #H G K
R EMEERAER BEMRES
FHBEzmERE - FELTES LW
EERTEHERARERERTNERSE
B BRUERZEEEREAFERS
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A SRR T

For the year endled 31 December 2020 #{2 —F _—FF+ _H=—1—HILFZ

20. Loan receivables from money lending business 20. HEXBEEZEKER (@)

(continued)

Analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount is as follows: FREAEZEZHOTET:
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
P B P Ex2 P& &3 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT THET THERT THERT
At 1 January 2019 RZE—-NF—HA—H 300,422 = 849 301,271

Transfer to lifetime ECL not HHEZREEHEL
credit impaired (Stage 2) THRBEEEE

(F&ER2) (255,920) 255,920 = -
New loans during the year ~ R EHTIEE R 364,309 - - 364,309
Settlements during the year AFEHEE (198,879) = (181) (199,060)
At 31 December 2019 and RZZE—N4F
1 January 2020 tTZA=+-HK
“T-TF—-A—H 209,932 255,920 466,520
Transfer to 12-month EEE12{80 AEEH
ECL (Stage 1) EE®BE (BT 101,542 (101,542)
Transfer to lifetime ECL EBEREREEREZ
not credit impaired FHEHEEER
(Stage 2) (F&Er2) (21,186) 21,186 =
New loans during the year ~ ANF & ¥ E K 411,142 = 411,142
Settlements during the year AFEEE (226,790) (109,100) (336,013)
At 31 December 2020 RZTZTF
+-A=+—8 474,640 66,464 541,649

156 Central Wealth Group Holdings Limited 3 & E12 i 5 IR 2 7



(continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z =F = FF+—A=—+—HIFFEZ

20. Loan receivables from money lending business

Analysis of changes in the corresponding credit loss allowance

20.

HEXBKELEZERER ®)
HEEEEREEEHHNNT:

is as follows:
2020
—EC-EF
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
B &1 P& Ex2 P& ER3 gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET THET
At 1 January w—A—AH 6,515 12,875 668 20,058
Transfer to 12-month ECL & %1218 A 78 5
(Stage 1) EEEE (BB 72 (72)
Transfer to lifetime ECL BREREERNEZ
not credit impaired FHRBMEEER
(Stage 2) (F&Er2) S
New loans during the year $$§¥ﬁiﬁaﬁf§%& 8,833
Settlements during the year AN [E 4 (6,722)
Change in risk parameters &}z £ %{k@] 2,391
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H 24,560
Arising from: BTIISEES:
Loan receivables B ER 24,560
24,560
ECL rates BHEEBEX 4.53%
2019
2 —NEF
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
B ER 1 P B2 B E23 Bt
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET TET TET
At 1 January ®—RA—H 925 849 1,774
Transfer to lifetime BREREEREZ
ECL not credit impaired 2 HEHEEEE
(Stage 2) (BER2) (1,327) 1,327 = -
New loans during the year A4 [ 3138 E 7,191 = = 7,191
Settlements during the year AN & & E (274) = (181) (455)
Change in risk parameters  [E\[& 2 &1 % & = 11,548 = 11,548
At 31 December KR+=—A=+—8 6,515 12,875 668 20,058
Arising from: BTARBEL:
Loan receivables ﬂéuﬂziﬁm 6,097 12,875 668 19,640
Loan commitments BEREE 418 = = 418
6,515 12,875 668 20,058
ECL rates RHEEFEE 3.10% 5.03% 100% 4.30%
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For the year endled 31 December 2020 #{2 —F _—FF+ _H=—1—HILFZ

21. Trade receivables from securities and futures

dealing business

21. EXRBEEERB CBWE

Trade receivables arising from BARNEEERBELZ
the securities and FEW E 5 R K
futures dealing business
— Clearing house —EET
— Cash clients -BHeEFR
— Margin clients —-RBLEP
— Brokers -85

W EE R

Less: credit loss allowances

2 BN
2020 2019
—z-®F —2-nF
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
11,158

16,955 64,186
461,569 433,985

= 100

489,682 498,271
(182,897) (85,927)
306,785 412,344

Trade receivables from cash clients, clearing houses and
brokers arising from the securities and futures dealing business
are repayable on demand subsequent to the settlement date.
The normal settlement terms of the said trade receivables
are, in general, within 2 days after the trade date. The Group
allows a credit period mutually agreed with the contracting
parties for receivables from margin clients.

Except for receivables from margin clients, the Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
balances. The Group is allowed to dispose of the securities or
futures deposited by the customers with the Group to settle
any overdue amount.

Trade receivables are unsecured, interest free and repayable
on the settlement date of the relevant trades, except for
the receivables from margin clients of approximately
HK$461,569,000 (2019: HK$433,985,000) which bears
interest at a range of 6% to 12.25% (2019: 6% to 12.25%) per
annum and are secured by investments held by margin clients
of approximately HK$940,472,000 (2019: HK$648,255,000)
as at 31 December 2020. The carrying amount of the trade
receivables approximates their fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z =F = FF+—A=—+—HIFFEZ

21. Trade receivables from securities and futures

dealing business (continued)

Included in the trade receivables as at 31 December 2020 are
amounts due from Mr. Xu Ke, Mr. Yu Qingrui, Mr. Wu Ming
and Mr. Chen Xiaodong, being the directors of the Company,
of HK$13,461,000 (2019: HK$12,152,000), HK$2,957,000
(2019: HK$2,936,000), HK$417,000 (2019: HK$369,000)
and HK$2,509,000 (2019: HK$336,000) respectively arising
from securities dealing transactions, which bears interest at
commercial rate and are secured by respective underlying
investments.

The Group maintains accounts with the clearing houses
through which it conducts securities and futures trading
transactions and settlement on a net basis.

No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the
directors, the ageing analysis does not give additional value in
view of the business nature.

Analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount is as follows:

Stage 1

PR BR 1

HK$'000

FEx

K—A—AH 164,651
EREREEREL
SHEREEERE

At 1 January
Transfer to lifetime ECL
not credit impaired

(Stage 2) (FEEr2) (13,993)

Transfer to lifetime ECL EREEEEREZ
credit impaired (Stage 3) 2 HEHEEEE

(F&ER3) (146,657)

Other changes (including Efh %) (REHEE

new assets and R \LHEREE)

derecognised assets) 117,847
At 31 December ®nt+=ZA=+—H 121,848
Arising from: BTIISHEL:
Clearing houses e 11,158
Cash clients RexP 3,821
Margin clients RESEP 106,869

121,848

21. EXRHEEERB 2 RKE

Z R (&)
R-ZE_ZEF+_A=+—"H EBKEH
ERAEESASERSMES Y BIA

RAIEERWAE -REMLE RBALE
T R B8 B8 5 4E 2 3R IE 9 BI13,461,000/%8 7T

—ZE— 1% 12,152,000 7T) 2,957,000
BT (ZZT—NF:2,936,00087C)
417,000 7L (=& n¢ 369,000/ 7T )
122,509,000/ 7T ( =& — JLF : 336,000/%5
TC) B ENERIFE - UHASEZHEBR
EEHR A -

AEENEERMRERP, NEETES
CEEER G WIRFEELEEE -

VEREREDN DEERR/ENER
HE RO TS RMHBIIMEE

REZBHMT :

2020
—ERCIRE
Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
P B2 B3 ast
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THERx TR
169,283 164,337 498,271

13,993

(4,946) 151,603

(166,159) 39,723 (8,589)

12,171 355,663 489,682

= 11,158
PXLY 16,955
342,672 461,569

355,663 489,682
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For the year endled 31 December 2020 #{2 —F _—FF+ _H=—1—HILFZ

21. Trade receivables from securities and futures 21. E5RPAEEFTEKR 2EKRE

dealing business (continued) Z MR (&)
2019
—ET-hF
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
PEER1 B E22 f& B3 Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET FET
As at 1 January wn—HA—H 148,058 166,239 87,550 401,847
Transfer to lifetime EREREEREZ
ECL not credit impaired ~ 2 HEHEEHIE
(Stage 2) (F&Er2) (23,436) 23,436 = =
Transfer to lifetime EREEEEREL
ECL credit impaired THRBEEER
(Stage 3) (F&ER3) (34,208) (60,795) 95,003 -
Other changes (including E %% (REHEE
new assets and IR EREE)
derecognised assets) 74,237 40,403 (18,216) 96,424
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—H 164,651 169,283 164,337 498,271
Arising from: BTIIREES:
Cash clients Re®EP 55,131 6,130 2,925 64,186
Margin clients RELEF 109,420 163,153 161,412 433,985
Brokers ®a 100 = = 100
164,651 169,283 164,337 498,271
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ire R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z =F = FF+—A=—+—HIFFEZ

21. BERPEEEXEK 2 EWE
Z R (&)
HEEEEREEEHHMNT:

21. Trade receivables from securities and futures

dealing business (continued)
Analysis of changes in the corresponding credit loss allowance
is as follows:

2020
—v—vqi

Stage 1
g
HK$'000
TET

At 1 January
Transfer to lifetime ECL not

n—HA—H 14
EBREREEREZ

Stage 2
P B2
HK$'000
TER

2,040

Total
@t
HK$’000
THET
85,927

Stage 3
P& B3
HK$'000
TET
83,080

credit impaired (Stage 2) 2 HEHEEEE
(BEE2) (58)
Transfer to lifetime ECL BRAZCDEEREZ
credit impaired (Stage 3) 2 HIEHEEEHE
(FEER3) (96)
Other changes (including Hth &% (REHEE
new assets and REIEHREE)
derecognised assets) ) 24,877 24,973
Change in risk parameters [z 2 8% &) 74,490 71,997
At 31 December R+=—RA=+—H 182,732 182,897
Arising from: BTARBEL:
Cash clients BexP 10,361 10,433
Margin clients RESLEP 172,371 172,464
ECL rates EHEEREX
Cash clients Re®P 79.76% 61.53%
Margin clients RBEEEF 50.30% 37.36%
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iR e SRR

For the year endled 31 December 2020 #{2 —F _—FF+ _H=—1—HILFZ

21. Trade receivables from securities and futures 21. FHZ R HEEEEXK ERE
dealing business (continued) Z MR (&)
2019
—NF
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BEERT P& ER2 P& ER3 st
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FHT FTAT FAT FTHT
As at 1 January »n—HA—8 118 846 5,589 6,553
Transfer to lifetime HEZREEREL
ECL not credit impaired ~ 2 HEHEE B
(Stage 2) (REER2) 8) 8 = =
Transfer to lifetime BERZEERFERAEL
ECL credit impaired THRBEEER
(Stage 3) (F&ER3) (32) (512) 544 -
Other changes (including E %% (REHEE
new assets and R ILEREE)
derecognised assets) 90 11 26,534 26,635
Change in risk parameters B[ 2 & & 639 1,687 50,413 52,739
As at 31 December Rt-A=t—H 807 2,040 83,080 85,927
Arising from: BTIIBEES:
Cash clients ReRP 33 278 342 653
Margin clients RETEP 774 1,762 82,738 85,274
ECL rates EHEEERX
Cash clients ReRP 0.06% 4.54% 11.69% 1.02%
Margin clients RELEF 0.71% 1.08% 51.26% 19.65%
22. Trade receivables from placing and asset 22. BREREEEEXBELZE
management business WE Z R
2020 2019
—B-BF —NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Trade receivables arising from MENREEEBREBEELEZ
the placing and asset management  JEUE 5 AR
business
— Corporate clients —RAIRF 29,079 45,979
— Individual clients —(A5l%E P 285 =
— Investment funds —REES 15,649 6,525
45,013 52,504
Less: credit loss allowances B EEEIEEE (1,508) (239)
43,505 52,265
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z =F = FF+—A=—+—HIFFEZ

22. Trade receivables from placing and asset

management business (continued)

Trade receivables from corporate clients and investment
funds which are past due but not credit-impaired represent
receivables arising from placing and asset management
business which have not yet been settled by clients after
the Group’s normal credit period. Except for the credit loss
allowances provided, the outstanding trade receivables from
corporate clients and investment funds as at 31 December
2020 and 2019 were considered not to be credit impaired as
the credit rating and reputation of the trade counterparty are
sound.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure
on the Group’s trade receivables from corporate clients and
investment funds using a provision matrix:

22@%&ﬁ§”&¥ﬁ§$2@

q&ﬁ% EEZI’A

TERP &?xé%éZE%@,HME?EFEH
BEZRWESEFRERAEBEEEE
B EPHAEEREEREEETRER
EECZEBWBERR - BRAARZEEBER
HwINRZE_EFR_F-NF+ZA
=+ —H HAREEGCERFPREREES
ZEWESEFRERAEREERE REA
BREGHFH 2 EEFRREBHRL -

BERASERBREBEREFTENRAER
EPRREESHNEBREZ RS WFEH
BREMEINWT

2020
et g 2.3
Past due
il
Less than 1to3
Current 1 month months
nE SR-fEA -Z=f4A
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) BREAE (Ti87T) 45,013
ECL (HK$'000) RREEBR(TER) 1,508
ECL rates BHEEEER 3.35%
2019
ZE-NE
Past due
el
Less than 1to03 Over
Current 1 month months 3 months Total
e SR—{ER —Z=f@A BA=MfA @5
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) BREZE (Ti87T) 50,913 1,591 = = 52,504
ECL (HK$'000) EHEEER (TET) 195 44 = = 239
ECL rates RHEEERX 0.38% 2.77% = = 0.46%
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A SRR T

For the year endled 31 December 2020 #{2 —F _—FF+ _H=—1—HILFZ

23. Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

Prepayments
Other receivables (Note (i))
Deposits paid

BRI

BEffRE

Hh FE YRR (FHREG))

Less: credit loss allowances

B EERBRERE

Less: Non-current portion (Note (ii))

e B AR D (MR Gi))

Current portion

M ENER 5

Notes:

(i)

Interest receivables arising from the money lending business
with gross amount of approximately HK$36,978,000
(2019:HK$27,988,000), of which the balance of approximately
HK$1,000 (2019: HK$11,431,000) was past due. The
corresponding credit loss allowance amount are approximately
HK$1,492,000 (2019: HK$395,000).

A receivable from a third party arising from trading of
equity investments with gross amount of approximately
HK$40,580,000 (2019:HK$40,580,000) has not yet been
settled and corresponding credit loss allowance amount is
approximately HK$1,191,000 (2019: HK$1,191,000). The
balance was past due at the ended of the reporting period.
The Group holds collateral over the amount of approximately
HK$44,807,000 (2019: Nil) listed securities in Hong Kong.

The remaining balance of other receivables of approximately
HK$11,501,000 as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
HK$14,621,000) was neither past due nor impaired and relates
to a number of independent parties for whom there was no
recent history of default.

The balances were rental deposits and operation deposits to
statutory and clearing house of approximately HK$11,775,000
(2019: HK$13,309,000). As at 31 December 2019, included in
the remaining balances were prepayments of rental payments
for 5 years amounted to approximately HK$17,538,000,
which the balance was transferred and recognised as right-of-
use assets at the commencement date of lease during the year
ended 31 December 2020.
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23. AMNARIE B REMEKRRIA

2020 2019
—E-EF —ZT-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER TET
2,087 22,792
89,059 83,189
15,307 18,451
106,453 124,432
(2,683) (1,586)
103,770 122,846
(11,775) (30,847)
91,995 91,999

MEEBREEZERRANBBSEAN
36,978,000/ 7T ( == — J1L.4F : 27,988,000
B ERES1,0008 T (ZFE—Hh
%F:11,431,0008 T) BB - HEEFEE
BEESEA1,492,0008 T (—ZT—Hh
£ :395,000/7T) °

A4 5 A 440,580,000 L (—E— AN
140,580,000 L) 2R AR EX HE
EZEBE=ZFFENALEERBEE
EEEREBEEAN191,0008T (=
—F 1,191,000 70) - AR E R RS
ARG AEERZREFERERDY
44,807,0008 L (ZE—NF E)BFH L

RZBE-ZEF+_A=+—H HibERK
RIBZ % & 5411,501,0008 T (==
— N4 114,621,000 7T ) IF 4 31 HA 3 08
B BEZACHEENCHRZEBLSS
-

EuhlERe T FEAEHEERNE
EIES#11,775,0008 T (Z B — L&
13,309,000 L) - R =T —NLF+=A
=+t—HB B T&ueEFHeNRZE
T FRTE4917,538,0008 7T Mm% E R =
T_EF+_AZ+—RBUEFEHERK
AEEBTIERBFERAEEE-



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z =F = FF+—A=—+—HIFFEZ

23. Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  23. B RIE - ZE& R H W RIE

(continued) (&)

None of the prepayments and deposits is either past due or BMEANRERREEBHAREHE-
impaired.

The carrying amounts of deposits and other receivables RehHEMEWREBEZ REEREEQAFE
approximate their fair values. B -

Analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount of financial FREREERGEEDH ERMTARER
instruments during the year contributed to changes in the loss BExEHoMHMOT:

allowance is as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

P& ER 1 P ER2 P& FR3 wat

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FTERT THER TER FTERT

At 1 January 2019 RZT-h&—F—A 16,533 - 9,077 25,610
Transfer to lifetime ECL EREREERNEZ

not credit impaired THRBEEER

(Stage 2) (F&Er2) (18,338) 18,338 - -
New assets during the year ZAFE ¥ & & 77,567 = = 77,567
Settlements during the year NE[E4EH (25,532) = (9,077) (34,609)
At 31 December 2019 and H=ZT— N4

1 January 2020 tTZA=+—-HkK

—E-TF—HA—H
Transfer to lifetime ECL EREREEREZ

not credit impaired THRPEEER

(Stage 2) (FEER2) (40,931) 40,931
Transfer to 12 month ECL 88 Z= 1218 B & &

(Stage 1) EEEE (B& 16,112 (16,112) =
New assets during the year A& E %ﬁﬁ?‘ 6,608 11,888 18,496
Settlements during the year NF[E4EHE (2,416) (7,090) (9,506)
At31 December 2020 ~ R-T-FF

+_H =+—H 29,603 47,955 77,558
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A SRR T

For the year endled 31 December 2020 #{2 —F _—FF+ _H=—1—HILFZ

23. Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
(continued)

Analysis of changes in the corresponding credit loss allowance
is as follows:

23. ANRE EEREMERKEA
(%)
HEEEBRREE EHATMT

2020
-
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
P &1 P& E22 P& &3 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHERT FTHERT TET
At 1 January K—HA—H 1,470 116 - 1,586
Transfer to 12-month ECL  B&Z 128 A EBEEEE
(Stage 1) (BEERT1) 866 (866)
Transfer to lifetime ECL ~ BREEREEFMEL
not credit impaired FHRSMEEER
(Stage 2) (P& ER2) (1,231) 1,231
New assets during the year AFEHEE 78 —
Settlements during the year RNEE&EE (224 (40)
Change in risk parameters B[ £ 1% &) 38 1,245
At 31 December R+ZR=+—H 997 1,686
ECL rates REEEBREX 3.37% 3.52%
2019
—T-NF
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
B ER1 (25 9) P& B3 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TET TRET
At 1 January R—A—H 104 - 9,077 9,181
Transfer to lifetime BREREEREZ
ECL not credit impaired ~ 2 HEHEEFHIE
(Stage 2) (REER2) (34) 34 = =
New assets during the year AFEHEE 1,415 - - 1,415
Settlements during the year RNEFEE (29) - (9,077) (9,106)
Change in risk parameters & 2 ## 14 82 - 96
At 31 December Rt-—A=t—H 1,470 116 - 1,586
ECL rates BHEEBER 2.93% 0.63% - 2.31%
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A M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #(2 —F _FF+ _H=—+—HILFZ

24, EBESRBOAFEINNERZEAX

24. Equity and fund investments at fair value
through profit or loss

2020 2019
—g-%F —E-nE
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FT

Listed securities, mandatorily FHES REMRATEFE

measured at fair value 321,699 38,432

— Equity securities listed — BB ETIRAFES (HM360)

in Hong Kong (Note (i))
Unlisted fund investments,

FLEMESRE RHIE

mandatorily measured at fair value & AF{EFE
— Investment fund in the —-RHASHEHSIREES
Cayman Islands (Note (ii)) (PR &EGi)) 855 48,417
— Investment funds —RH B RERES (i)
in the PRC (Note (iii)) 51,095 28,656
373,649 115,505

The Group invested in certain investment funds with primary
objectives for capital appreciation, investment income and
selling in the near future for profit as at 31 December 2020
and 2019. Pursuant to subscription agreements or equivalent
documents, the beneficial interests held by the Group in these
investments are in the form of participating shares or interests
which primarily provide the Group with the share of returns
from the investments but not any decision making power nor
any voting right to involve in and control the daily operation
of the investment funds.

These investments are set up and managed by respective
investment manager or general partner who are independent
third party of the Group, and has the power and authority to
manage and make decisions for the investments, or through
participations in decision making process of the underlying
investee companies.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the Group
does not have control on these investment funds. Therefore,
the Group does not consolidate these investments to its
consolidated financial statements and classified such
investments as the fund investments at fair value through
profit or loss.

RZE_ZEFR_ZT-NF+_A=+—
B AEBREETHREES FTEREZA
EAREE REWRARRITHRRBEEE
HoBRERBHFRBEE N AEERZ
EREFBZERNESRALER 5
HER TEAAEEREZSREZHE
ME®R TESEREFREESBAEL
B RS A IR

RZEREHMBANEREEL " REBAR
URER REARAEEBIE=7F
RANEREEREB2EMBRKER
FIREBEIFHIRERK

ARAEERA AEBYETFZEFR
EES At AEEYERZERERS
AAESAUBBRR ABRFRESE
RBERBRRBEATFEIRZESRE -
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iR e SRR

For the year endled 31 December 2020 #Z —F = FF A =—+—HIFZ

24. Equity and fund investments at fair value

through profit or loss (continued)
Notes:

(i) The above equity investments were classified as fair value
through profit or loss as they were held for trading. The fair
values of listed equity investments under Level 1 are based on

quoted market prices on the Stock Exchange.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’s financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, with carrying amount of
approximately HK$80,040,000 (2019: HK$6,022,000), have
been pledged to secure the other borrowings granted to the

Group (Note 32 (c)).

(i) During the year, the Group has subscribed participating shares
of the various Cayman Islands funds, an exempted company
with limited liability registered under the laws of the Cayman
Islands. The directors of the Company considered that the
Group does not have the controlling power nor voting rights
over the funds and the Group has the right to require the funds
to redeem the participating shares at any time. The Group
therefore classified the investment in the Cayman Islands fund
as fund investment at fair value through profit or loss on initial

recognition.

As at the reporting period, the breakdown of unlisted

investment funds in the Cayman Islands as follow:

24, ERBEHEBELATFEIERZRKRA
FEERE @)

B

(i)

Unlisted Cayman fund A
Unlisted Cayman fund B

AETHEREESA
AETHEREESEB

Unlisted Cayman fund A

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group subscribed
HK$40,000,000 participating shares of unlisted Cayman
fund A. As at 31 December 2019, the Group held 100%
of participating shares of unlisted Cayman fund A. During
the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group redeemed
all subscription participating shares at the consideration of
approximately HK$43,321,000 and recognised the fair value
loss of approximately HK$5,096,000 (2019: the fair value gain
of approximately HK$8,417,000) in the consolidated statement

of profit or loss.
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FRBRARERFEER 2 BRBERER
BATFESIR-BERIBT EMERARE 2
RFETIERB AT ISHE -

RZZEZZEF+-A=+—H0 XEERE
E%ﬁji@sa 040, 000%73(_ T— &
6,022,000/ 70) 2 BiBEZIZ A FEYER
WERAEE OB RA S EER
ZHAMEE (H3E32(c)) -

RER AEERBEZEREREES 2
/A%1'§%$E—%@E%xﬁ%i
PIBRzERRERDE KRR Téim
B AEEHZESWEEHIRRIRRE
BAREARERZRZES %E/A%
oAt REBARVHBERRERFES
HEESZREVERERBREATE
SRz BEIRE -

RmERE RASEEZRLEMRER
&ZAAMT

2020 2019

—E-EF :i_jléﬁ

HK$’000 HK$’000

FTET THET

- 48,417

855 =

855 48,417

ALTHEHEEZA

BE-=$ AFf-ASt ALE

CAEERBALETHEREES
A40,000,000,%732?/<251fo i
—n¢+:ﬁz+—av$ﬁlﬁﬁ$
FTTHEREESAZEHZ AR G-
BHE_Z_ZF+_A=+— E¢$
EAEEELE2HRBEL2ERS
8 A #943,321, 000?&7@2 ﬂ?@%‘}ﬁ ,%’J
5,096, oooﬁﬁrﬂ; —hFE AFEKE
#98,417,000% 70 ) Rér & B m R AR
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fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z2 —F —FF+_-H=+—HI-F/E

24. Equity and fund investments at fair value

through profit or loss (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(continued)
Unlisted Cayman fund B

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group subscribed
HK$819,000 participating shares of unlisted Cayman fund B.
As at 31 December 2020, the Group holds 0.16% participating
shares of unlisted Cayman fund B. During the year ended
31 December 2020, the fair value gain of approximately
HK$36,000 was recgonised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
subscribed RMB47,616,000 (2019: RMB20,000,000)
(equivalent to approximately HK$55,996,000) (2019:
equivalent to approximately HK$22,042,000) participating
shares in the PRC funds (the “PRC Funds”). As at 31 December
2020, the Group holds 16.4% to 51.1% (2019: 6.3% to
14.96%) of participating shares of these PRC funds. The
directors of the Company considered that the Group does not
have the controlling power nor voting rights over the fund
and the Group has the right to require the fund to redeem the
participating shares at any time. The Group therefore classified
the investment in the PRC Funds as fund investment at fair
value through profit or loss on the initial recognition.

The directors of the Company estimated the fair value of the
PRC Funds at each of the reporting period by considering the
fair values of the underlying assets of the funds (i.e. trade debt
securities) of which the quoted prices could be observed in
dealing markets. The fair values of the PRC Funds under Level
2 is estimated by aggregating the fair values of all underlying
assets comprising the funds as at year end. During the year
ended 31 December 2020, the fair value loss of approximately
HK$4,901,000 (2019: fair value gain of approximately
HK$6,615,000) was recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

24, ERBHRBAFEIERZKRA
M%E(ﬁ?ﬁﬁ )
(&

(ii)

(iii)

(%)

ALETHEHSELB

BE-_Z-_ZHF+_-_A=+—HLL#F

E’Z’S% uﬂ%fﬁtmﬁﬁ g—*f—%%iB
819,000 L2 2BEM - N_T_FTF

+=—A=+—8" ZK%lﬁﬁfkimﬁﬂ

ﬁ%%i32016%/“ ’ﬁoﬁé:;ﬁ
ZF+-_A=+—HULEFE 2FEK

ﬁé%@%,ooo;‘%n NREBERANER -

H=E ZE+_A=Z+—BHLFE"
ZISEIE %EPI%%(FEFI%iJ)EW\
R¥47,616,000c (ZZE—NF: AR
20,000,0007%) (48 & 7 4955,996,0007%
L) (ZZE—NF  HE R #22,042,000/8
T)SEBRH RN E_EF+_A=+—
A AEERFBEZSETEHESL16.4%E
51. 1%(_?—h¢:6.3°/o§14.96%)8‘9
2ERD - ARREERAE AEEHA
& %‘J%&&ﬂ%*ﬂﬁ%ﬁ%&ﬁ
HERESELRZ2ERMD B NEE
R F A FE RS HE A R l%iwxé DEA
BRESEATENEZESKRE -

ARNBEENEREHEBEBRETR
REMBERNECHEBEE (AIRS
BEEEH)QAFE FitPBEEEZ2AF
B-BE2ETHEES 2 AFEEBAN
ATEEAKNESHIMBERBEERFERZA
FEHBE- @if7f7¢+ A=+—
AIEFE- Wﬁﬂ&zﬁnim 901,000 7T
(ZZE—N&: Tr’féuﬁz \%%615000,%
TL)RERBEBRERAER
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For the year endled 31 December 2020 #Z —F = FF A =—+—HIFZ

25. Debt investments at fair value through profit
or loss

25. ERBERATEIRZER
r&

Listed debt securities (Note (a)) FrEBES (M@

— listed in Hong Kong —-RNEBEL™

— listed in the PRC —RFAE LT

— listed outside Hong Kong and PRC ~ — R & &P B LA £

Traded over-the-counter (Note (b))
Unlisted debt securities (Note (c))

BINEE (D)
REMEHES (K

))

Notes:

The listed debt securities as at 31 December 2020 were interest
bearing and were classified as fair value through profit or loss
as they were held for trading. The coupon interest rates of
listed debts securities are ranged from 4.58% to 11.95% (2019:
4.58% to 8.75%) per annum with the maturity dates ranged
from 2020 to 2023 (2019: 2020 to 2026).

Certain bond issuers listed in Hong Kong were required
to redeem the bonds which were subject to redemption
notices at the aggregate contractual amount of approximately
HK$11,082,000 on the bonds’” maturity dates. The bond issuers
had not been able to fulfill their redemption and payment
obligations on the matured dates, which constituted an event
of default. The Group assessed the fair value of the default
bonds by making referencing the fair value of these bonds as
at 31 December 2020 and recognised the fair value loss of
approximately HK$4,101,000 (2019: HK$3,685,000) in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss during the year ended
31 December 2020.

The debt securities which are traded over-the-counter as at
31 December 2020 were interest bearing and were classified
as fair value through profit or loss as they were held for trading.
The coupon interest rates of the debts securities are ranged
from 7.8% to 7.95% (2019: Nil) per annum with the maturity
dates ranged from 2022 to 2023 (2019: Nil).
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2020 2019
—E-EF —NEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
3,292 22,108
20,777 100,287
40,394 -
177,456 -

- 46,135

241,919 168,530

RZZEZFTF+A=+—RBzZLmE
BEHE AREEEM > B AERIE
HRAFEINER  ETEEEHFZEEEX
N FFF4.58% E11.95% (—FE— A&
4.58%%£8.75% ) ' H|BIANF =T F
BT —F(ZE—NF:ZFTZTF

=%
E_g_/\ﬁi)

REBEMZETESFEHITABARES
I HEDECBANMTSANRENE
11,082,000;‘%7121%%‘2ofH:ﬂf%‘é?*ﬁA
FERHBBBETHEBEORNREML:
ElHﬁﬁ)Z;Jﬁ%# W—_ZT-_ZTF+=-A
—t—B AEEZ2EZSELEZATE
EENES 2 AFE EAESE ==
F+-AZ+—BLEFEE AFEEEY
4,101,000/ 7t (= Z — L% : 3,685,000/
TE)EAVTDTEm%WEEE%

73&7777¢+ A=1+—BRIBIEE
ZEBEHFTE  DARBEEEMS iﬁi%
ERBEREAFTEYER F‘fr%s %ZT_
RN FEFF7.8% £7.95% —h%E:
ﬁ)v@l%ﬂﬁﬂ?:;ﬁ::izﬁ_z:z
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #2 —F —FF+ - H=+—HI-FZ

25. Debt investments at fair value through profit

or loss (continued)

(c)  During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group has
entered into a purchase agreement with a financial institution
for purchasing the Portfolio Linked Leveraged Note (the
“Leveraged Note”) at cash of approximately HK$44,664,000.
The Leveraged Note is linked to the return of the investment
portfolio in the debt markets. Both parties could terminate the
Leverage Note at anytime.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, four traded bonds
were invested in the Leveraged Note. The Group assessed the
fair value of the Leveraged Note by making referencing the
fair value of these bonds and recognised the fair value gain of
approximately HK$1,471,000 in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss during the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Group is entitled to the capital appreciation and interest
income from the trade bonds, as well as the principal amounts
of the trade bonds when the Leveraged Note is terminated.

26. Cash and bank balances

As at 31 December 2020, cash and bank balances of the
Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted to
approximately HK$14,346,000 (2019: HK$8,736,000).
The RMB are not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. The
carrying amounts of the cash and bank balances approximate
their fair values.

25. ERBERATFEIRZES

BE @

0 BE_ZT-—NAF+-_A=+—HULEFE"
AN 5 B 5L LA IR & #944,664,0005%8 7T 5 B
EHMERER([ERERE—He
MEET Y EE RS EEZREEEN
B EREREZEHREB-THEF AR
R R AR B E R o

BHE_ZT—NWF+-A=+—HLFE"
AEBBEBEREBERNNNMNRHES -
AEE2EZEZEHF2ATFEFHER
ERC2AFE AHE-_Z—NEFE+=A
T+t BLEFERGABERANERAT
B ZE 41,471,000/ 7T °

AEBEZERSESFMHERNIEELANE K
AN UEEERREBRUIRZHGESFZA

26. BERBITEF

RZEZEF+A=+—H KKH
DARB(TARBDFEZRS RIRTT
17 B H14,346,0008 T (ZF— L F:
8,736,000 7L) c AR ERALBRA
HanEH - A BIBrPE A 2 INEERR
EHIAREE EERMEETERT A%
B ETEREREETINEER ZRT
AR ABHME -

FRI|ITZRESBREBEETBRITHERN R
RN EBREIANE - RITEFFRORAYL
BENRBAARGEBRZRIT -RE MR
‘EREERE N FEES-
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For the year endled 31 December 2020 #{2 —F _—FF+ _H=—1—HILFZ

27. Bank balances held on behalf of clients 27. RREFEAEZBITERE

As at 31 December 2020, the Group maintained client trust
monies via Central Wealth Securities Investment Limited
(“CWSI”) and Central Wealth Futures Limited (“CWF”"),
which were not held for settlement of approximately
HK$436,471,000 (2019: HK$71,352,000) in segregated bank
accounts in accordance with the provision of Hong Kong
Securities and Futures (Client Money) Rules.

The Group has classified the client trust monies as cash
held on behalf of clients in current assets section of the
consolidated statement of financial position and recognised
the corresponding trade payables to the respective clients in
current liabilities section of the consolidated statement of
financial position. The Group is allowed to retain some or all
of the interest derived from the clients” monies as collaterals.
The Group is not allowed to use the clients’ monies to
settle its own obligations. The carrying amounts of the bank
balances held on behalf of clients approximate their fair

RZE-_ZTEF+-_A=+—H0 KAEEBE
BRFEZLEREERAR ([FEEAE])
MhEHEBRAR([RERE])RIE
EABHFEHE (RRPFZE)RIGEXR
BYRTRPFHFEVHERELEZRERE
R TE49436,471,0008 7T ( ZF — L 5F:
71,352,0007 7T ) ©

AEBEBEFERREADBEREE MR
ARARBDEERMD IRREFPHAZR
2 YKENEEFP ZHEREMNESERK
MREMBRRARARBDABD DR -
AEEREERBHOREHMEE TP KA
ZHMEERBERR - AEETSERATR
REENEAFZEH - REEPHALZ
RITHEFREERE A FERES-

values.
28. Trade payables 28. BEHEZERM
2020 2019
—E_EF —ZE—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
Trade payables arising from the BEERDHEFREEEMER
business of trading and EEZENE SRR
distribution of electronic and
accessory products 502
Trade payables arising from the BAEMEEERBELEY
securities and futures e E 5K
dealing business
— Clearing houses —EE T - 5,474
— Cash clients —-HeRP 364,774 16,670
— Margin clients —-REBEEEF 75,241 51,462
440,015 74,108
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z2 —F —FF+_-H=+—HI-F/E

Trade payables (continued)

Trade payables arising from securities dealing business bear
interest at 0.01% per annum and repayable on the settlement
day of the relevant trades. The carrying amount of trade
payables approximates their fair values.

Trade payables arising from futures dealing business are
non-interest bearing and repayable on the settlement day of
the relevant trades. The carrying amount of trade payables
approximates their fair values.

Included in the trade payables as at 31 December 2020 are
amounts due to Ms. Lam Hay Yin and Mr. Chen Xiaodong,
being the directors of the Company, of approximately
HK$4,000 (2019: HK$30,000) and HK$6,000
(2019:HK$8,000) respectively arising from securities dealing
transactions, which are unsecured, bears interest at 0.01%
(2019: 0.01%) per annum and repayable on the settlement
day of the relevant trade transactions.

No ageing analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the
directors, the ageing analysis does not give additional value in
view of the business nature.

Third party interests in consolidated
investment fund

28.

29.

BNESRY (&
ﬁﬁa%%?iZEﬁ%%% K42 F
YQM%HE&MFE@%%#”E%E

BNESER RAERLATEES

HEEBEXBELCRNEZRRATAHE
MEAREHESHEERRBE-BRNESE
RZEEEREEQAFERSE-

R-ZE-_ZTFE+_F=+—H ERNEH
RREHEEBRAEERSMEEZEMNAK
ATﬁimﬁﬁﬂﬁimﬁ BRAEZR
18 5 51 474,000/ 7T ( = Z — JL4F : 30,000
/EE)&@OOO/BE(ff L5 1 8,000
T0)  AEEE HFEFE01% (ZFE—N1
F:001% B WEAREHESX5EE
BEf-

VEBRBEREDIT HEERARERER
HE RE&EOM T 2RERIIMEE-

RGEREETZE=TRZR

Payables to third party interest holder EfI4RE1RERE G 2 E=

A AR

of consolidated investment fund

7

2020 2019
—RoE —hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TAET
86,358 109,599

As at 31 December 2020, the Group held 40.64% (2019:
29.26%) interest of Fortune China Bond SP Il which is a
segregated portfolio of Central Wealth Investment Fund SPC
(“SPC-SPIl”) and 100% (2019: Nil) interest of Greater China
Income Fund which is a segregated portfolio of Central
Wealth Investment Fund SPC (“SPC-GCIF”). Pursuant to the
management agreement with SPC-SPIl and SPC-GCIF, the
Group is the manager of the SPC-SPII and SPC-GCIF.

RZE-_FEF+_A=+—8 xEEH
A Fortune China Bond SP 11 240.64% ( —
T — N :29.26% ) #EZ * 1 Fortune China
Bond SP Il & EZEEEREBRARISPCZ
B B HE ([SPC-SPI] ) KB Greater
China Income Fund 72 28 #ER (ZZ—H
£ : #) - [fy Greater China Income Fund &
PEEBIERBERARSPCZBIIREMR
& ([SPC-GCIF |) ° 1R % B2 SPC-SPII K& SPC-
GCIF%E@T&§§'$$Z%,SPC-SPH&SPC-
GCIFHEIE A -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #2 —F —FF+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

29. Third party interests in consolidated 29. REFEREECZE=Z R

investment fund (continued)

The Group has consolidated SPC-SPII and SPC-GCIF to its
consolidated financial statements as the directors of the
Company believed that the Group has control over SPC-SPII
and SPC-GCIF (see Note 3).

Third party interests in consolidated investment fund represent
the share of net asset value of the investment fund held by
third parties (i.e. the remaining 59.36% (2019: 70.74%)
interest of SPC-SPII) which are recorded as a liability since
these third parties can, on their discretion at any time,
require the fund to redeem their participating shares for
cash based on the net asset value of the investment fund
at the date of redemption. Accordingly, the third party
interests in consolidated investment fund of approximately
HK$86,358,000 (2019:HK$109,599,000) are classified as
liabilities as at 31 December 2020.

As at 31 December 2019, Mr. Xu Ke (“Mr. Xu”), a director
of the Company, subscribed 34.7% participating shares of
SPC-SPIl and the corresponding amount of approximately
HK$53,811,000 was included in this balance. Mr. Xu
redeemed all the interest on 29 Feb 2020 and does not hold
any interest in SPC-SPIl as at 31 December 2020. Mr. Xu is
not an agent of the Group and he does not have any voting
power over the fund.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the loss incurred
from SPC-SPII attributable to the third parties amounted to
approximately HK$7,172,000 (2019: profit generated from
HK$13,844,000) was recognised as a change in third party
interests in consolidated investment fund included in other
income and gains/(losses), net in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss (Note 5).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #(2 —F _FF+ _H=—+—HILFZ

30. Other payables and accruals 30. Htt BN RIERETEH
2020 2019
—2-%F —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT TR
Accruals FEETE 15,191 5,830
Note interest payables (Note 33) ENEEF S (ME33) 17,534 13,066
Loan interest payables* ENRERA B+ 6,017 5,660
Other payables H A & A~ 58 22,462 31,866
Contract liabilities EHaE 6,354 7,075
67,558 63,497
& The loan interest payables are derived from the unsecured other g RN ERMB KRB LGS W B RKRMEE32
borrowings and margin loans of approximately HK$6,017,000 2R EAM B E 6,017,000 T (=8
(2019: HK$5,224,000) and Nil (2019: HK$436,000) in Note 32 — % :5,224,0008 L) REREFLE R
to the consolidated financial statements respectively. ZZE—NF:436,0008T) °
The Group’s payables and accruals are non-interest-bearing AEBZRERNFBEREFERRBTAHRR
and are normally settled within three months. The carrying —MRER =18 B W& - E b f& 5 5UE K&
amount of financial liabilities included in other payables and B EREszemABCHREERER
accruals approximates their fair values. FEREE-
Changes in contract liabilities under the management fee RER ERBRBPVABRTANAESR
services income during the year are as follows: BT
2020 2019
—BCERF ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TER TET
Carrying amount at beginning of REYZEEE
the year 7,075 -
Increase due to receipts in advance RE R P 2 AWM IE N
from customer 4,663 9,500
Revenue recognised for the year RERNERZ W (5,384) (2,425)

Carrying amount at end of the year ~ RFERZEREE 6,354 7,075
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For the year endled 31 December 2020 #{2 —F _—FF+ _H=—1—HILFZ

30. Other payables and accruals (continued)
The performance obligation of the management services is
satisfied when the services are rendered and advances are
required before rendering the services.

The Group selected to choose a practical expedient and no
disclosure of remaining performance obligation of those
unsatisfied contracts with customers was made as all related
contracts have a duration of one year or less.

31. Lease liabilities

0. HttERRERESER (@)

BERBOEDEEREHRBEER
TR R B2 (AR5 A ZB KR

AEEREEMAAUTREN LS T HREZX
FRTEREFPAANNBTITRNEL RE
RIARBENE R —FHUAR-

HESE

2020 2019
e —TNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET TATT

Within one year R—FR
Over one year but not more BB —FETEAME

than two years

29,295 20,010

1,371 5,142

Less: portion classified B D ERRE A EN

as current liabilities

30,666 25,152

(29,295) (20,010)

Non-current liabilities FERBEE

1,371 5,142

As at 31 December 2020, lease obligations of approximately
HK$891,000 (2019:HK$1,207,000) that are denominated
in RMB other than the functional currencies of the relevant
group entities.

As at the end of the reporting period, the future minimum
lease payments of the net minimum lease payments are as

NR-ZE-_ZEF+_A=+—RB HEXIE
47891,0007% 7T (=& — L% : 1,207,0007%8
TR MEEEBERINEEEUINNAR
MATE -

RBEPR HREEEMFFEZ KKK
EREMNZEINT -

2020 2019
— —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TAET

29,633 20,670

1,570 5,212

31,203 25,882
(537) (730)

follows:

Within one year R—%RX

Over one year but not more HBiE—FEIBERF
than two years

Total lease payments HEMNRERE

Less: Finance charge K E R

Total lease obligations HEAERER

30,666 25,152
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z =F = FF+—A=—+—HIFFEZ

32. Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 32. St RMITREMEGURRIT

and bank overdrafts EX
2020 2019
- 7 —% ﬁ :;Eijlﬁ
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate per rate per
annum (%) Maturity SLEHNIE  annum (%) Maturity HK$'000
BRERZ ERERE
(%) L) TR (%) gl TR
Current Ik
Bank overdrafts - secured  $R{TE X —HEIE 481053 On demand AR 481053 Ondemand 117,103
4.8%5.3 RER 48%53 BEL
Bank borrowings - secured ~ $R{TEE - BH 3.0t04.9 2021 102,716 [EEKKRCER 12020 105,000
30849 Z—B=-F 30849 —Z-FE
Current portion of BREBRITEHEDHHH N/A N/A 33103.5 2020 8,057
mortgage bank -RER TER TER 33835 ZEZEF
borrowings - secured
102,716 113,057
Other borrowings EfEE-EER 53t08.0 Ondemand 245,200 8.0  On demand 215,000
- unsecured 5.3%8.0 RER BREX
Other borrowings EpfEE-BER 9.0to 13.0 2021 119,772 EEKECREN 2020 214,854
- secured 9.0E13.0 =% 83Z141 ZZTZTF
364,972 429,854
554,096 660,014
Non-current FENH
Mortgage bank BRBROTER-FER 33t03.5 2021-2037 148,283
borrowings - secured 33835 ZEZ—%%
TSt F
554,096 808,297
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For the year endled 31 December 2020 #{2 —F _—FF+ _H=—1—HILFZ

32. Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 32.

and bank overdrafts (continued)
Notes:

(a) The Group's overdraft facilities amounting to HK$175,000,000
(2019: HK$175,000,000), of which approximately
HK$86,408,000 (2019: HK$117,103,000) had been utilised as
at the end of the reporting period.

(b)  The Group’s bank overdraft and certain of the Group’s bank
borrowings included above are secured by:

i mortgages over the Group’s investment property
situated in Hong Kong, which had a carrying value at
the year ended 31 December 2019 of HK$390,000,000
(Note 15). The mortgages were fully repaid and the
corresponding mortgages charge was released during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

ii. listed equity and debt investments securities pledged
to the Group held by certain margin clients with an
aggregate amount of approximately HK$343,668,000
(2019: HK$220,439,000).

(c) Certain of the Group’s other borrowings are secured by listed
securities held by the Group with market values as below:

S ERTREMEEURETT
EX m)

fi s

(a)

Equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss

Equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive
income

AL E

BRESERAFEIRZBRAKRE

BERHEMEEKERATFEIIKRZ

(d)  Other borrowings — unsecured are repayable on demand to
Globally Finance Limited, a subsidiary of FWH.

(e)  Bank borrowings and other borrowings are maturing within one
year. The carrying amounts of these loans approximate to their
fair values.

() Mortgaged bank borrowings bear floating rates with reference
to HIBOR and Prime Rate. The carrying amounts of these loans
approximate their fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A M SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #(2 —F _FF+ _H=—+—HILFZ

33. Notes payable 33. BERREE
2020 2019
—2-%F —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTER FET
Notes payable AN S 86,574 86,574
The Group issued notes (the “2016 Notes”) with an aggregate AEERN-—BBEIALTBOTER(ZF
principal amount of HK$92,100,000, before related expenses —NFEE])  HBR5,526,00078 T iH R
of HK$5,526,000, to an independent individual. The 2016 X AT Z A& #2 % 592,100,000 Lo = F
Notes bear interest at a rate of 4% per annum and will mature —RFEBRFNE4%A TR T
in January 2024. The interest will be repayable by the Group —ME-RAEH-AEEREEIBHARNSE
annually on the anniversary of the issue date of the respective FREEZBERTABNZBAFABENE
notes and up to the maturity date.
The Group has calculated the interest of notes payable by REBEEREF5.04% (ZFT—NF:
the effective interest rate at 5.04% (2019: 5.04%) per annum 504%) CEBRNEXFERNZENZ &
and the amount of notes payable interest of approximately RNREFE 2 2HA17,534,0008 7T (ZF
HK$17,534,000 (2019: HK$13,066,000) included in the other — L% :13,066,00078 7T ) &t AR & B 75
payables in Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements. R FE30Z ELA FE 5 5R0R -
34. Share capital 34. A

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Authorised: JERE
80,000,000,000 (2019: 80,000,000,000% ( =ZF— .5 :
80,000,000,000) ordinary 80,000,000,000/% )
shares of HK$0.01 each BRR0.01B T2 TR 800,000 800,000
Issued and fully paid: 2EITNERE
15,969,650,461 (2019: 15,969,650,461% ( =& — N 4 :
14,719,650,461) ordinary 14,719,650,4610% )
shares of HK$0.01 each BRRo.01B T2 TR 159,697 147,197
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For the year endled 31 December 2020 #{2 —F _—FF+ _H=—1—HILFZ

34. Share capital (continued) 34. BZN (@)
A summary of movements of the Company’s issued shares BARRREBITRARRMD RERZ &
capital and share premium account is as follows: IO
Issued Share
Number of share premium
shares in issue capital account Total
ERTROHE ERTRE R4 EE R st
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Mt TET TET TAT
At 1 January 2019 RZZE-NE—-A—H 14,716,650,461 147,167 4,671,489 4,818,656
Exercise of share options TiE R (i 3,000,000 30 215 245
At 31 December 2019 and ~ RZF— L5
1 January 2020 +-A=+t-Hk
—E-ZF-Af-A 14,719,650,461 147,197 4,671,704 4,818,901
Exercise of share options TRERE (ii) 1,250,000,000 12,500 92,420 104,920
At 31 December 2020 RZZ_ZF
+-A=+—"H 15,969,650,461 159,697 4,764,124 4,923,821
Notes: P& -
i i i NBEZFT-NFT_A=t—RLFE"
(i) During the year ended 31 December 2019, 3,000,000 share (i EAEE_Z:'E: o m i A o
options were exercised which results in 3,000,000 shares being ETT@;(@/OQW R i 'fg?ﬂx{g
issued at a price of HK$0.059 per share. 1£0.05978 7L 173,000,000 & {7 ©
(i) During the year ended 31 December 2020, 1,250,000,000 (iD) ﬁé%’i?t:;ﬁ:giWL:ﬁerfaf%?
share options were exercised which results in 1,250,000,000 %ET%]'ZSO'OOO’POQ{D ,ﬁﬁﬁﬁ;& L A5
shares being issued at a price of HK$0.046, HK$0.059 and jtgHXEE*%O'OM”%E‘9;0;?9/\%75&0'062
HK$0.062 respectively per share. 78 7L 471,250,000,0008 A7 ©
Share options 'ﬂﬁﬂﬂgﬂi st Tt -
Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share ﬁ%;%?L\fﬂfg‘fﬂ?\%;rfU&ﬁE” IE\—KE%”
options issued under the scheme are included in Note 37 to MR RIS B B R & I B W M 37

the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #2 —F —FF+ - H=+—HI-FZ

Reserves

The contributed surplus of the Group arose as a result of the
Group reorganisation upon listing of the Company’s shares
in 1994, and represented the difference between the nominal
value of the shares of the former holding company of the
Group prior to the Group reorganisation and the nominal
value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor.

In addition, pursuant to special and ordinary resolutions
passed at the special general meeting held on 22 September
2000, the issued and fully paid share capital of the Company
was reduced by HK$448,992,000 through a reduction in the
nominal value of the share capital of the Company. The credit
so arising was transferred to the contributed surplus.

On 28 July 2005, a capital reorganisation scheme was
approved by the shareholders under a special resolution,
pursuant to which, every 10 shares of HK$0.01 each in
the issued share capital of the Company were consolidated
into one consolidated share of HK$0.10 and every issued
consolidated share was reduced in nominal amount by
cancelling HK$0.09 of the capital paid up for each issued
consolidated share so as to form (after the share consolidation)
one reorganised share of HK$0.01. The credit so arising was
transferred to the contributed surplus.

On 26 March 2013, a capital reorganisation scheme was
approved by the shareholders under a special resolution,
pursuant to which, every 5 shares of HK$0.01 each in the
issued share capital of the Company were consolidated
into one consolidated share of HK$0.05 and every issued
consolidated share was reduced in nominal amount by
cancelling HK$0.04 of the capital paid up for each issued
consolidated share so as to form (after the share consolidation)
one reorganised share of HK$0.01. The credit so arising was
transferred to the contributed surplus.

On 27 February 2015, a capital reorganisation was approved
by the shareholders under a special resolution, pursuant
to which, every 10 shares of HK$0.01 each in the issued
share capital of the Company were consolidated into one
consolidated share of HK$0.10 and every issued consolidated
share was reduced in nominal amount by cancelling HK$0.09
of the capital paid up for each issued consolidated share so
as to form (after the share consolidation) one reorganised
share of HK$0.01. The credit so arising was transferred to the
contributed surplus.

The equity component of convertible bonds arose from the
convertible bonds with the maturity date of 15 November
2010 issued by the Company in 2007, which had been fully
redeemed by the Company upon maturity.

35.

i
AEBZEGEKRREARR B RN N
—ANmFEENRMETZEEEHA B
SEEARMAEEZATERARRO@EE
BARBRRBWZEFRN MBTRMD 2E
BEFT% hc Bag

N BER-_ZEEEFNA-_+-HHR
TZBREFARE LMBEZFIRER
RER AR ZEBRITRBERANER
BB AN~ B B8 A8 2 T & Bl Bk448,992,000
BT -ENNEEZEREREETHRG -

R-_EBEERFE+A -+ NA BAEHA
BRI —EE R R R R R - Rt
AARBEBEITRAF F10 SR EEO.01
BrzBRMHAEfAE—KREELIOBTZA
BERty MEBREBITAMHRH Z2EES
BEESEEITAFRMIBILZHRE
BE A F LABIR Bt E £ (R E &)
—REE0.OB T2 &=, - AttESE
CEFREREEE A%

RZE—=F=ZA=Z+ 8 BRAEMHE:
IR — IR R R R AR - Bt
RRAREEITHRAF HRER@EE.01E
TTZ MDA R —RE{E0.05E T Z & B
By MEBRCETAHBRNZEEEBR
HEHEE D RITAMKRMN.04B T ZEREK
AT LAHIR Bt E A (R0 & #H18) —
PREME0.OTE T2 REBER M -EILEEZ
EREREEHARK-

RZE—FEFE_A=-++tR BREAEAR
B—IEERAREERELE  BIL - AR
RIEBITIRA R EFI0REREE.1BE T
ZBRHpEHAE—REEI0E LA HFIK
 MBREBTEHRMH ZIABEEBT
HE B EITAFRB0.098 T 2 BRI A
FLABLR B EE (REDEaHE) — K
H{E0.0OE T 2 I EAM D - Bt EE 7 #
IREREEHRG-

AmkEs R NRE —TTLFH
RARRABIZIHABR_ZE—ZTF+—H
THRMNARBESZ AAFCRIHE
BEEO A BEES-

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 3 181



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

iR e SRR

For the year endled 31 December 2020 #Z —F = FF A =—+—HIFZ

36. MERERERME

36. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash

flows

(@) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing @ BMETHFRELAGEZIHE
activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TRANAEBEREZBHELRE
from financing activities, including both cash and non- 22 BRACNIRSEH B

BERPELERBENRESREDN EI
“BReREBENAEELRERER

cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash

flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated ERDERMEZHELZTRERE
statements of cash flow as cash flows from financing ZBfE-
activities.
Other
horrowing
interest Total liabilities
Lease included in Other Bank Notes  from financing
liabilities  other payables borrowings borrowings payable activities
s A A
HE Eth REEDL
HEAE RERIE Afbfe s BITHE ERRE AEAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TART TART TART TART TART TART
At 1 January 2020 R-B-RE-A-A 25,152 5,224 429,854 261,340 86,574 808,144
Changes from financing cash flows: ~ BEBREHEEE):
Proceeds from new unsecured MEREREMEE
other borrowings FERE 34,200 34,200
Proceeds from new secured MEREAEMES
other borrowings FERE 129,873 129,873
Proceeds from new secured MERERRORE
bank borrowings FERE 214,241 214,241
Repayment of secured BEBEEARTEE
bank borrowings (372,865) (372,865)
Repayment of unsecured BEREAEMES
other borrowings (4,000) (4,000)
Repayment of secured ERAEAEMES
other borrowings = (224,955) (224,955)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEREAE (16,082) = (16,082)

Payment for interest portion of
other borrowings

Payment for interest portion of
bank borrowings

Payment for interest portion of
lease liabilities

INELEEFSHS
XRRTEEFEHS
XHREEEFEHD

Total changes from financing
cash flows

RERENEEDER

Other changes:

Interest charges on other borrowings
Interest charges on bank borrowings
Interest charges on lease liabilities

A2

ApEEZHBER
BITEEZFSER
REEEZABER

(11,806)

(164,503)

(17,030)

(5,879)

(1,383)
(263,880)
17,823

5,879
1,383

New lease liabilities HERERE = 21,514
Exchange realignment B AE - 82
Total other changes Engaag 11,806 5,879 46,681
As at 31 December 2020 R-B=%%

+-B=t-A 364,972 102,716 590,945
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #(2 —F _FF+ _H=—+—HILFZ

36. MEBRERERMT (&)

36. Notes to the consolidated statement of cash
flows (continued)

(@) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (@ BMEITBFECEBEZ2YHIR(HE)
activities (continued)
Other Total
borrowing liabilities
interest from
Lease included in Other Bank Notes financing
liabilities  other payables borrowings borrowings payable activities
SEAE R
FIE A BEEH
RERE BEME EthfEE RITEE e REAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAR TR T T T
At 1 January 2019 RZBE-hn&E-A-H 20,500 909 472,178 298,660 86,574 878,621
Changes from financing cash flows: ~ BERSHEFE:
Proceeds from new unsecured MERERERES
other borrowings FrSsE = = 55,000 = = 55,000
Proceeds from new secured MEREREREE
other borrowings FENE = = 134,776 = = 134,776
Proceeds from new secured HEEBAEIEE
bank borrowings R - - - 105,000 - 105,000
Repayment of secured BEERARIEER
bank borrowings - - - (142,320 - (142,320)
Repayment of unsecured EEREERAMES
other borrowings - - (12,000) - - (12,000
Repayment of secured BREFERAMES
other borrowings = = (220,100 = = (220,100
Repayment of lease liabilities BERERE (17,519) = = = = (17,519)
Payment for interest portion of SNELEENSHS
other borrowings = (909) (11,603) = = (12,512)
Payment for interest portion of SNBRTEENSHS
bank borrowings - - - (8,726) - (8,726)
Payment for interest portion of XAEERENEHS
lease liabilities (1,130 - - = = (1,130
Total changes from financing RERERNELDLE
cash flows (18,649) (909) (53,927) (46,046) - (119,531)
Other changes: EMEE:
Interest charges on other borrowings  EfEE 2 FISEA - 5,24 11,603 = = 16,827
Interest charges on bank borrowings  F/TEE 2 FIEEA - - - 8,726 = 8,726
Interest charges on lease liabiliies ~ HE&EZFISEA 1,130 = = = = 1,130
New lease liabilities HiERERE 2,171 = = = = 2,171
Total other changes Hihgaes 23,301 5,224 11,603 8,726 = 48,854
At 31 December 2019 RZB-NE+ZR
=t-H 25,152 5,224 429,854 261,340 86,574 808,144
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37. Share option schemes

The Company operates share option schemes for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Eligible participants of the share option schemes include the
Company’s directors, including independent non-executive
directors, other employees of the Group or any invested
entity, suppliers of goods or services to the Group or any
invested entity, customers of the Group or any invested entity,
shareholders of the Group or any invested entity, holders of
securities of the Group or any invested entity and persons
or entities that provide research, development or other
technological support to the Group or any invested entity. A
share option scheme became effective on 27 August 2003
and expired on 26 August 2013 (the “2003 Scheme”). A new
share option scheme was adopted and became effective on
27 September 2013 (the “2013 Scheme”). Unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, the 2013 Scheme will remain in force
for 10 years from the effective date.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options granted and to be granted under the
2003 Scheme and the 2013 Scheme (collectively, the “Share
Option Schemes”) is an amount equivalent to 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at the dates of approval
of the Share Option Schemes unless approval for refreshing
the 10% limit from the Company’s shareholders has been
obtained. The maximum number of shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the share options granted to each
eligible participant in the Share Option Schemes (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) within any
12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue. Any further grant of share options in excess
of this limit is subject to shareholders’ approval in a general
meeting.

Under the Share Option Schemes, share options granted to
a director, chief executive or substantial shareholder of the
Company, or to any of their associates are subject to approval
in advance by the independent non-executive directors.
In addition, any grant of share options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, which would result
in the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of such grant
in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue
and with an aggregate value (based on the closing price
of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of
HK$5,000,000 is subject to shareholders’ approval in advance
in a general meeting.
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37. Share option schemes (continued)

The offer of a grant of share options under the Share Option
Schemes may be accepted within 28 days from the date of
offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in
total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determined by the directors, save that such period
shall not be more than 10 years from the dates of adoption
of the Share Option Schemes subject to the provisions for
early termination set out in the Share Option Schemes. Unless
otherwise determined by the directors at their sole discretion,
there is no requirement of a minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised.

The exercise price of share options granted under the Share
Option Schemes is determined by the directors, but shall
not be less than the highest of (i) the Stock Exchange closing
price of the Company’s shares on the date of offer of the
share options; (ii) the average Stock Exchange closing price
of the Company’s shares for the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of offer; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share of the Company on the date of offer.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends
or to vote at shareholders” meetings.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no share options
were granted (2019: 2,743,020,000 share options were
granted) under the 2013 Scheme to eligible participants,
963,998,000 (2019: 1,005,466,000) share options were
lapsed and 1,250,000,000 (2019: 3,000,000) share options
were exercised. The outstanding options granted under the
2013 Scheme shall continue to be valid and are subject to the
provisions of the 2003 Scheme and Chapter 17 of the Listing
Rules.

37. BREFTE @)

RIEZSBRET S BREZARAR
RBRERDBHEF TN NBRRER
CEMER  BERE YAREMAKEHR
BRIBTZRBARE -BIREZITER
HEZRRE HEZTEHISBAZETE
PRt B R B MG T F URZERE
P #E 51 8 BT 3 A0 2 A AR LIRS IR » R 9F
EENREBERBERSITRE SAX
EABNBBER TR AR A % B RE
RAHIR 2 RRE °

REZEFBRETIRD ZBREZTE
EHEZEE ETGLIRUNT=ZEZ&
BEHARFABRMRREBERERRE
B 2 W E () AR R R R ERER
HEERE B IR A AR 5 A ATz F
BULTHE + R (i) AN 2 B B0 70 15 o s RS HE
B mEE -

BREFAAERERRESINBIRK

gERR-

HE_Z2_Z2F+-_A=+—81tHF
B e\ (ZZF—NLF:2,743,020,000
MIBRERE -_ZT—ZFF2KTA
B2 EE963,998,00000 (—ZE—Hh
% :1,005,466,00017 ) R B KB &
1,250,000,0001% ( ==& — L4 : 3,000,000
M BEREETE - RE-ZFT—=F8lf
BREZHATEERBESEESN X
ZTET=FHEARETMRAEI7E 2B
Fr#3 MR ©

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 F£# 185



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

W

iR e SRR

For the year endled 31 December 2020 #{2 —F _—FF+ _H=—1—HILFZ

37. Share option schemes (continued)

The following share options were outstanding during the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019:

37. BREFTE (@)
NTERERBEE-"E-_TER-_F—1
= A=+ — A ERE RIS

2013 Scheme
weighted average

exercise price Number of
per share options
ZE-=F53
FROINE
FITEE BlEHE
HK$’000 ‘000
TET T
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—-—h&—H—H 0.146 1,969,464
Lapsed during the year FARAKMK 0.174 (1,005,466)
Granted during the year FARHE 0.059 2,743,020
Exercised during the year FAITRE 0.059 (3,000
At 31 December 2019 and —F ﬂ¢+_ﬂ_+—5&

1 January 2020 —E-FF—H—H 3,704,018
Lapsed during the year FRERK (963,998)
Granted during the year FRARE -
Exercised during the year FRITE (1,250,000)
At 31 December 2020 R-ZFE-_FTFE+-_A=+—H . 1,490,020

The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other
similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

The exercise period of the share options that were outstanding
as at 31 December 2020 are from 3 May 2019 to 2 May
2021, 4 June 2019 to 3 June 2021 and 20 June 2019 to
19 June 2021 (2019: 18 April 2018 to 10 April 2020, 3 May
2019 to 2 May 2021, 4 June 2019 to 3 June 2021 and 20 June
2019 to 19 June 2021).

The fair values of the equity-settled share options granted
during the year ended 31 December 2019 were estimated by
Ascent Partners Valuation Service Limited, an independent
firm of professionally qualified valuer, using the binomial
option pricing model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. The fair
value of the equity-settled share options granted during the
year ended 31 December 2019 was HK$66,809,000. The
Group recognised a share option expense of HK$66,809,000
during the year ended 31 December 2019.
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37. Share option schemes (continued)

The following table lists the inputs to the model used.

Share options granted

—E—-hEF

B AR
Dividend yield (%) A% B 2R (%)
Expected volatility (%) TEEHR 18 (%)
Historical volatility (%) JEE 52 IR & (%)
Risk-free interest rate (%) [ B M) K (%)
Expected life of options (year) TFHEREES (F)
Share price at grant date R B HRE
(HK$ per share) (Bx/ 8k)

The expected volatility reflects the assumption that the
historical volatility is indicative of future trends, which may
also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was incorporated into
the measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
1,490,020,000 (2019: 3,704,018,000) share options
outstanding under the Share Option Schemes, which
represented approximately 10% (2019: 25%) of the
Company’s shares in issue as at that date. The exercise in full
of the share options would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 1,490,020,000 (2019:
3,704,018,000) additional ordinary shares of the Company
and additional share capital of approximately HK$1,490,000
(2019: HK$37,040,000) and share premium of approximately
HK$203,537,000 (2019: HK$587,750,000) (before issue
expenses).

No vesting period of the share options granted during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

37. BRRESE (|

TRINL B AZRE AR ZBUE -

20 June 3 May
2019 2019

—E-hF

~A=+H EFH=H
N/A 738 B

N/A R iE A
78.09 83.70
78.09 83.70
1.74 1.74
2 2

TEET IR IR R BRI 2R IR AR KB 2 RAR -
BRZARBE T T —ERERER-

15 41 2 AR 4 AR B AT AR B 2
sE

RBEBR AR RZEHERE
2| N A1,490,020,0000 (Z = — nL &
3,704,018,00017 ) (H R1T{E AL - BE R
ARAREHBBITRMHOI0% (ZE—N
F125%)  WBANT BRI 2 ERRE
BT BB AR A 8 8 B 251,490,020,000
f% (—Z — A5 : 3,704,018,0000% ) AN A &
L@ WSBRAMBE D RE (NBETH
A1) 2 BIE A1491,490,0008 T ( — 2 — 1
F :37,040,0007%8 7T ) & #9203,537,0007% 7T
(ZZ— "% :587,750,000/& 7T ) °

BE-S—NE+-A=+—ALEE
B MR ERB Y-
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38.

39.

40.

188

Lease arrangements

As lessor

The Group subleases the properties under operating lease
arrangements with leases negotiated for less than one year.

At 31 December 2020, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with
its tenants falling due as follows:

—FR

Within one year

Commitments

Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2020 not
provided for in the Group’s financial statements contracted
for HK$3,590,000 which is solely related to office system
development.

Related party transactions

(@ In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in
these financial statements, the Group had the following
transactions with certain related parties during the year.

KEEFETES

Interest income on margin
financing from directors

arising from securities Z M BHA
dealing transactions

Commission income received ~ WHEFHEITES
from directors arising from BEER G2 WA

securities dealing transactions
Interest expenses on loans
from an associate F B
Interest income of an associate H—&ZEF Wz —
received from a director /NG A S N N

BEEXSZRETRE

xE—MEERRERZ

38. HEZH
ERHBEA
AEBRBRELLHSELHERYE &7
A —FZRe
R-ZE-_ZTF+-_/F=+—H KAEER
BAATEEEERER THHME 2 EWE
PZARRFERERBERENT
2020 2019
—2-%F —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH T FHET
593 -
39. KiIE
R-ZE-_TF+_A=+—8 EEKETT
7 & R HE3,590,00058 7T I A 5D A 5 B BF
BHERPEE HEEARRAEZEZREER
-
40. BEALTRS
(@ BAFBRREMBOAFLZRS
G REBRAAEEBNATEETH
BALTZRS-
2020 2019
i —T-NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FH T FHET
(i) 2,159
(i) 1
(ii) 3,101
(iii) 258
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40. Related party transactions (continued)
(continued)

(a)

Note:

(i)

(iii)

Commission income and interest income on margin
financing received from directors of the Company which
arose from securities dealing transactions were charged
based on mutually agreed terms with reference to the
prices and conditions similar to those offered to other
customers of the Group.

Commission income and interest income on margin
financing received from directors of the Company of
approximately HK$1,309,000(2019: HK$1,749,000) also
constituted connected transaction as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

Interest expenses on loans from an associate were
charged at a rate of 8% per annum on the principal
amount for the period from 1 January 2019 to 13 March
2019.

The Group had lost significant influence over the
associate on 13 March 2019 and hence the lender is not
considered by the Group as a related party since then.

Interest income of an associate received from Ocean
Wave Motion Pictures (International) Limited, 50%
owned by Mr. Chen Xiaodong, an executive director of
the Company, was charged at a rate of 12% per annum
on the outstanding amount of advancement.

The Group had lost significant influence over the
associate on 13 March 2019 and hence the lender is not
considered by the Group as a related party since then.

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:

The Group considers the directors of the Company to be
the key management personnel, whose compensation
has been disclosed in Note 8 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Outstanding balances with related parties:

Details of the balances with the Company’s directors as

at 31

December 2020 and 2019 are included in Notes

21, 28 and 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

40. BEAETR S (#)

(a)

(%)
B i :

i) WREARREFLETEFEERS
ZREBARRESRBE NS WA
BB EGREE L E2ZE N
AEEAEMEPREZBEERK
fi o

WEARREREZAS WA RRE
£ @ EF B WA 41,309,000/ 7T
(ZZ— A4 1,749,000/ 7T ) TN &
B EMHRBEI4ASE TR EZH
HER G

i) RZE-hhF-—A—-BE-Z—-Hh
FZRA+T=HHMB BLERREK
Z B3 H T & FEIR8% 6 5 7
FRUYTHR »

AEER-_Z-AF=A+=BE
HEERNBREERATED  FHlt
Bt AR REBTHBBERAR
REEAL

(i) BRMZE(HEE)ERARF (HAX
NAMITEEREREEHF0%)
YRR — [ B 8 R B 2 A B AT
BARMEIE BRIR1 2% B9 F F R YGHR -

FEER-_Z-AF=A+=HE
HEMERRREBEAFEN At
BUt AR RNEBETEBERAR
REEAL

AEBFEEBAEZHME:

AEERRARFEEFHR/IEER
AR BBEALZMERGEAMBR
R8I EE

BER_ZE_ZEFR_ZT-NF+=
A=+—BEARANESTZ2&EHB 2
HBEHRREGET B RENE21 28K
29
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41. Financial instruments by category
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

Financial assets

Financial asset

at fair value
through profit
or loss
DFEFIRZ
CREE
—BCERF
31 December 2020 +=B=+—H HK$'000
TERT
Debt investments HRERERATE
at fair value through YR 2 BEEIRE
profit or loss 241,919
Equity investments FREAM 2 E S
at fair value through HAF(EYEE S
other comprehensive AR A
income
Equity and fund BREREATE
investments at fair 5| BE 2 P& AN K2
value through HEmE
profit or loss 373,649
Loan receivables from  JWEEKELZ
money lending EWEH
business
Trade receivables BENMHEESR
from securities and HRELE Y
futures dealing FEU S 5B
business
Trade receivables RENEEER
from placing and HRELE Y
asset management EWE 5=
business
Financial assets included =t A FE {3018 -
in prepayments, 2% R i K
deposits and other HIE Y S EE
receivables
Cash and bank balances R4 RiR1T4517
Bank balances held on Rtk xFiEH
behalf of clients RIT4ETF =

615,568
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41. ZERE 2 Z2ER T HE

EESMTANREHK EEENT

TREE

Financial assets
at amortised
cost

B8R A5 IR
ZEMEE

HK$'000
TER

517,089

306,785

101,683
140,440

436,471
1,545,973

Financial asset
at fair value
through other
comprehensive
income
ZRHM

2H KRR E
DNEEHERZ

HK$’000
TET

344,559

344,559

At
HK$’000
TER

241,919

344,559

373,649

517,089

306,785

101,683
140,440

436,471

2,506,100
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41. BZERE ST A (#)

41. Financial instruments by category (continued)

Financial asset

Financial asset
at fair value

at fair value  Financial assets  through other
through profit at amortised  comprehensive
or loss cost income Total
BRBEHER _ 2HKHER
DREIEe REBHEEERIE ATFEIERZ R
CREE ZERMEE CREE wat
—E-NF
31 December 2019 +=-—RA=+—H HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TER THER TER THER
Debt investments at FHBERIEATE
fair value through FIBR 2 BRIRE
profit or loss 168,530 = = 168,530
Equity investments at FHBEMEE W
fair value through BATEIRZ
other comprehensive A E
income - - 506,650 506,650
Equity and fund FRBEHEATE
investments at fair PR 2 IR R
value through EeRE
profit or loss 115,505 - - 115,505
Loan receivables WEXBEEZ
from money e E R
lending business — 446,462 — 446,462
Trade receivables BAEMPEER
from securities and XBEEZ
futures dealing Y E 5 R
business = 412,344 = 412,344
Trade receivables MEREETIE
from placing and EBELZ
asset management FEWE 5 BR K
business - 52,265 - 52,265
Financial assets included 5 A& 5k7A »
in prepayments, e MEAD R
deposits and PRIEZEREE
other receivables - 100,054 - 100,054
Cash and bank balances IR& MIR1T41F = 99,219 = 99,219
Bank balances held RKREPHE
on behalf of clients RITEETT _ 71,352 _ 71,352
284,035 1,181,696 506,650 1,972,381
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41. Financial instruments by category (continued) 41. RERE D 2&@ T A (#)
b gory

2020 2019
—E-FHF —E-NF
Financial liabilities at amortised cost 1Z# HEXARFIRZ @ @B E HK$'000 HK$’000
FTHER FET
Trade payables e E SRR 440,015 74,108
Financial liabilities included in other &t AE M ENRIBEREER 2
payables and accruals TREBE 61,204 56,422
Third party interests in consolidated RéFEREESZE=FExn
investment fund 86,358 109,599
Notes payable AN 86,574 86,574
Lease liabilities HERE 30,666 25,152
Other borrowings Hipfg & 364,972 429,854
Bank borrowings RITEE 102,716 261,340
Bank overdrafts RITEX 86,408 117,103
1,258,913 1,160,152
42. Offsetting of financial instruments 42. BEEM IR
The Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off REBBRK AL RITRMNEHERK K
receivable and payable with Hong Kong Securities Clearing ENEEPREEBRIB(EEEE])
Company Limited (“HKSCC”) and Hong Kong Futures RBEEHEHEMBRAR (HEHEER
Exchange Clearing Corporation Limited (“HKCC”); and the Al ZzFE: MASEBRIRFREFEK
Group intends to settle on a net basis as trade receivables IENBEEERPELEERRIZES R
from or trade payables to HKSCC and HKCC. e
In presenting the amounts due from/to the clearing houses, REVEYW TENEEMRER  ~EE
the Group has offset the gross amount of the trade receivables EREREER 2 B 5 RN EEIEHEER
from and the gross amount of the trade payables to the HEMZESRREE -BEEHEE LT
clearing houses. The amounts offset and the net balances are AR

shown as follows:

Gross amount Amount offset Net amount
e BHEHESHE R
31 December 2020 B+ -A=+—H HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TAERT THERT FTHER
Amount of trade receivables R E T2 & 5 8RK
from the clearing houses 20,554 (9,396) 11,158
Amount of trade payables BN EERZE SRR
from the clearing houses (9,396) 9,396
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42. Offsetting of financial instruments (continued)

42. HEESMIE @)

Gross amount Amount Offset Net amount
Hx CEESHE FE
31 December 2019 —E-NF+=ZA=+—H HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FERT FERT
Amount of trade receivables EUW4EEFT 2 E 5 ERH
from the clearing houses 203,629 (203,629) -
Amount of trade payables BB B SRR
from the clearing houses (209,103) 203,629 (5,474)

43. Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments
Management has assessed that the fair values of cash
and bank balances, loan receivables from money lending
business, trade receivables from securities and futures
dealing business, trade receivables from placing and asset
management business, trade payables, financial assets
included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals,
bank overdrafts, bank and other borrowings, and third party
interests in consolidated investment fund approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of
these instruments.

The Group's finance department is responsible for determining
the policies and procedures for the fair value measurement
of financial instruments. The finance manager reports
directly to the financial controller and the audit committee.
At each reporting date, the finance department analyses
the movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation.

The valuation is reviewed and approved by the financial
controller. The valuation process and results are discussed
with the audit committee twice a year for interim and annual
financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale. The following
methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

The fair value of the notes payable and lease liabilities has
been calculated by discounting the expected future cash
flows using rates currently available for instruments with
similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities, which
approximate to their carrying amounts.

43. e T EAFEER
HARBLRBITREE HEEBEL YR
MBS BARNSEELREL Y BK
BOEN REREAECHERELfE
WB SIS  ENBSER st ATENZE
REREMERRBEY SMEE AR
WENKERESER Y SRMAE BT
BY BIREMESURAGARER
STECHEEASANEHRIEY WE
BERARETAAVEEEEEEMRE-

AEEMBHFEERESR TARTE
AEBRREERF MBEEERRAMBGA
ENBELZREQER -NERSEH UK
MPASMEMTABEZES NEEMRE
FRTERAMEZE AR

EEE S BEENRIE - FREAS
B 18 4B 12 I 4 0o 50 4 B 9 5
SFHRMA -

SREEREMNATEARTAR GE
X557 (MFRAREREE)ENRST
MARSHEBAR- T 55 ERBRT A
RS EATE:

ENRBELEEAENAFEBBERA
AR AUIER R - 15 B R e & 8RB H B IR 19
TRAZHMAGHNXTRBHRLRSRE
matE BEKEERS-
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43. Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments

(continued)

The fair values of listed equity investments at fair value
through other comprehensive income and equity investments
at fair value through profit or loss are based on quoted market
prices.

The fair values of debt investments at fair value through profit
or loss and fund investments at fair value through profit or
loss are based on quoted market price in inactive markets.

Fair value hierarchy
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

Quoted prices
in active
markets
(Level 1)

WER

mZHRE

(F—E&R)

At 31 December 2020 RZZE
+= HK$'000
THET

BRESEATE
Nk BEHRE

Debt investments at fair
value through
profit or loss

Equity investments FEREMEERER

at fair value through REETE

other comprehensive BRARE

income 344,559
Equity and fund BERBRRATE

investments at fair SR Z RA

value through EeRE

profit or loss 321,699

666,258
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43. TR T ERAFEEHK @)

EREMEREERAFEIEKRZ EHK
REERBBBSERAFEIKR ZBRAR
BZRAVEEMSHREMEE -

BRBHREAFEINRNEBREZAF
BEREABESEAFEIKRIESRET
ERANERBONISREMETE

ANFERER
THRINTAEEEHRIANR
A

FEHERE

BRFEFENEE:

Significant
observable

Significant
unobservable

input inputs

(Level 2)
BERAEER
BARE
(E5=EBR)

(Level 3)

EAFUER

A HiE
(B=E#&K) #Et

HK$’000
Fi#

HK$'000
Fia

HK$'000
TER

241,919 241,919

344,559

51,950 373,649

293,869 960,127
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43. Fair value hierarchy of financial instruments  43. €@ T EAFEER (&)

(continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) NP EER (&)
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets input inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RIER BEAUBRE EBEATTHR
TEHE WARE WARE
(B—E&R) (BZER) (E=EB&) #ct
At 31 December 2019 RZT-NF
+=-A=+—H HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TR THT TR THx
Debt investments at BREREATE
fair value through JIfR BHIRE
profit or loss - 168,530 - 168,530
Equity investments at FEREbEERE
fair value through BRAFEINRS
other comprehensive RAEKRE
income 506,650 - - 506,650
Equity and fund BREREATE
investments at fair FIER 2 IRA R
value through HeRE
profit or loss 38,432 77,073 = 115,505
545,082 245,603 - 790,685
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FRN ITEEF-_EBREE=ZFRANLITF
measurements between Level 1 and Level 3 (2019: Nil). B EEEB(—E—AF &)
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at AEER_Z_ZFR_ZF-NF+A
fair value as at 31 December 2020 and 2019. = t—BYEEFARATEFEZE2HE
=
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #2 —F —FF+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

44. Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise equity,
debt and fund investments and cash and bank balances. The
main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance
for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables from
securities and futures dealing business, trade receivables from
placing and asset management business, loan receivables
from money lending business, trade payables, notes payable,
other borrowings, bank borrowings, third party interests in
consolidated investment fund and lease liabilities. Details of
the major financial instruments and the Group’s accounting
policies in relation to them are disclosed in Note 2 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity
risk and equity price risk. The board of directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from dealings in securities which are
settled in currencies other than the Company’s functional
currency and holding of bank balances in foreign currency.
As at 31 December 2020, cash and bank balances of
RMB10,635,000 (2019: RMB7,810,000) and US$57,508,000
(2019: US$8,756,000) were held by the Group. As the
HK$ is pegged to the US$, the Group considers the risk of
movements in exchange rates between the HK$ and the US$
to be insignificant.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #(2 —F _FF+ _H=—+—HILFZ

44. Financial risk management objectives and

pOliCieS (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of
the reporting period to reasonably possible changes in the
RMB exchange rates, with all other variables held constant, of
the Company’s profit before tax and the Company’s equity.

44. BERBREEEEREE (&)

ShEE R B (8
TRHAVEMBEEMERETTE N R
FHRARBERZSEAREHH AR
AIBRBANER R AR AR B2 R
[ o

(Decrease)/ Increase/
increase in (decrease) in Increase/
exchange rate profit (decrease)
(%) before tax in equity
E= MR B A& F R
(F&) /L#  #&m/ CRL)  #®m/ CE)
(%) HK$ HK$
BT BT

31 December 2020 “ER-RFt-A=t—H

If the Hong Kong dollar BT HARERE
weakens against the RMB

If the Hong Kong dollar BT ARETE

strengthens against the RMB

31 December 2019 —E-hWF+=ZA=+—H

If the Hong Kong dollar WETEARERE
weakens against the RMB
If the Hong Kong dollar WA TEAREHE

strengthens against the RMB

Interest rate risk

The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s borrowings
with a floating interest rate.

(5) 430 340
5 (430) (340)
2= E

ARABRTIGNEEFHMAT 2 AREER
HEARNAIRZBHERGF R ZEEER-
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For the year endled 31 December 2020 #{2 —F _—FF+ _H=—1—HILFZ

44. Financial risk management objectives and 44.

pOliCieS (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant and before any impact on tax, of the
Company’s profit before tax (through the impact on floating
rate borrowings) and the Company’s equity.

2020

—BoRF

(Decrease)/

Increase/  increase/in

(decrease) in profit

basis points  before tax

BR Bt A A
B/ (A9 /

(B4) i

HK$'000

TR
Hong Kong dollar BT 100 (1,360)
Hong Kong dollar BT (100) 1,360

The Company’s policy to manage its cash flow interest rate
risk is to minimise the Company’s interest-bearing borrowings
which bear interest at floating rates.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Company’s policy that all customers who
wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored
by the risk management department on an ongoing basis
and the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant. The
Company has no significant concentration risk in view of the
fact that the Company’s trade receivables from securities and
futures dealing business and trade receivables from placing
and asset management business relates to a large number of
diversified customers.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables from securities and
futures dealing business and trade receivables from placing
and asset management business are disclosed in Notes 21 and
22 to the consolidated financial statements.
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F0F

(Decrease)/
(Decrease)/ Increase/ increase/in  (Decrease)/
V{EAT  (decrease) in profit increase in
basis points before tax equity
B AR R i
ZHEn/ R/ (Rd) /
(W) 2 i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TET
(1,136) 100 (2,505) (2,363)
1,136 (100) 2,505 2,363
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z =F = FF+—A=—+—HIFFEZ

44. Financial risk management objectives and
pOliCieS (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
The credit risk of the Company’s other financial assets,
which comprise cash and bank balances and trade and other
receivables, arises from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31 December
2020 and 2019

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and
year-end staging classification as at 31 December 2020. The
amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial
assets.

12-month ECLs
128 R B
FERHE

31 December 2020

44. BHREBREEBERBE @)

EERRE (&)
$@ﬁﬁ@i@§&(ﬁ$a%ﬁi&ﬁ

AR EWCE 5 AR R B MR IR
ZFEH MRS THERNAHAES R
B EREERNZETAZEEE:.

R-E_ZEER_ZF-NF+-_HA=+H
B B = LB K 5F 48 B AR

TRITNR_-_F_FF+_A=1+—HE
RARBEERRZGEREERRAZZ &
SEERR EXTZREAMEH (BIEF
BANHTIBERARNIANABZEMLE
) ARFHEARSBE-FREN 228
REMEEZBIREE-

Lifetime ECLs

RHEMEEBR

Simplified

—E-EF4+-A=+-AH Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
E-BE ERRB EZERB k1475 @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TR THR TR TR

approach Total

Cash and margin client

Re RREREFERFE

receivables
— LTV at 100% or above ~ERHEALE
ﬁMoo%wu 355,663 355,663
~ LTV between 80% and 100% ERHEELE
5A80%i1 00% = ) = 12,171
~ LTV less than 80% - EFHEELEDIRE0% 121,848 = 121,848

Loan receivables, corporate
client receivables, investment

121,848 , 355,663 489,682
FERER BUEREF
HE EUREEER

funds receivables and H it YR

other receivables
— Not yet past due —HRBH 504,243 = ! 549,256
- Less than 90 days past due ~ —#1 i1 90R - 114,419 - 114,419
— More than 90 days past due ~ —31 3290 = = - 545

504,243 114,419 545 45,013 664,220

626,091 126,590 356,208 45,013 1,153,902
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For the year endled 31 December 2020 #{2 —F _—FF+ _H=—1—HILFZ

44. Financial risk management objectives and

pOliCieS (continued)

44, BHREREE R EREBE @)

Credit risk (continued) EERK (#)
12-month ECLs Lifetime ECLs
128 A A
FEBR 2HEHEERR
Simplified
31 December 2019 “E-NE+ZA=+-H Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E-KR BB EZER o473 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TR TER TER TR
Cash and margin client ReRhRELEP
receivables JE YA
- LTV at 100% or above EXHEMALE
BA 00% 3k £ = = 164,337 = 164,337
— LTV between 80% and 100%  —EFHEENL®
75/\80% £100% - 169,283 - - 169,283
— LTV less than 80% ERBEELEDR80% 164,651 = = = 164,651
164,651 169,283 164,337 - 498,271
Loan receivables, corporate EUER BREEEPR
client receivables, HE EUREEER
investment funds receivables Hiv IR
and other receivables
— Not yet past due CE Sk 260,162 = 50,913 311,075
~ Less than 90 days past due —®H P R0H = 274,258 = 1,591 275,849
~ More than 90 days past due ~ — %18} 1B90H - - 668 - 668
260,162 274,258 668 52,504 587,592
424,813 443,541 165,005 52,504 1,085,863
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z =F = FF+—A=—+—HIFFEZ

44. Financial risk management objectives and

pOliCieS (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using a
recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial
assets (e.g., trade receivables from securities and futures
dealing business, trade receivables from placing and asset
management business and loan receivables from money
lending business) and projected cash flows from operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of the
Group's available cash and its listed equity investments.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

On demand
or within
1 year
RERDY
R—FR
—TTF
31 December 2020 +ZA=+—8 HK$'000
TET
Trade payables FETE 5 BRI 440,015
Financial liabilities A A FE AT
included in other RIERETER

payables and accruals 2 & @iA &
Third party interests BE=ZFNEFEARE

in consolidated A=

investment fund 86,358
Notes payable NS 3,684
Lease liabilities HE&E 29,633
Other borrowings Hibtg& 145,964
Bank borrowings RITEE 102,716
Bank overdrafts RITBEX 86,408

955,982

44. BHREBREEBERBE @)

RBESERE
AEEMNBEEERDESRE T AR
EeRERZEAR - HWETAZESRTA
keBEE (PINBEFLMEESEHE
EZRUBESER BEREEERER
EXCREEIRRANMERBELZE
WEF) 2B HARBAREEMFSZR
%/}ILEO

AEEZBRERERERAKE A
AREERELTRARE REESHE
YRR T

AEBRBETORTEANRIONT SR A
ERREHRZBBAHERAT

Over 5
years Total

BENE Fob

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000
THERT TERT THET
- - 440,015

- 86,358
99,569 103,253
1,570 31,203
269,040 415,004
- 102,716

- 86,408

370,179 1,326,161
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #2 —F —FF+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

44. Financial risk management objectives and
pOliCieS (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

44. B EREEBEZEREEK (@)
REBESER (8)

On demand
or within 1to5 Over 5
1 year years years Total
HERK
R—FER —ERF RENE BEt
—T-NEF
31 December 2019 +=-A=+—H HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
Trade payables JETE SR 74,108 = = 74,108
Financial liabilities FT A E A FE A
included in other FIBRERTE A
payables and accruals Zemas 56,422 - - 56,422
Third party interests FE=TREAKRE
in consolidated Eookxn
investment fund 109,599 = = 109,599
Notes payable e R 3,684 103,253 = 106,937
Lease liabilities HEBE 20,670 5,212 = 25,882
Other borrowings Hupfg & 477,054 = = 477,054
Bank borrowings RITREE 118,332 53,328 136,026 307,686
Bank overdrafts RITHEX 117,103 = = 117,103
976,972 161,793 136,026 1,274,791
Price risk EEEE

Price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity investments,
debt investments and fund investments decrease as a result
of changes in the levels of equity indexes and the values of
individual investment. The Group is exposed to price risk
mostly arising from equity investments, debt investments
and fund investments that are classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss or other comprehensive
income. Majority of the Group’s equity investments and debt
investments are listed on the Stock Exchange, respective
overseas stock exchanges and the over-the-counter markets,
while the unlisted investment fund are traded in the over-the-
counter markets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #(2 —F _FF+ _H=—+—HILFZ

44. Financial risk management objectives and

pOliCieS (continued)

Listed equity investments

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 5%
change in the fair values of the equity investments, with all
other variables held constant and before any impact on tax,
based on their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting
period. For the purpose of this analysis, for the equity
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
the impact is deemed to be on the fair value reserve and no
account is given for factors such as impairment which might

44. BERAMEEREREE (&)

LHRERE
TRETRERSHRZEEHE RAR
B2 R ES% EE M A L MERERF T
BUHNBRRBEAZERZBEE -5
Aoms HEBEMEEKSERAF
BIRZBARE R ERER/E R FE
Rz E BETPLEERBESIEY
BERMRCZER-

impact on the statement of profit or loss.

31 December 2020

—E-FFtT-A=t-H

Carrying
amount

of equity
investments

Change in the
Group's profit
before tax
AEBBRBA
il
HK$’000
THER

Change in the
Group's equity

FEEESZED
HK$'000
FRT

BAEREREE
HK$’'000
TER

Investments listed in:

Hong Kong — Equity
investments at fair value
through other
comprehensive income

Hong Kong — Equity
investments at fair value
through profit or loss

KTV S E 2 RE -
BB -BEREMEE
WEE N FEY R

BAKE

BE-EBBERATE
SRR 2 IR B

344,559

321,699

Carrying
amount Change in the
of equity Group's profit Change in the
investments before tax Group's equity
AR BB AT
BAREREE B2 AREERE
31 December 2019 ZE-NFTZA=T—A HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET
Investments listed in: RTFE ETHZIRE
Hong Kong — Equity investments & /%5 — 35 i@ £ fih 2
at fair value through WeRATFEINERZ
other comprehensive income  BE A& 506,650 = 25,333
Hong Kong — Equity investments &% — & @18 & A VA
at fair value through IR 2 AR E
profit or loss 38,432 1,922 1,605
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44, BB EMREEEERBEE (&)

44. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Unlisted fund investments

The fair value of unlisted fund investments of approximately
HK$51,950,000 (2019: HK$77,073,000) depend on the
valuation of the respective investments or underlying
investments. If the unit price increased/decreased by 5%,
profit before tax for the year would have an estimated
approximately HK$2,598,000 (2019: HK$3,854,000) increase/
decrease.

Debt investments

For sensitivity analysis purpose of debt investments amounting
to approximately HK$241,919,000 (2019: HK$168,530,000),
if the prices of debt investments had been 5% higher/
lower, the profit before tax for the year ended 31 December
2020 would have increased/decreased by approximately
HK$12,096,000 (2019: HK$8,427,000).

In opinion of the management, the sensitivity analysis is
unrepresentative of the price risk as the year end exposure
does not reflect the exposure during the year.

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. To
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #(2 —F _FF+ _H=—+—HILFZ

44. Financial risk management objectives and

pOliCieS (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-equity
ratio calculated as total debt, excluding lease liabilities,
divided by total equity. The debt-to-equity ratios as at the end
of the reporting periods were as follows:

44.

BEEREEBERBE @

EXEE (#)

AEBABEESEREL R (REEERE (T
BREEABIBRUAESERAE) 2EE
ERHEA - REEMRZERSEaLL

E3 Ul

2020
—

HK$'000
FTER

86,574
364,972
102,716

86,408

640,670

1,277,274

Notes payable NS
Other borrowings HiEE
Bank borrowings RITEE
Bank overdrafts RITEX
Total debt BIRMERR
Total equity AR
Debt-to-equity ratio BRI K

50.2%

The decrease in debt-to-equity ratio as at 31 December 2020
was mainly due to the decline in the bank borrowing of
approximately HK$254,201,000.

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
FHET

86,574
429,854
261,340
117,103

894,871

1,215,347

73.6%

R-ZE_ZEF+-_A=+—RAZEEYE
SUELERENDETEARBITEERDD

254,201,000 7T °
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For the year endled 31 December 2020 #Z —F = FF A =—+—HIFZ

45. Statement of financial position of the 45. A1 F) 2 B AR R &
Company
Information about the statement of financial position of the R|BEBR RRARMBRREKZEH A
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: T

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- WE KRR 379 1,122
Rights-of-use assets EREEE 11,605 5,601
Investments in subsidiaries KRB RR & 256,235 247,082
Deposits ®re 6,354 8,146
Total non-current assets FERBEELE 274,573 261,951
Current assets REBEE
Due from subsidiaries by =N P 792,841 815,981
Prepayments, deposits and FENFRIE 1R KA M EK IR
other receivables 1,199 37
Cash and bank balances Re MRITHET 788 432
Total current assets MEBEERE 794,828 816,450
Current liabilities REAE
Other payables and accruals Hh e R R ERTE R 23,705 18,977
Lease liabilities Tﬂia BE 10,557 6,464
Due to subsidiaries FEASHBfY /B R B FRIAR 181,079 312,062
Other borrowings Hibfg g 236,000 215,000
Total current liabilities B A ERTE 451,341 552,503
Net current assets RBEEFE 343,487 263,947
Total assets less current liabilities EEHABERABER 618,060 525,898
Non-current liability FRBEE
Notes payable ENEE 86,574 86,574
Lease liabilities HEEAE 908 =
Total non-current liabilities FRBBIFEAE 87,482 86,574
Net assets BEFE 530,578 439,324
Equity =
Share capital (&N 159,697 147,197
Reserves et 370,881 292,127
Total equity Emias 530,578 439,324
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45. Statement of financial position of the

Company (continued)
Note:

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:

ire R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #Z =F = FF+—A=—+—HIFFEZ

45. RKQAT 2 MR R T (&)
B

By

AAREEHRENAT

Equity
component
Share Share of
premium  Contributed Capital option  convertible Accumulated
account surplus reserve reserve bonds losses Total
TRER
&%z
RoEER EHRE  EAER BRERE  BEBS  RHER &gt
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAEL  FET  TEL TR TAn  TAn TER
At 1 January 2019 RZF-NE-A-H 4,668,489 675,671 556 105,518 47257 (4,283,782) 1,213,709
Profit and total comprehensive loss AERENREABR
for the year #E - - - - - (984,669)  (984,669)
Exercise of share option RERE 215 - = (69) = = 146
Lapse of share option LN = = = = = 60,600 60,600
Equity-settled share option RSS2 BRER S
arrangements, net FH = = = 2,341 = - 2,341

At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 R=F—h%
TZA=+-BR
—Z-%45-f-H 4,668,704

Profit and total comprehensive loss REERFRZEEHE

675,671 107,790 , (5,207,851) 292,127

for the year ek = 28,457 28,457
Exercise of share option T ER R (71,567) - 20,853
Lapse of share option BN - 29,444 29,444
At 31 December 2020 It S 33

t_ﬂ_t A 4,761,124 675,671 36,223 ) (5,149950) 370,881
The contributed surplus of the Company arose as a result RRRIZBHABLRIRB M35 2 &R
of the capital reorganisation referred to in Note 35 and ER DEAKRBHNBARERZAMHE
represented the excess of the then combined net assets of EFERARARRMAZEEEMEITR
the subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value of the 2 EER L2 8-

Company’s shares issued in exchange therefor.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 #2 —F —FF+ - H=+—HI-F/Z

46. New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but

46. BBITEM R E M2 BT RAE

not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:
HKFRS 17

BANEHRELER|FE175%
Amendments to HKAS 1

R EREIR 2]

Amendments to HKFRS 3
BN ELER|FEIG 2 EE]
Amendments to HKAS 16

BB ERE165 2185]
Amendments to HKAS 37

BB EREI7TRZIERT
Amendments to HKFRSs
BN GWELER 2 EE]

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16
ARV BRELENFEIN BAZET LR

E395 BAMBRELNETR &
P IS RS RIS ASE R B BB IS W
HXRAET165 2185]
Amendment to HKFRS 16
BEMBMEERE165 2185
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28

BB RELEBBI0HF R EEGTE
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46. New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but

not yet effective (continued)

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 June 2020.

The amendment introduces a new practical expedient for
lessees to elect not to assess whether a Covid-19 — related rent
concession is a lease modification. The practical expedient
only applies to rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 that meets all of the following
conditions:

J the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

J any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

J there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for
changes in lease payments resulting from rent concessions
the same way it would account for the changes applying
HKFRS 16 Leases if the changes are not a lease modification.
Forgiveness or waiver of lease payments are accounted for
as variable lease payments. The related lease liabilities are
adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with a
corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit or loss in
the period in which the event occurs.
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46. New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but 46. ERT{EEXERMZHIT RE

not yet effective (continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions (continued)

The application is not expected to have impact on the Group's
financial position and performance as the Group does not
intend to apply the practical expedient.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS
4 and HKFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 relate
to the modification of financial assets, financial liabilities
and lease liabilities, specific hedge accounting requirements
and disclosure requirements applying HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures to accompany the amendments
regarding modifications and hedge accounting.

. Modification of financial assets, financial liabilities and
lease liabilities. A practical expedient is introduced for
modifications required by the reform (modifications
required as a direct consequence of the interest rate
benchmark reform and made on an economically
equivalent basis). These modifications are accounted
for by updating the effective interest rate. All other
modifications are accounted for using the current
HKFRSs requirements. A similar practical expedient is
proposed for lessee accounting applying HKFRS 16;

. Hedge accounting requirements. Under the
amendments, hedge accounting is not discontinued
solely because of the interest rate benchmark reform.
Hedging relationships (and related documentation)
are required to be amended to reflect modifications
to the hedged item, hedging instrument and hedged
risk. Amended hedging relationships should meet all
qualifying criteria to apply hedge accounting, including
effectiveness requirements; and

J Disclosures. The amendments require disclosures in
order to allow users to understand the nature and extent
of risks arising from the interest rate benchmark reform
to which the Group is exposed to and how the entity
manages those risks as well as the entity’s progress in
transitioning from interbank offered rates to alternative
benchmark rates, and how the entity is managing this
transition.
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46. New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but

not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS
4 and HKFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
Phase 2 (continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has several Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) bank loans which will or
may be subject to interest rate benchmark reform. The Group
expects no significant gains or losses should the interest rate
benchmark for these loans change resulting from the reform
on application of the amendments.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)

The amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement for at
least twelve months from reporting date for classification of
liabilities as current or non-current, which:

e specify that the classification of liabilities as current
or non-current should be based on rights that are in
existence at the end of the reporting period. Specifically,
the amendments clarify that:

(i) What is meant by a right to defer settlement;

(i)  That a right to defer must exist at the end of the
reporting period;

(iii) That classification is unaffected by the likelihood
that an entity will exercise its deferral right; and

(iv) That only if an option at the discretion of
the counterparty included in the terms of a
convertible liability is itself an equity instrument
in accordance with HKAS 32 Financial Instrument:
Presentation would not affect the current or non-
current classification of the liability.
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46.

47.

212

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but
not yet effective (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) (continued)

In addition, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 was revised as a
consequence of the Amendments to HKAS 1 to align the
corresponding wordings with no change in conclusion.

The amendments require retrospective application.

The directors of the Company are currently assessing the
impact of the amendments on the consolidated financial
statements and whether existing loan agreement may require
renegotiation.

Approval of the consolidated financial

statements

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 March
2021.
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